GET HOLDINGS LIMITED
N EZERER2A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

(RESBEEFMAI RN EREFEZERAF)
Stock code & {3 X5% : 8100

L D v-..

\

Annual Report

»
.

* For identification purposes only {£ { & 7



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report. This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of GET Holdings
Limited (the "Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of GET
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, referred to
as the “Group”), | would like to present the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”) together with its strategies and
prospects.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$499,210,000 for the Year
(2016: profit of approximately HK$34,994,000).

The Group’s consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$512,327,000 for the Year (2016: profit of
approximately HK$17,092,000).

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year (2016:
Nil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During 2017, the global economy was unpredictable with notable shifting
trends and volatility. The Group’s principal businesses, including Software
Business, Corporate Management Solutions and |.T. Contract Services
Business, Money Lending Business and Securities Investment Business (all
as defined in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this report), faced increasingly intensified competition in the industry. In
particular, the Securities Investment Business encountered difficult challenges.
This business recorded a segment loss of approximately HK$332,435,000
for the Year, mainly due to the net fair value loss on the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL Financial Assets”) of approximately
HK$31,240,000, the loss on disposal of the FVTPL Financial Assets of
approximately HK$260,547,000, the impairment loss on the available-for-
sale financial assets (‘AFS Financial Assets”) of approximately HK$38,241,000
and the loss on disposal of the AFS Financial Assets of approximately
HK$2,775,000. The complicated internal factors and the external ever-
changing environment presented difficulties and challenges to the operation
and development of the Group in the Year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERBE

Against this backdrop, the Group’s management has evaluated the situation
and has continued to optimise its business strategies. With the concerted
effort of all staff, we have undertaken to overcome difficulties and challenges
by further diversifying our businesses and expanding our revenue streams.
During the Year, the Group continued to actively develop the Software
Business, one of the Group’s pillar businesses. Through the timely upgrade
of our current products and the enhancement of technological innovation, the
Group will grasp the opportunity to continue to look for potential customers
and increase customer retention. Moreover, the Group has actively developed
new products such as mobile terminal applications, in order to keep pace
with the fast-changing I.T. and mobile communications trends and to further
address the needs of the market. During the Year, the Software Business
accounted for approximately 58.2% of the Group’s total turnover (2016:
approximately 62.1%).

During the Year, the Group continued to develop the Corporate Management
Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business. Provision of these services
enabled the Group to extend its current software service line and become a
comprehensive integrated |.T. business services platform. During the Year,
having carefully considered and assessed all circumstances, the Board
decided to temporarily withhold the proposed spin-off and separate listing of
the Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business on
GEM.

During the Year, the Group continued to operate the Money Lending Business
through providing secured and unsecured loans to customers, including
individuals and corporations. During the Year, the Group’s Money Lending
Business did not record any doubtful or bad debt. The Board will continue to
operate this business in a cautious manner. Having carefully assessed all the
circumstances, the Board also considers the possibility of, including but not
limited to, scale-down, disposal or discontinuation of this business.

In view of the impacts brought by the volatile equity and financial markets on
the Group’s Securities Investment Business and the inherent material price
risks affecting this business, the Board will closely monitor the performance
of its investment portfolio and implement strict risk management measures. In
order to better allocate the resources of the Group to segments with growth
potentials, the Board will consider the possibility of, including but not limited
to, scale-down or discontinuation of this business.

On 21 March 2017, the Group disposed of an aggregate of approximately
32% of the issued share capital of GET Mdream Wealth Management
Limited (“GET Mdream”), which was primarily engaged in the insurance and
MPF schemes brokerage business, to two independent third parties at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$3,000,000. As the returns and benefits
from GET Mdream were not satisfactory as anticipated, the Company believes
that the disposal of partial equity interest of GET Mdream presented a good
opportunity for the Company to reallocate its resources to its core businesses
and other investments which would bring higher returns to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) as and when opportunities arise.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$104,193,000 and net current
assets of approximately HK$154,075,000. Based on this sound financial
position, the Group is looking for and evaluating investment or acquisition
opportunities in businesses with growth potential. It will strategically invest its
capital with the aim of generating long-term and stable revenue and achieving
further business diversification, thereby delivering the best returns to the
Shareholders.

With effect from 31 March 2017, Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (“Mr. Kuang”)
has resigned as the chairman of the Board and an executive Director on his
own accord. The Board would like to express its sincere appreciation for all
contributions made by Mr. Kuang to the Group during his tenure. During the
Year, Mr. Wong Hin Shek and Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey have been appointed
as executive Directors in September 2017 and November 2017 respectively.
In addition, Mr. Chan Yung and Mr. Cheng Hong Kei have been appointed as
independent non-executive Directors in November 2017. With the professional
expertise and extensive management experience, the Board will lead the
Group and all staff to advance our business to new heights.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, despite the complicated, fast-changing and challenging
market environment, the Group is cautiously optimistic about the future
market conditions. In the coming year, the Group will focus on expanding its
core businesses and, at the same time, consider the possibility of, including
but not limited to, scale-down, disposal or discontinuation of those business
segments and/or investments with unsatisfactory performance. The Group will
keep pursuing a diversified investment strategy to look for suitable investment
opportunities and expand into new business areas in a bid to create new
revenue and profit drivers.

APPRECIATION

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all our
business partners and Shareholders for their continuing trust and support in
the past year. | would also like to extend my sincere thanks to all staff of the
Group and members of the Board for their dedication and devotion during
2017, alongside their desire for the Group to realise progress.

Hung Yvonne
Acting Chairman and Executive Director

26 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

BUSINESS REVIEW
Continuing Operations
Software Business

During the Year, the business of research, development and distribution of
personal computer (“PC”) performance software, anti-virus software, mobile
phone applications and toolbar advertisements (“Software Business”) of
the Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$109,209,000 (2016:
approximately HK$120,259,000), representing a decrease of approximately
9.2% as compared to that of 2016. The segment loss of the Software
Business amounted to approximately HK$137,321,000 (2016: profit of
approximately HK$33,494,000). The declining performance of this segment
was mainly attributable to negative factors such as the keen competition in
the I.T. market, the decline in the demand for PCs, the slower-than-expected
development pace in Asian markets, the volatility of the global economy as
well as the impairment loss on goodwill (“Impairment Loss on Goodwill”)
of HK$182,000,000 in relation to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) of the
Software Business (2016: HK$30,000,000). Details of the Impairment Loss
on Goodwill are set out in “Material Asset Impairment” in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this report and note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Boom Max International Limited (“Boom Max”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as, the “Boom Max Group”), the operating unit of the Group
carrying on the Software Business, has continued to take on challenges and
make breakthroughs in innovative system utilities and security software for
PCs. It has focused on providing safe and reliable high-performance products
for customers, including Advanced SystemCare, Advanced Mobile Care
Security (“AMC Security”), Driver Booster, Smart Defrag, MacBooster, 10bit
Malware Fighter and Random Password Generator, among which Advanced
SystemCare is the flagship product which helps users to protect their PCs
from spyware and virus and to detect and solve issues regarding computer
security and performance.

After long-term research and development (“R&D”), repeated tests and
thoughtful planning, Driver Booster Version 5.0 was officially launched in
September 2017. This driver update software can effectively help users to
automatically update the device drivers of PCs, which in turn further enhances
the gaming experiences of users, improves computers stability and satisfies
customers’ needs, for a superior experience.

Advanced internet and web attacks have never stopped and ransomware also
swept across the world in 2017. While people worldwide are worried about
the criminal acts of hackers, Boom Max’s product, I0bit Malware Fighter,
which can safeguard PCs from infection by ransomware, has attracted greater
demand from the market with an expanding user base, thus becoming the
next major profit driver of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Following the increasing popularity of the internet, the mobile devices market
has also been developed rapidly, in which smartphones and tablets have
become a major trend due to their multiple functions. However, there is
an imminent concern with security which has created a strong demand
for Boom Max’s mobile application products in particular AMC Security, a
mobile security and booster application for Android phones and tablets. This
increasing trend can also reduce the negative impact on the Group’s flagship
product Advanced SystemCare when mobile devices with greater functions
make inroads on the sales of PCs.

Boom Max insists on a twin-track approach to R&D and business
development. First of all, it has continued to focus on developing innovative
software, improving software quality and uploading all softwares, so users
around the world can conveniently download them through the website at
www.iobit.com as well as other software download directory websites and
alliance websites. Secondly, it has implemented a number of moves to expand
its software business footprint from mature markets such as the United States
and Europe to markets such as Japan, Korea and other emerging markets
in Asia, and explore business opportunities in countries along the “Belt and
Road” including the Philippines, Myanmar and Thailand. These moves included
continuously exploring distribution channels by seeking cooperation with local
resellers and affiliates. It has also provided new versions of product websites
in different languages, such as Thai, Burmese and Korean, and increased the
exposure of its brands and software products on search engines to strengthen
Boom Max’s branding and marketing efforts in Asia.

On 31 December 2017, Boom Max’s internal sales database showed that
it has more than 102,000,000 product users in total, including new free and
paid active users (which refer to users who have subscribed for the products
at least one time during the Year) (2016: 113,000,000).

Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business

The Group provides corporate management solutions, I.T. contract services,
network infrastructure solutions, network professional services and I.T. project
implementation services (the “Corporate Management Solutions and |.T.
Contract Services Business”) to major clients including listed companies, large
multinational corporations and government organisations in Hong Kong, via
its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, e-Perfect IT Limited (“e-Perfect IT”)
and Wafer Systems (Hong Kong) Limited (“Wafer Systems”). During the Year,
turnover and profit derived from this business segment were approximately
HK$60,949,000 (2016: approximately HK$59,963,000) and approximately
HK$4,881,000 (2016: approximately HK$12,472,000) respectively. The
decrease in profit of this business segment was mainly caused by the change
in revenue mix with lower profit margin during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

e-Perfect IT aims to become an one-stop I.T. solution provider in Hong Kong.
During the Year, e-Perfect IT was one of the sub-contractors qualified under
the “Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 3”, which
is part of the Hong Kong Government’s I.T. outsourcing strategy, aiming
to enlarge the delivery capacity for |.T. services, accelerate the delivery of
|.T. solutions and create a market of sufficient size to encourage the further
development of the local I.T. industry. In addition, e-Perfect IT has been
recently qualified as one of the main contractors of Category 2 Supply of the
Services for Major Groups to Government bureaus and departments for the
period from 31 July 2017 to 30 July 2021. As the government projects can
help to generate stable income for e-Perfect IT, it will strive to seize more
similar opportunities and bid for more government projects in the future.

Wafer Systems has been providing network system integration services
to various corporations. It has established a solid partnership with leaders
in the industry. Through participation in large scale projects, it signified its
advancement of technology and its ability to generate long-term income from
after-sales services to the Group. In the future, Wafer Systems intends to fully
utilise its strong position in the industry, its rich and successful operational
experience and the business model in which it can readily replicate elsewhere
in order to expand its business coverage to underdeveloped countries and
explore business opportunities in markets with huge potential for development.

In February 2017, the Company submitted a proposal to the Stock Exchange
in respect of the proposed spin-off (the “Proposed Spin-off”) and separate
listing of the Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services
Business on GEM pursuant to Practice Note 3 to the GEM Listing Rules. In
May 2017, the Stock Exchange confirmed that the Company may proceed
with the Proposed Spin-off. In light of the recent volatility of the capital
market and having carefully considered all circumstances, the Company has
decided to put the Proposed Spin-off on hold. The Board considers that this
decision would not have any material adverse impact on the existing business
operations and financial position of the Group. Details of the Proposed Spin-
off are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 8 February 2017 and
22 May 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money Lending Business

Citi Profit Finance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is a holder of a money lenders licence under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has adopted
the money lending policy and procedures as stipulated in a manual which
provides guidelines on the handling and monitoring of money lending
procedures according to the Money Lenders Ordinance.

The Group’s money lending business (the “Money Lending Business”)
recorded an interest income of approximately HK$813,000 for the Year (2016:
approximately HK$4,684,000), representing a decrease of approximately
82.6% as compared to that of 2016, and the segment profit of approximately
HK$753,000 (2016: approximately HK$3,498,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 78.5% over that for 2016. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the withdrawal of the subordinate property mortgage loan business and
intensified market competition in Hong Kong’s money lending industry.
The aggregate amount of loan and interest receivables as at 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$6,177,000 (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$11,673,000). During the Year, the Group did not record any doubtful or
bad debt in the Money Lending Business (2016: approximately HK$206,000).
Having considered the uncertainties and potential risks in the global economy,
the Group has been operating this business in a prudent manner, and may
consider the possibility of, including but not limited to, scale-down, disposal or
discontinuation of this business segment in the coming future.

Securities Investment Business

During the Year, the segment loss for the securities investment business
(the “Securities Investment Business”) amounted to approximately
HK$332,435,000 (2016: profit of approximately HK$68,597,000). Such loss
was mainly attributable to (i) the loss on disposal of the FVTPL Financial
Assets of approximately HK$260,547,000 (the “FVTPL Disposal Loss”) (2016:
approximately HK$556,000); (i) the net fair value loss on the FVTPL Financial
Assets of approximately HK$31,240,000 (the “Fair Value Loss”) (2016:
gain of approximately HK$81,673,000); (i) the loss on disposal of the AFS
Financial Assets of approximately HK$2,775,000 (2016: gain of approximately
HK$358,000); and (iv) the impairment loss on the AFS Financial Assets of
approximately HK$38,241,000 (the “Impairment Loss on AFS Financial Assets”)
(2016: approximately HK$11,914,000). The FVTPL Disposal Loss and the Fair
Value Loss were mainly related to the investment in First Credit Finance Group
Limited (“First Credit”) (stock code: 8215) and Convoy Global Holdings Limited
(“Convoy Global”) (stock code: 1019). The Impairment Loss on AFS Financial
Assets was mainly related to the investment in China Parenting Network
Holdings Limited (“China Parenting”) (stock code: 8361) and Finsoft Financial
Investment Holdings Limited (“Finsoft”) (stock code: 8018).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

The Group disposed of 633,540,000 shares of First Credit (“Disposed FC
Shares”) during the period from 15 August 2017 to 4 October 2017 at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$61,806,000, and 787,108,000
shares of Convoy Global (“Disposed Convoy Shares”) during the period
from 14 August 2017 to 12 September 2017 at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$153,818,000 in the open market. The net proceeds
from the disposals of the Disposed FC Shares and the Disposed Convoy
Shares were used for redeeming the outstanding 9% per annum loan notes
(“9% Loan Notes”) in the principal amount of HK$130,000,000 and interest
accrued thereon due in October 2017 and the non-interest bearing convertible
notes (“Convertible Notes”) in the principal amount of approximately
HK$75,208,000 in full which became mature in December 2017 and for the
general working capital needs of the Group. The Disposed FC Shares and
the Disposed Convoy Shares resulted in a loss on disposal of approximately
HK$265,360,000 and a gain on disposal of approximately HK$4,890,000 for
the Year respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 84,460,000 shares of First Credit
as FVTPL Financial Assets, representing approximately 2.33% of its then
total issued share capital. After considering the fact that the trading in the
shares of First Credit on the Stock Exchange has been suspended by the
Securities and Futures Commission and the time when it can resume trading
in its shares remains uncertain, for the sake of prudence, the fair value of the
shares of First Credit held by the Group has been adjusted by applying the
index return method as valuation technique based on the valuation prepared
by an independent professional valuer. Accordingly, the Group recorded a fair
value loss on FVTPL Financial Assets of approximately HK$302,000 from its
investment in First Credit (inclusive of the Disposed FC Shares) for the Year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 10,000 shares and 13,512,000
shares of Convoy Global as FVTPL Financial Assets and AFS Financial
Assets respectively. After considering a voluntary trading halt in the shares of
Convoy Global on the Stock Exchange and the uncertainties in regard to the
time of resumption of trading in its shares, for the sake of prudence, the fair
value of the shares of Convoy Global held by the Group has been adjusted
by applying the index return method as valuation technique based on the
valuation prepared by an independent professional valuer. Accordingly, the
Group recorded a fair value loss on FVTPL Financial Assets of approximately
HK$32,895,000 and an impairment loss on AFS Financial Assets of
approximately HK$1,743,000 from its investment in Convoy Global (inclusive
of the Disposed Convoy Shares) for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 10,760,000 shares of China
Parenting as AFS Financial Assets, representing approximately 1.05% of its
then issued share capital. After further review and monitoring of the recent
stock price of China Parenting and taking into account the significant decline
in the fair value of this investment below its cost, the Group recorded an
impairment loss on AFS Financial Assets of approximately HK$14,387,000
(being the difference between the purchase consideration on investment
in China Parenting and the closing price of its shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange as at 29 December 2017) from its investment in China Parenting for
the Year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 186,492,340 shares of Finsoft
as AFS Financial Assets, representing approximately 14.79% of its then
issued share capital. After further review and monitoring of the recent stock
price of Finsoft and considering the significant decline in the fair value of
this investment below its cost, the Group recorded an impairment loss on
AFS Financial Assets of approximately HK$16,821,000 (being the difference
between the purchase consideration on investment in Finsoft and the closing
price of its shares quoted on the Stock Exchange as at 29 December 2017)
from its investment in Finsoft for the Year.

As at 31 December 2017, the FVTPL Financial Assets and the AFS Financial
Assets of the Group with fair value of approximately HK$9,656,000 (31
December 2016: approximately HK$523,899,000) and approximately
HK$37,149,000 (31 December 2016: approximately HK$83,567,000)
respectively consisted of nine investment items (2016: 13 items), seven of
which are shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, one of which
is shares of an unlisted company while the remaining one is an unlisted
investment fund.

Details of the securities investments are set out in notes 7, 28 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statement in this report.

In view of the recent unstable global equity market and volatile financial market
in Hong Kong, this business segment carries material price risk in its nature.
The Board will monitor closely the performance of the Group’s investment
portfolio and review its investment strategy regularly, as well as allocate its
resources carefully, in order to carry out rigorous risk management to adjust
business scale in light of the situation under close scrutiny. The Board will
also consider the possibility of, including but not limited to, scale-down and
discontinuation of such business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Below are the securities investments held by the Group as at 31 December MU TNAREER - Z—+tFE+-"A=+—HFFHEZE

2017: HRE
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of total issued
share capital F ge to F ge to Unrealised
of the investee Fair value the Group’s net  the Group’s total gain/(loss)
Number of company as at asat assets as at assets as at on change Dividend
Place of shares held 31 Decemt 31 Decemt 31 Decemk 31 Decemt in fair value income for
Name of investee company Notes incorporation by the Group 2017 2017 2017 2017 for the Year the Year
EHREAT
RZB-t#F WZB-tF BZB-tF KEER
tZA=1-H R=B-t&  +ZA=t-H +ZA=+-A ATEE
*EE ZBRIRA +ZA=t+-8 REECEE HrEECEE BHIRER KEER
BRENAER [ E 3T BEZBRAEA BEZAMM ZATEE FEAM BEAM st/ (8 REKA
(Note 1) (Audited) (Audited)
(1) (%) (%)
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(Fi7) (T (T
(Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately)
(#4) (54) (514) (§14) (§4) (#4)
AFS Financial Assets
THEESREE
China Parenting 2 Cayman lslands 10,760,000 1.05% 6,456 1.00% 0.91% (20,552) -
PEER Feks
Hydra Capital SPC - SP #1(*Hydra Capital SPC") 3 Cayman Islands 1,100 491% 156 0.02% 0.02% (1,991)
Hydra Capital SPC - SP #1([ Hydra Capital SPC) REHE -
Convoy Global 4 Cayman Islands 13,512,000 0.09% 1,635 0.25% 0.23% (1,486) -
RRBR Feks
Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (‘Target Insurance”) 5 Hong Kong 3,500,000 0.67% 5,075 0.78% 0.72% (1,610)
FMRR (ER)BRAR (FMRR]) EE
Finsoft 6 Cayman Islands 186,492,340 14.7%9% 23,685 3.66% 3.36% (14,173) -
i) Feks
GET Mdream 7 Hong Kong 167,647 19% 142 0.022% 0.020% (1,639)
BERS i
FVTPL Financial Assets
BRBRULTEBIRNEREE
Convoy Global 4 Cayman Islands 10,000 0.000067% 1 0.00015% 0.00014% 1) -
RERR Feks
First Credt 8 Bermuda 84,460,000 2.33% 6419 0.99% 091% (32,855) 1436
F-=R BRE
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (‘CK Hutchison”) 9 Cayman Islands 20,000 0.0005% 1,962 0.30% 0.28% 204 55
RIAZEFERAR(RINE]) Feks
Kingsoft Corporation Limited (‘*Kingsoft’) 10 Cayman Islands 49,000 0.0037% 1,274 0.20% 0.18% 282
SILEHERAR (R ILEME]) HEHS
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Notes:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The percentage is calculated with reference to the then latest monthly return
or next day disclosure return of the investee company publicly available on the
website of the Stock Exchange (where applicable).

China Parenting (stock code: 8361) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “China Parenting Group”) were an online platform focusing on the Children-
Babies-Maternity market in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”)
and were mainly engaged in the provision of marketing and promotional services
and e-commerce business. As disclosed in the third quarterly report of China
Parenting for the nine months ended 30 September 2017, driven by two-child
policy, along with the higher family income level and the changing consumption
structure, the children-Babies-Maternity expenditure in China was expected
to increase more than RMB30 billion on an annual basis, which could lead
to a growth rate of at least 13% in the industry. Coupled with the advanced
development of internet technology and rapid changes in user behavior, the
boundary of mother-child market continues to expand, and application scenarios
together with traffic entrance will become broader. The China Parenting Group
has grasped the opportunities and continued to promote smart family lifestyle.
Being introduced by the families, it extended traditional simple mother-child
services to broader areas including services relating to finance, health care,
tourism, insurance, early childhood education and family entertainment.

Hydra Capital SPC is an unlisted investment fund, which was incorporated and
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the laws of the Cayman
Islands for the purpose of carrying out the investment strategy, and its investment
portfolio included certain online games. As disclosed in the newsletter of Hydra
Capital SPC dated 3 February 2017, the main focus of Hydra Capital SPC in
2017 would be the revamp of the two flagship games: SanGuo Mobile and
NBA Heroes. SanGuo Mobile 2 has already been launched in August 2016 and
NBA Heroes 2 was expected to launched in October 2017. As a result, the
management of Hydra Capital SPC expected to stabilise Hydra Capital SPC’s
revenue in 2017 and 2018 and will continue to closely monitor its revamp and
transition progress.

Convoy Global (stock code: 1019) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Convoy Group”) were primarily engaged in the independent financial
advisory business, money lending business, proprietary investment business,
assets management business, corporate finance business and securities dealing
business. As disclosed in the interim report of Convoy Global for the six months
ended 30 June 2017, in order to pursue its vision of becoming one of the leading
financial groups across Asia, that enterprise has formulated three short-term
missions, (i) to establish a comprehensive financial services platform in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and Mainland China; (i) to materialise the synergies
among different business segments and locations; and (jii) to improve the working
capital sufficiency of the Convoy Group.

Target Insurance (stock code: 6161) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Target Insurance Group”) were principally engaged in the writing of
general insurance business. As disclosed in the annual results announcement of
Target Insurance for the year ended 31 December 2017, Target Insurance Group
will continue to direct their effort towards the development of their business on
other types of motor vehicles. In addition to online business platforms for private
cars and commercial vehicles which provide a channel for Target Insurance
Group to reach out to their customers directly, Target Insurance Group will also
explore different distribution channels to further grow their motor business. Target
Insurance Group are proactively forming alliances with other business partners
to provide all rounded services to their customers and extend their reach to their
target customers. Target Insurance Group’s dedicated customer service team
can promptly attend to all customers’ enquiries and provide a better experience to
their customers.

B
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10.

Finsoft (stock code: 8018) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Finsoft Group”) were principally engaged in the provision of financial trading
software solutions, provision of other internet financial platforms, provision of
referral services, money lending business, assets investments and provision of
corporate finance advisory services. As disclosed in the third quarterly report of
Finsoft for the nine months ended 30 September 2017, in consideration of the
volatile global financial market, the Finsoft Group believes diversification of its
business segments will allow it to maintain a healthy financial profile and secure
sustainable growth. Looking ahead, the Finsoft Group will seek cooperation and
acquisition opportunities with business partners in various fields to enhance long-
term profitability. The Finsoft Group will also implement cautious budget control
policies to bring sustainable return to the shareholders.

GET Mdream is an unlisted company, which was incorporated and registered
in Hong Kong. GET Mdream is a member of the Professional Insurance Brokers
Association and a registered MPF Intermediary of Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority, and is principally engaged in long term (including investment
linked long term) insurance and general insurance lines of business and is also
engaged in the MPF schemes brokerage business in Hong Kong. As disclosed
in the booklet of GET Mdream published in July 2017, it upholds the spirit of
putting customers first and creating value and strives to expand new business,
and expects to build a triple-win situation among customers, companies and
colleagues in the next ten years.

First Credit (stock code: 8215) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“First Credit Group”) were principally engaged in the money lending business. As
disclosed in the annual results announcement of First Credit for the year ended
31 December 2017, looking ahead, the First Credit Group will maintain healthy
development of different business segments to consolidate its business portfolio
and diversify its source of income, with the ultimate aim to maximise value for
shareholders. While leveraging its experience in money lending business, the First
Credit Group would like to develop its business and to further enlarge its customer
base in different territories including Mainland China and Macau in light of the
keen competition in the ever-changing local market. Meanwhile, the First Credit
Group will also closely monitor its capital base from time to time and will pursue
corresponding solutions where necessary in order to maintain sufficient funding
for different potential opportunities.

CK Hutchison (stock code: 1) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“CK Hutchison Group”) were principally engaged in five core businesses: ports
and related services, retail, infrastructure, energy, and telecommunications.
As disclosed in the annual results announcement of CK Hutchison for the
year ended 31 December 2017, the CK Hutchison Group is built on strong
foundations of business diversification and resilience and will continue to pursue
these fundamental objectives and exercise prudent capital management on all
investment activities and strict financial discipline in managing its businesses.
The CK Hutchison Group will also maintain a healthy liquidity and debt profile
consistent with its current investment grade ratings.

Kingsoft (stock code: 3888) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Kingsoft Group”) were principally engaged in the research and development of
games, and provision of online games, mobile games and casual game services;
provision of cloud storage and cloud computation services; and design, research
and development and sales and marketing of the office software products and
services of WPS Office. As disclosed in the annual results announcement of
Kingsoft for the year ended 31 December 2017, Kingsoft Group will continue
to enhance WPS technology and product innovation incorporating Al features
and cloud computing functions in order to provide better and more productive
solutions for its users. Meanwhile, Kingsoft Group will also set their eyes on
global presence seeking to broaden their international reach by capitalizing on
WPS’ competitive edge in the mobile arena. Kingsoft Group believe that Kingsoft
Group will maintain strong growth momentum and achieve more breakthroughs in
2018, and Kingsoft Group will mark Kingsoft’s 30th anniversary with a triumphant
performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AP Group

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 13 June
2016, 238 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 in relation to the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in AP Group Investment Holdings Limited (B B &£ B2 AR A
7)) (“AP”, together with its subsidiaries, referred to as the “AP Group”).

On 13 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“SP
Agreement”) with Fragrant River Entertainment Culture (Holdings) Limited as
vendor and Universe International Holdings Limited (now known as Universe
International Financial Holdings Limited) as guarantor pursuant to which the
Group conditionally agreed to acquire, and the vendor conditionally agreed
to sell 51% equity interest of AP, at the consideration of HK$20,400,000,
subject to downward adjustments as described below, which shall be settled
by way of allotment and issue of 40,800,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company, credited as fully paid, at an issue price of HK$0.50 per share to the
vendor (or its nominee), on the date of completion. The AP Group is principally
engaged in the provision of education and training programmes in relation to
self-improvement and self-enhancement in Hong Kong. Completion of the
acquisition took place on 1 July 2016.

In accordance with the SP Agreement, in the event that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of AP attributable to the owners of AP from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2017 (the “FY 2016 & 2017”) (which will only
include income or gain generated by activities in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the AP Group) (the “FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit”) is less than
HK$16,000,000, the vendor shall, and the guarantor shall procure the vendor
to, pay to the Group the Adjustment Amount (as defined below) in cash within
14 business days after the audited consolidated financial statements of AP for
FY 2016 & 2017 are available.

The adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) will be determined in
accordance with the formula set out below:

Adjustment Amount = HK$20,400,000 — (FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit/2) x 5 x
51%

For the purpose of adjustment, where the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit is a
negative figure, the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit shall be deemed to be zero.

The audited consolidated financial statements of AP for FY 2016 & 2017
is being prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and audited (“Special Audit”), at the cost of the AP Group, by an
accounting firm as approved by the Group, subject to adjustment for any
non-recurring items. Based on preliminary review and analysis on the latest
available unaudited financial information of AP, it is likely that AP will record a
consolidated loss after tax for FY 2016 & 2017. The unsatisfactory financial
performance of the AP Group was mainly due to the keen competition in the
industry and the implementation of business plan lagging behind. In December
2017, AP Group appointed the Group’s auditor, RSM Hong Kong, for the
calculation of the Adjustment Amount and RSM Hong Kong is still in the
process of preparing and finalising the Special Audit and the calculation of
Adjustment Amount. Upon completion of the Special Audit, the Group will, in
case the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit is less than HK$16,000,000, request the
vendor to pay the Adjustment Amount pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the SP Agreement. Further announcement will be made as soon as possible
by the Company in relation to the Adjustment Amount once it is ascertained.

The turnover and net profit recorded by the AP Group for the Year were
approximately HK$15,325,000 and approximately HK$813,000 respectively.
The Board will closely monitor the financial performance of the AP Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

Investment in Jun Yang Energy

In 2016, Lucky Famous Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
acquired approximately 35% of the issued share capital of Jun Yang
Energy Holdings Limited (& 5 82 JR 1% % & FR 2 A1) (formerly known as Jun
Yang Solar Power Investment Holdings Limited) (“Jun Yang Energy”) at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$40,290,000. On 24 February 2017, the
Group entered into a shareholder loan agreement in relation to the provision of
a loan in the principal amount of US$3,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,230,000) to Jun Yang Energy. The loan was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand. The loan was in proportion to the Group’s
shareholding in Jun Yang Energy when compared with those made by the
other shareholders of Jun Yang Energy. Details of this shareholder loan
agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 24 February
2017. Jun Yang Energy and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Jun Yang Energy
Group”) are principally engaged in the solar energy business with a focus
on development, construction, operation and maintenance of power station
projects in the PRC. During the Year, the Group recorded a share of loss
of an associate from the investment in Jun Yang Energy of approximately
HK$15,644,000, including the share of impairment loss on plant and
equipment and loss on disposal of plant and equipment in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$24,335,000. Such impairment loss on the plant
and equipment and loss on disposal of plant and equipment were mainly
related to the relocation of a power plant during the second half of 2017.

The worsening global warming has created unprecedented challenges to the
world. Thus, environmental protection has become a national strategic priority
and developing new energy sources even tops the agenda of the Chinese
government. The National Energy Administration has urged the country to
follow the energy reform roadmap and timetable which clearly states that the
PRC would achieve a solar power generation capacity of 500,000,000KW by
2030 and realise its energy transformation and renewable energy targets by
2050. To maintain the healthy development of the new energy industry, the
Central government and local governments have continued to embark on a
series of supportive policies to facilitate the rapid growth of distributed solar
power generation. Benefiting from such policies, the Jun Yang Energy Group
has been able to seize the opportunities created from the PRC’s photovoltaic
projects and has realised growth ambitions with a higher power generation
capacity during the Year.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

REREBGEET

R =Z—7X4F » Lucky Famous Limited (A A& —FE &2 &
BB R A)) LA 4838 & (840,290,000 ST IR B8 B 5 85 R
BRERAR(AIBEBSLEREIERARAR) ([EHEE
B HIBBREHEITRA - M_T—+F-_A=+TA -
AEBMIL—HREER B Z - RAEBAEGERIE
H—2 K $ % 53,500,000% 7T (HHE 1 4927,230,0007%8
TLIMER - BRAEER 28 RAREKEE - B
IR ARNEBREIGEER 2 IRELL D) - HRBEGEERE
AR R FTIR M 2 BESRIEL - ZIRERE R B 2 B a#mn
ARRHBAZT—tF-_A=-+mAZA% - BG4
BREWBAR (B EGERER ) ET2NRFELE
KGR (IR EEWNER 2% - BN 2ERE
&) o AEBIRBEREEGRRZANFEREG—HEER
AIE B #) £15,644,00078 7T + BIEFE (LB E K& HR
BB R L ERE &% E 1B 48 5E424,335,000% 7T °
EARE MR ENREBE R ERE MERENBETD
FERRE_T—LF TEFRBEEMATE -

FIERL A BRE A RSEB R RGNS - I8
BRECENBEREEOEER AR EEFMERK AT
BRI EFR2E ] PEBRERBREEMERE
AR B R R - 2 AR HN20304F - KFGREE
BAERERSETE - WRE2050F sLREEA M 7] 4
BERTEHIEIZ - AREFEREENEBERE  FRAR
Hh 75 BN B R — RIBRIFBUR - REDHRAA5EE
BERRER - EGRERERRNHDTENECK - MEH
Bz HRBETHRBER AERAFENLEEH
BIER o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Discontinued Operation
Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business

During the Year, the turnover and net profit of the business of the provision
of insurance and mandatory provident fund schemes brokerage services
(“Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business”) were approximately
HK$29,940,000 and approximately HK$3,123,000 respectively.

On 21 March 2017, the Group disposed of an aggregate of approximately
32% of the issued share capital of GET Mdream to two independent third
parties at the cash consideration of HK$2,812,500 and HK$187,500
respectively. The Group recorded a gain on such disposal of approximately
HK$1,845,000. Immediately after completion of the disposal, the Group held
approximately 19% of the issued share capital of GET Mdream which was
then accounted for as an AFS Financial Asset in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, and GET Mdream ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company. Meanwhile, the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business ceased to be one of the principal business activities of the Group.
While the investment returns and benefits from GET Mdream were not
as satisfactory as expected, the Company considered that the disposal
represented a good chance to refocus its resources on its core businesses
and other investments which would bring higher returns to the Shareholders
as and when opportunities arise. Details of the disposal are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

During the Year, the turnover from continuing operations of the Group was
approximately HK$187,780,000, representing a decrease of approximately
3.0% as compared with the turnover from continuing operations of the Group
of approximately HK$193,534,000 for 2016. The turnover from continuing
operations of the Group for the Year was mainly contributed by the turnover of
(i) the Software Business of approximately HK$109,209,000; (i) the Corporate
Management Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business of approximately
HK$60,949,000; and (jii) the provision of education and training programmes
of approximately HK$16,784,000.

Gross Profit
The gross profit from continuing operations of the Group for the Year

decreased by approximately 11.6% to approximately HK$116,633,000 from
approximately HK$131,932,000 for 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

Finance Costs

The finance costs incurred from the continuing operations of the Group
decreased from approximately HK$22,562,000 for 2016 to approximately
HK$13,720,000 for the Year. The decrease in finance costs incurred was
mainly due to the early redemption of part of the loan notes by the Company
during the Year.

Loss for the Year

The Group recorded a net loss from continuing and discontinued
operations of approximately HK$499,210,000 for the Year (2016: net
profit of approximately HK$34,994,000). The net loss for the Year was
mainly attributable to (i) the segment loss of the Securities Investment
Business of approximately HK$332,435,000 for the Year (2016: profit
of approximately HK$68,597,000); (ii) the segment loss of the Software
Business of approximately HK$137,321,000, including the Impairment Loss
on Goodwill of HK$182,000,000 for the Year (2016: profit of approximately
HK$33,494,000, which was after the deduction of the Impairment Loss
on Goodwill of HK$30,000,000); (iii) the share of loss of an associate
of approximately HK$15,644,000 for the Year (2016: share of loss of
approximately HK$5,550,000); and (iv) the finance cost incurred from
the continuing operations of the Group of approximately HK$13,720,000
(2016: approximately HK$22,562,000) which mainly included the interest
of approximately HK$10,301,000 on loan notes issued by the Company
during the period from April 2015 to January 2016 (2016: approximately
HK$19,263,000).

The loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$512,327,000 for the Year as compared with the profit attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$17,092,000 for 2016.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group generally financed its operations by (i) internal resources; (ii)
proceeds from the disposal of the securities investments; (jii) proceeds raised
from the 2017 Rights Issue (as defined below) conducted by the Company;
and (iv) proceeds from the disposal of the Property (as defined below) during
the Year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposit amounted to approximately HK$104,193,000 (31
December 2016: approximately HK$89,988,000), which were principally
denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars (2016:
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars).

As disclosed in the 2017 third quarterly report of the Company, the
outstanding principal amount (excluding loan interest payable) of the 9%
Loan Notes which matured in October 2017 was HK$130,000,000 and
the outstanding principal amount of the non-interest bearing Convertible
Notes with a maturity date falling in December 2017 was approximately
HK$75,208,000. The Company had a right to redeem the Convertible Notes
by the issue and delivery by the Company of an interest-bearing promissory
note in favour of the noteholders in a principal amount equal to 100% of
the then outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes upon their
maturity. Details of the terms and conditions of the Convertible Notes are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 23 November 2015 and the Company’s
announcements dated 13 August 2015 and 16 September 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As reported in 2017 interim report of the Company, taking into account the
then prevailing financial position of the Group and funding needs to repay
the 9% Loan Notes and the Convertible Notes in full upon their respective
maturity, the Board has resolved to dispose of part of its securities investment
and a property owned by the Group.

On 31 July 2017, the Group entered into a provisional agreement with an
independent third party pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to
dispose of 100% of the issued shares of Talent Vision Limited (“Talent Vision”)
and all the loan owing by Talent Vision to the Group as at completion at an
aggregate consideration of HK$20,000,000 in cash (“Original Disposal”).
The principal asset of Talent Vision was a property (“Property”) located
in Hong Kong. In order to save time and costs, the parties agreed that
the Group would dispose of the Property (as opposed to the disposal of
Talent Vision which held the Property under the Original Disposal). On 27
September 2017, the Original Disposal was cancelled and the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party (as
nominee of the purchaser under the Original Disposal) pursuant to which the
Group conditionally agreed to dispose of the Property at a consideration of
HK$20,000,000 in cash (“Property Disposal”). The net proceeds from the
Property Disposal, after deducting the expenses directly attributable thereto,
were approximately HK$18,023,000, which were used for redeeming part of
the 9% Loan Notes in the outstanding principal amount of HK$130,000,000
and interest accrued thereon which became mature in October 2017. In
view of the downtrend of the retail market and the uncertainty of the property
market at the material time, it was uncertain whether the Property would enjoy
any future capital appreciation. The Directors considered that the Property
Disposal represented an opportunity for the Group to realise its investment in
the Property which was leased to and occupied by a retailer for merchandise
of mobile phones (including smartphones) and to improve the Group’s
liquidity to finance the redemption of the 9% Loan Notes. Completion of the
Property Disposal took place on the date of signing of the sale and purchase
agreement on 27 September 2017. Details of the Original Disposal and the
Property Disposal are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 31 July
2017 and 27 September 2017 respectively.

Please also refer to the sub-section headed “Business Review - Continuing
Operations: Securities Investment Business” in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this report for further details on the
disposal of securities investment of the Group during the Year.

As at 31 December 2017, the 9% Loan Notes and the Convertible Notes have
been redeemed in full by the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

2017 Rights Issue

On 21 December 2016, the Board proposed a rights issue (“2017 Rights
Issue”) on the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held on
the record date at a subscription price of HK$0.52 per share (each, a “2017
Rights Share”) which represented (i) a discount of approximately 7.1% to
the closing price of HK$0.56 per share of the Company as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 21 December 2016, being the date of the underwriting
agreement; (i) a discount of approximately 4.9% to the theoretical ex-
entitlement price of approximately HK$0.547 per share of the Company,
based on the closing price of HK$0.56 per share of the Company as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 21 December 2016; and (iii) a discount of
approximately 4.1% to the average closing price of HK$0.542 per share for
the last five consecutive trading days immediately prior to 21 December 2016.
The Company considered using the entire amount of the net proceeds from
the 2017 Rights Issue and its internal resources to redeem part of the 9%
Loan Notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$61,000,000 and the 10%
per annum notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 in full
S0 as to generally reduce the indebtedness of the Group and save the related
interest expenses. The Board also considered that the 2017 Rights Issue
provided an opportunity for the Shareholders to maintain their proportionate
interests in the Company.

Upon the completion of the 2017 Rights Issue on 15 February 2017,
148,149,412 ordinary shares of the Company were issued. The aggregate
nominal value of the 2017 Rights Shares was approximately HK$1,481,494.
The net proceeds from the 2017 Rights Issue were approximately
HK$74,340,000, and on this basis, the net issue price of each 2017 Rights
Share was approximately HK$0.49. Details of the 2017 Rights Issue are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 21 December 2016, 10 January
2017, 17 January 2017, 14 February 2017 and 17 February 2017 and the
Company’s prospectus dated 20 January 2017.

With all the net proceeds of the 2017 Rights Issue and internal resources
of the Group, the Company early redeemed the 10% per annum loan
notes issued by the Company in full and the 9% Loan Notes issued by the
Company partially on 21 March 2017 in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$71,000,000 together with all interests accrued and outstanding up to
21 March 2017, being a total sum of approximately HK$74,062,000. It was
expected that the Company would save interest expenses by redeeming the
loan notes ahead of their maturity. Details of early redemption of notes are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 20 February 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$705,680,000 (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$1,469,512,000), whereas the total liabilities were approximately
HK$56,847,000 (31 December 2016: HK$387,062,000). The gearing ratio of
the Group, calculated as total liabilities over total assets, was approximately
8.1% (31 December 2016: approximately 26.3%).

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year
(2016: Nil).

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
approximately US$80,000, HK$1,016,000 and HK$1,008,000 (in aggregate,
approximately HK$2,645,000) (31 December 2016: in aggregate,
approximately HK$2,638,000) represented deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities to the extent of HK$2,500,000 (31 December 2016:
approximately HK$2,500,000) granted to the Group. Such banking facilities
were for the credit limit of corporate credit cards which have been mainly used
for certain insignificant online purchase in relation to the Software Business.
The pledged bank deposits were in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars
and Hong Kong dollars with terms of 6 months, 6 months and 31 days
respectively and at fixed interest rates of 0.2% per annum, 0.25% per annum
and 0.3% per annum respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had undrawn banking facilities
of approximately HK$2,908,000 (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$2,902,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not hold any margin trading account.
As at 31 December 2016, listed securities held by the Group with a total
carrying amount of approximately HK$187,211,000 were charged in favour of
a brokerage firm as collateral for the Group’s liabilities in respect of its margin
trading account.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

RISK FACTORS
Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the Year, the business activities of the Group were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. The United States dollar is the
main currency transacted by the Group. Since the Hong Kong dollar remains
pegged to the United States dollar within a defined range, the Group is not
exposed to any significant foreign exchange risk against the United States
dollar and therefore has not entered into any foreign exchange contract as
hedging measures. The Directors did not consider the Group was significantly
exposed to any foreign currency exchange risk. Notwithstanding the above,
the Group manages its foreign currency risk against other currencies by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and may use
hedging derivatives, such as foreign currency forward contracts, to manage its
foreign currency risk as appropriate.

Financial Risk

The total assets of the Group of approximately HK$705,680,000 as at 31
December 2017 mainly comprised the AFS Financial Assets of approximately
HK$37,149,000, the FVTPL Financial Assets of approximately HK$9,656,000
and goodwill of approximately HK$318,356,000. The Group’s AFS Financial
Assets and FVTPL Financial Assets are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price
risk due to the fluctuations on the fair value of the AFS Financial Assets and
the FVTPL Financial Assets. The Directors regularly review the exposure of the
Group to the equity security price risk on the AFS Financial Assets and the
FVTPL Financial Assets. Besides, the Directors closely monitor the financial
performance and operation of each CGU containing goodwill. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The Group
considered that the potential impairment losses on goodwill are non-cash in
nature, and they do not affect the Group’s cash flow condition but reflect the
deteriorating profitability of related cash-generating unit containing goodwiill.

Operation Risk

The Group is exposed to the operational risks in relation to each of its
business divisions. To manage the operational risk, the management of each
business division is responsible for monitoring the operation and assessing the
operational risks of their respective business divisions. They are responsible
for implementing the Group’s risk management policies and procedures and
shall report any irregularities in connection with the operation of the projects to
the Directors and seek direction.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Credit Risk

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors closely monitor the overall
level of credit exposure and the management is responsible for determination
of credit approvals and monitors the implementation of the collection
procedure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. As at 31 December 2017, the
trade receivables of the Group amounted to approximately HK$24,133,000,
representing 3.7% of the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2017.
The Group considered that the risks would not have material impact on the
Group'’s financial position.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury policy.
The treasury activities are centralised and the investments of the Group
are normally in a diversified portfolio of products and in different industries.
Guidelines are in place to monitor and control the investment risk exposure
and the capital management. The Board closely reviews the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities,
and other commitments can meet its funding requirements at all times.

MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Apart from those disclosed in the sub-sections headed “Business Review —
Continuing Operations: Securities Investment Business”, “Business Review —
Discontinued Operation: Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business”
and “Financial Review — Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure”
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this report,

the Group had no material acquisition or disposal during the Year.
MATERIAL ASSET IMPAIRMENT

During the Year, the Group recorded the Impairment Loss on Goodwill of
HK$182,000,000, representing approximately 36.5% of the net loss of the
Group for the Year, which was considered as a material asset impairment
during the Year. Based on the valuation provided by an independent valuer,
details of the Impairment Loss on Goodwill are as follows:

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36, an impairment
loss shall be recognised for the CGU if the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the CGU. The Group should conduct
goodwill impairment review annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

Subsequent to the publication of the interim results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2017, the Board noted that the financial performance
of the Software Business did not pick up as expected and has further
declined. In view of the decrease in revenue from the Software Business of
approximately HK$81,181,000 for the nine months ended 30 September 2017
as compared to that of approximately HK$90,490,000 for the corresponding
period in 2016, the Board considered that this was an indicator of potential
impairment on the carrying amount of the goodwill of Boom Max Group, the
CGU of the Software Business. Accordingly, the Company appointed Ascent
Partners Valuation Service Limited as independent valuer in assisting in the
valuation of the CGU in relation to the Boom Max Group as at 30 September
2017 (“Valuation Date”).

During the nine months ended 30 September 2017, the Group recorded an
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$182,000,000 (year ended
31 December 2016: HK$30,000,000) in relation to the Boom Max Group. The
impairment loss, which was non-cash in nature, did not affect the Group’s
working capital condition.

Calculation of impairment loss

As at 30 September 2017, the carrying amount of the Boom Max Group
before impairment was approximately HK$795 million (31 December 2016:
HK$848 million) which comprised (i) goodwill of approximately HK$470
million (31 December 2016: HK$500 million) attributable to the Group’s
65.177% interest in the Boom Max Group; (ii) goodwill of approximately
HK$251 million (31 December 2016: HK$267 million) attributable to the non-
controlling interests in the Boom Max Group; and (jii) net operating assets of
approximately HK$74 million of the Boom Max Group (31 December 2016:
HK$81 million).

As at 30 September 2017, the recoverable amount of 100% interest of the
Boom Max Group was approximately HK$516 million (31 December 2016:
HK$807 million) (equivalent to approximately US$66,500,000 (31 December
2016: US$104,041,000)), being an amount shown in the valuation report on
the Boom Max Group as at 30 September 2017 prepared by the independent
valuer which was determined based on the value in use (“VIU”) using the
valuation method of discounted cash flow. It requires estimates concerning
future cash flows and associated discount rate and growth rate assumptions
which are based on the management’s expectation of future business
performance and prospects of the Boom Max Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The impairment loss on goodwill of 100% interest of the Boom Max Group
of approximately HK$279 million for the nine months ended 30 September
2017 reduces the carrying amount of the Boom Max Group of approximately
HK$795 million as at 30 September 2017 to its recoverable amount of
approximately HK$516 million as at 30 September 2017. After the allocation
of impairment loss to non-controlling interests, the Group recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$182 million in relation to
the Boom Max Group for the nine months ended 30 September 2017 with
reference to its holding of 65.177% interest in the Boom Max Group.

Key basis and assumptions adopted for projected cash flow of
the Software Business

The expected average sales growth rate during the forecast period from the
year of 2018 to 2022 (“Forecast Period”) in 2017 was approximately 13.77%
while the expected average sales growth rate during the forecast period from
2017 to 2021 (“Previous Forecast Period”) in 2016 was approximately 14.47%.
As a result of the declining financial performance and the decrease in the
turnover of the Software Business for the nine months ended 30 September
2017 by approximately 10% as compared to that for the corresponding period
in 2016 due to various factors which included the slower-than-expected
development pace in the Asian market, the volatility of the global economy,
the keen market competition in the I.T. market, the decline in the demand for
PCs, the management of the Group revised the 5-year cash flow forecast of
the Boom Max Group with reference to the actual financial results of the Boom
Max Group for the nine months ended 30 September 2017 and the then
projected financial results of the Boom Max Group for the three months ending
31 December 2017, which resulted in the decrease in the recoverable amount
of the CGU of the Software Business. As a result, the projected average sales
growth rate for the Forecast Period in 2017 was lower than the projection for
the Previous Forecast Period made in 2016.

There were no significant changes in the basis adopted in the preparation
of the projected cash flow for the Forecast Period in 2017 as compared
with those adopted for the Previous Forecast Period in 2016, except for
the application of the declining revenue of the Boom Max Group in the nine
months ended 30 September 2017 as a base for the projected cash flow for
the Forecast Period in 2017. The expected average sales growth rate during
the Forecast Period was determined with reference to a research on software
industry conducted on an international research platform for companies,
industries and mergers and acquisitions deals analysis while similar approach
was adopted for determining the expected average sales growth rate during
the Previous Forecast Period in 2016. The expected annual gross profit
margins and annual net profit margins during the Forecast Period in 2017 were
predicted to be maintained at the historical levels in 2016 and 2017 given that
the I.T. market and the global economy have not changed significantly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWE TN

The VIU of the CGU of the Software Business was developed through the
application of the weighted-average-cost-of-capital (“WACC”) to discount the
free cash flows to the CGU. The WACC was calculated by taking into account
the cost of equity and the cost of debt. The cost of equity is calculated
according to the Capital Asset Pricing Model.
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30 September 31 December

2017 2016

—ZT—tF ZE—RF

hA=+H +ZA=+—H

Risk-free Rate A8 [ e 6 1.71% 1.97%
Levered Beta BEREEE 0.946 0.951
Market Risk Premium miGRE R RE 14.65% 9.06%
Size Premium BIEEE 5.60% 5.60%
Cost of Equity TP AR 21.18% 16.19%

The 10-year Hong Kong Sovereign Bond Yield as at 30 September 2017, (i.e.
the Valuation Date), was used as the risk-free rate of Hong Kong because
government bonds are regarded as risk-free. This rate, as obtained from an
international research database, was approximately 1.71% (31 December
2016: 1.97%). As the Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and the
principal operating subsidiaries of the Boom Max Group are located in Hong
Kong, reference was made to the Hang Seng Index annualised expected
return when determining the expected market return of Hong Kong.
The expected market return of Hong Kong, a forward-looking rate, was
approximately 16.36% (31 December 2016: 11.03%). It is the annualised
expected rate of return of Hong Kong equity market proxied as the market
capitalisation weighted average of the expected internal rate of return of each
company in the Hang Seng Index. The internal rate of return is derived by using
the dividend discount model based on estimates from market consensus
taking into account the dividend yield, growth rate and payout ratio by an
international research database. Therefore, the market risk premium, which
was the difference between the expected market return and the risk-free
rate, was taken to be 14.65% (31 December 2016: 9.06%) based on the rate
quoted from an international research database. The market risk premium is
the additional required return over the risk free rate when investing in equity
market. A small company risk premium of 5.60% (31 December 2016: 5.60%),
suggested by an international consulting firm based on its research and
database, was applied to the relatively small size of the Boom Max Group.
The small company risk premium can be added to cost of capital estimation
models as an adjustment for the additional risk of smaller companies relative
to large companies. The research done by the international consulting firm
provides different size premiums for different companies with various range of
market capitalisation. In the research, all companies on the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE”) were ranked by the combined market capitalisation of

28  GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

EENERBRNEA-ZE—+FNAA=TH(AMEER
) Z10FHBEBRTEFREE - ABFEHFERA
ERER - RERBEARBBEMREER  ZHEOA
171%(ZF—RF+=-A=+—H 1 1.97%) - ARAK
A FHEE R B T & BoomMaxE B 8 = BLEMH B LA
BN ES - N EE B BENMSRRERI2EE
EIREIBHF R EIR - BATEHNISEIRE (AR
MEIEIE) W AR1636%(—E— A NE+_-_A=+—8:
11.08%) - BEREMGZ EHRFR(LERE - HEAE
BEFR S AR ZINEF M EEAABERERAE -
RIER el 3R R THAR IR T 35 L Ak TS et A AR B B IR AR Y
STEAY  EPit REEAMEIE BRI E K
K ERRBREZFER - Bt - miSRAKEE(AITE
M5 RERERRTEZ 25) B14.65%(ZF—X
F+ZA=+—H :9.06%) * HERBRHATEIRER
HKFEMERA - MSEBEEBRERETIHERER
BRI EmHAREINERER - BEERFEREQBIREEFE
REIREREZ/ DA AREREEA5.60%(ZF—X
F+-—A=+—8 : 5.60%) I &= L&/ EIBoom
Max5E @ o /NEI QB ERRE PR INEE AN T EER 2
BB - fERARENENRRAE AR A EELZEE
SNEER - BIBERARHEL A ATRETEL A 7R
HARRANZHE - ZWRF - BOBHISH(THL
BRADOMERRDNRESERRAZSHAHME



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

their eligible equity securities. The companies were then split into 10 equally
populated groups or deciles. Eligible companies traded on the NYSE and the
Nasdaqg National Market (“NASDAQ”) were then assigned to the appropriate
deciles according to their capitalisation in relation to the NYSE breakpoints.
The market capitalisation of the Boom Max Group falls within the smallest
range stated in the research and the small company risk premium was
accordingly applied. The small company risk premium was calculated over the
years from 1963 to 2015 during which the actual return in excess of risk free
rate minus the return in excess of risk free rate as predicted by Capital Asset
Pricing Model. The levered beta of approximately 0.946 (31 December 2016:
0.951) was derived from the average of unlevered beta of approximately 0.837
(81 December 2016: 0.868) guideline public companies in similar industries.

BERENWNE DN

B - ZERREES AT REEFANFERETS
I8 - REABR AT R HTER 2B™iE ([ AfiEx )
HEITEEMNAGERKAR  BREANBERFMEBNTES
WM ARER T DA% - Boom Maxt: @ 2 Ti{EBHI5E
R 2 B/ N R I R PR AR AR /DN A R RUBRR (B o /N
ARRBEERRENR —NAA=FEZ_FT—AFHH
BRERBRFENERERAERBENEETERA
BANERNERBRFEBRAESE - ERCEBEY
0.946(ZZF— X E+-A=+—8 : 0.951) HREALT
EEmA AR ESEER B EEN0837(ZT—KR
F+-A=+—H:0868)8H-

Unlevered Beta

30 September 31 December
2017 2016
—ZT—tF ZERF
hB=+H +=ZA=+—H

Guideline Public Companies B ol e s AN
Absolute Software Corp Absolute Software Corp 0.980 0.847
F-Secure OYJ F-Secure OYJ 0.853 0.954
Trend Micro Inc Trend Micro Inc 0.933 0.924
Advenica AB Advenica AB 0.684 0.691
AVG Technologies AVG Technologies N/ATRERA 0.867
Check Point Software Technologies Ltd. Check Point Software Technologies Ltd. 0.875 0.836
NQ Mobile Inc. NQ Mobile Inc. 0.771 0.959
Symantec Corporation Symantec Corporation 0.766 0.868
Average of unlevered beta Average of unlevered beta 0.837 0.868

The levered beta is calculated by multiplying the unlevered beta to the
multiple of (1 minus 16.50% of Hong Kong tax rate) and the ratio of debt to
equity and then plus 1. As at the Valuation Date, the average debt to equity
ratio of the comparable companies of approximately 15.60% (31 December
2016: 11.43%) was adopted as proxy to estimate the debt to equity ratio
of the Boom Max Group. The amount of cost of debt adopted was 7% (31
December 2016: 7%) which was the sum of International Monetary Fund
(IMF) Hong Kong lending rate as at the Valuation Date of 5% (31 December
2016: 5%) and an additional percentage of 2% (31 December 2016: 2%).
International Monetary Fund (IMF) Hong Kong lending rate of 5% was Hong
Kong prime lending rate that banks generally charged the most creditworthy
clients as at the Valuation Date. An additional percentage of 2% was added
to the cost of debt because of the credit risk for lending money to the
Group. The WACC of the Boom Max Group as at 30 September 2017 was
approximately 19.11% (31 December 2016: 15.13%). The terminal growth
rate of approximately 3.10% (31 December 2016: 3.28%), which was the
average of the inflation rates of Hong Kong from 2007 to 2016, was applied in
the valuation as of the Valuation Date.
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There were no significant changes in the methodology and sources of market
data applied in the valuation for the nine months ended 30 September 2017
except for (i) the removal of one of the guideline public companies, namely,
AVG Technologies which was delisted from NYSE in September 2017 and
no information on that company was publicly available since then; and (i) the
market risk premium of 14.65% as at 30 September 2017 rose from 9.06%
as at 31 December 2016. Such change in the market risk premium led to an
increase in the WACC from 15.13% as at 31 December 2016 to 19.11% as at
30 September 2017. The projected cash flow for the Forecast Period in 2017
was not affected by the change in the comparable companies. Companies
satisfying the following criteria, are adopted as comparable companies for the
valuation: (1) the comparable company is principally engaged in corporate
management solutions and |.T. contract services related business; (2) the
principal business of the comparable company is diversified geographically;
(3) the shares of the comparable company are listed on major stock exchange
and have been actively traded for a reasonable period of time; and (4) detailed
financial and operational information in respect of the comparable company
are publicly available.

The valuation method of discounted cash flow was adopted for the calculation
of the VIU of the CGU of the Software Business. In accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets, a CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated shall be tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the CGU may be impaired, by comparing the
carrying amount of the CGU, including the goodwill, with the recoverable
amount of the CGU, which is the higher of the VIU and the fair value less costs
of disposal. The valuation method of fair value less costs of disposal was not
adopted as there were limited transactions of comparable CGU available in
the market for the determination of fair value after having researched on an
international research database, all announcements on the websites of the
Stock Exchange, the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and the financial reports and publicly available information of
listed companies in Hong Kong. In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 36, it will not be possible to measure fair value less costs of disposal
because there is no reasonable basis for making a reliable estimate of the price
at which an orderly transaction to sell the CGU would take place between
market participants at the measurement date under the then prevailing current
market condition. On the other hand, costs of disposal of transactions can
vary on a case-by-case basis and such information is not easily assessable. As
such, VIU was adopted as the recoverable amount of the CGU. The valuation
method of discounted cash flow has been consistently applied in the valuation
on the CGU of the Software Business since 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group engaged Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an
independent valuer, as the valuer to perform the valuation on the CGU of the
Software Business of the Group as at 31 December 2016, 30 September
2017 and 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount of the CGU of the Software
Business was higher than the carrying amount of this CGU. Therefore, no
further impairment loss was recorded after 30 September 2017. Details of the
impairment test for the CGU containing goodwill are disclosed in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 95 employees (31
December 2016: 89 employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s
remuneration policy is based on principles of equality of opportunity,
motivation, performance orientation and market-competitiveness and in
accordance with the statutory requirements of the respective jurisdictions
where the employees are engaged. Remuneration packages are normally
reviewed on an annual basis. Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits
include provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage and
performance-related bonuses. A share option scheme is also established to
reward and motivate the employees of the Group. Further details of the share
option scheme of the Company are set out in the section headed “Report
of the Directors — Share Option Scheme” in this report and note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2016: Nil).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the capital commitments contracted but not
provided for including development costs of intangible assets and capital
contribution to a joint venture were approximately HK$26,402,000 (31
December 2016: approximately HK$37,424,000). Please refer to note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements for details.
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to 2018, when the Software Business remains as the Group’s
main source of income, the Group will continue to bolster up its technologies
and R&D capabilities, as well as expand and diversify the scope and coverage
of this business segment, in order to explore new drivers for business growth.
It will continue to optimise and upgrade PC-related products to combat severe
virus, cyber attacks and spyware originated from places around the world. At
the same time, it will actively develop application for mobile devices to meet
the demand from the rapidly-growing mobile device market. In addition, the
Group will expand its sales channels and marketing footprint, with an aim to
enlarge its market share in Asia while continuing to maintain its growth in the
United States and Europe markets.

In the future, the Group will accelerate the diversification of its businesses by
aligning its capabilities across the key business drivers. The Group will also
review the profitability and efficiency of its business segments and allocate
resources in a flexible manner to businesses with sustainable development
potential. Having carefully considered and assessed the current circumstances
and uncertainties in the industry, the Board may consider the possibility
of, including but not limited to, scale-down, disposal or discontinuation of
the Money Lending Business and the Securities Investment Business. By
leveraging its extensive business network and expertise in the industry, the
Group will also actively explore investment opportunities in order to optimise
its capital efficiency.

Through its global vision, advanced management methodology, professional
technology team, proven quality resources and asset allocation capabilities,
the Group will continue to maximise its strengths to effectively integrate capital
and business operations, driving the development of all of its businesses.
These efforts will help consolidate the Group’s leading position in the industry
and generate better results for the Shareholders and its investors in the
coming future.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board would like to present this Corporate Governance Report for the
Year.

The Company is committed to maintaining corporate governance of high
standard and quality procedures. The Company has put in place governance
practices with emphasis on the integrity to Shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to Shareholders for the sake
of maximising returns to Shareholders. The Directors acknowledge in the
Corporate Governance Report their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements.

Throughout the Year, the Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate
governance practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
Code Provisions under the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code”), except for Code Provision A.2.1.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises nine members, four executive Directors,
namely Ms. Hung Yvonne (acting Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. Lee Kin Fai, Mr. Wong Hin Shek and Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey,
and five independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Yung, Mr.
Cheng Hong Kei, Ms. Xiao Yiming, Professor Chui Tsan Kit and Professor
Lee T.S.. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Company.

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business and for the
exercise of independent decisions. The Company has five independent
non-executive Directors representing more than half of the Board. They are
professionals in different areas and provide independent opinions based on
their expertise.

There is no relationship among members of the Board and the biographies
of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
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BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Formal notice of at least 14 days will be given in respect of a regular
meeting. For special Board meeting, reasonable notice will be given.
Directors participated, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, in the Board meetings.

The Directors meet regularly at least 4 times a year and participate in person
or through other means of communication. All notices of Board meetings were
given to all Directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of
major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. The Directors can also seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. Minutes of
each Board meeting are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
request by any Director.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of the
legal action against the Directors.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Board
and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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Attendance of Directors at Meetings

During the Year, 22 Board meetings had been held for reviewing business
performance, considering and approving the overall strategies and policies
of the Company and other business matters. The attendance record of each
current and former Director at the Board and Board Committee meetings and
the general meeting of the Company held during the Year is set out in the
table below:
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RAFER  RBT22REZG AR AR BES
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEER EERY
Remuneration Audit Nomination General
Note Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Pzt Ezg FMzEg ERZEE REZEE RRAE
Executive Directors HirEs
Ms. Hung Yvonne ARGt 19/22 N/A TNiE N/A TEA N/A MER 11
Mr. Lee Kin Fai TRIBLE 22/22 N/A TNiE N/A TEA N/A MEA 11
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TEBEEAE 1 11/11 N/A TNiE N/A TEA N/A MEA 0/0
Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey ERA KA 2 4/5 N/A 1@ N/A @ N/A MEA 0/0
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BRERE 3 2/2 N/A A N/A @A N/A TNE 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BN FHTEE
Ms. Xiao Yiming Y184+ 4) 21/22 44 718 4/4 1/1
Professor Chi Tsan Kit BpRE 4 17/22 34 718 3/4 1/1
Professor Lee TS. ERENE 4(i) 19/22 213 77 203 11
Mr. Chan Yung L 4v) 1” 11 11 1/1 0/0
Mr. Cheng Hong Kei R 4) 1 11 1/1 1/1 000
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Notes:

s Mr. Wong Hin Shek was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1
September 2017.

2 Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
2 November 2017.

3. Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni resigned as an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Board with effect from 31 March 2017.

4. With effect from 24 November 2017:

(i) Ms. Xiao Yiming has been re-designated as a member of the Nomination
Committee;

(i) Professor Chui Tsan Kit has been re-designated as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee;

(i) Profession Lee T.S. has ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee;

(iv) Mr. Chan Yung was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee; and

V) Mr. Cheng Hong Kei was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board has annually held the meeting with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive
Directors during the Year.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Since the former Chairman of the Board, Mr. Kuang
Hao Kun Giovanni, resigned on 31 March 2017, Ms. Hung Yvonne, the chief
executive officer and an executive Director, has been appointed as the acting
Chairman of the Board and has temporarily taken up the responsibilities as the
chairman of the Board for a transitional period while the Company may identify
a suitable candidate.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Year, the Board complied at all times with the requirement of the
GEM Listing Rules that at least three independent non-executive Directors sit
in the Board (more than half of the Board members) and at least one of them
has appropriate professional accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, the Company in its best knowledge
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment of new Directors.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. According to the
Company’s Bye-laws, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by Shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment, and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the Board shall be subject to re-election by Shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after appointment. Other relevant Bye-
law states that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general meeting. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors should retire by rotation at
least once every three years.

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. The independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term: Professor Chui Tsan Kit and
Ms. Xiao Yiming are re-appointed for a term of 2 years commencing from
23 April 2017 and 2 January 2018 respectively whereas Professor Lee T.S.,
Mr. Chan Yung and Mr. Cheng Hong Kei are appointed for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 September 2015, 24 November 2017 and 24 November
2017 respectively. All of them are subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years.
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At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Wong Hin
Shek, Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey, Mr. Lee Kin Fai, Ms. Xiao Yiming, Mr. Chan
Yung and Mr. Cheng Hong Kei shall retire pursuant to the Company’s Bye-
laws as stated in the foregoing paragraph. All the above retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommended their re-appointment. The Company’s circular, to be sent to the
Shareholders, contains detailed information of the above Directors as required
by the GEM Listing Rules.

Continuous professional development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every newly appointed
Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Besides, Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading materials on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the current and
former Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a Director of a listed company in compliance with the
CG Code on continuous professional development during the Year.
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TEERRE

Attending or participating in
seminars/workshops,

and/or reading materials relevant
to roles, functions, and duties

Directors of a director of a listed company
HERSHREE LT AT
EEAC  BRRBENHTE
= TG R, SREEEEER
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Hung Yvonne et R e v
Mr. Lee Kin Fal FREBEE v
Mr. Wong Hin Shek (Note 1) FREEEE () v
Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey (Note 2) ERA A (M FE2) v
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Note 3) B4R A& (M 5E3) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Ms. Xiao Yiming 52zt v
Professor Chui Tsan Kit IR BRI v
Professor Lee T.S. PREYE v
Mr. Chan Yung (Note 4) PR %A (M3E4) v
Mr. Cheng Hong Kei (Note 4) BP AR e A (Pfd3E4) v
Notes: Fi5E
1. Mr. Wong Hin Shek was appointed on 1 September 2017. 1. TRHELER T —+FNA—HEZT -

2. Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey was appointed on 2 November 2017.
3. Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni resigned on 31 March 2017.

4. Mr. Chan Yung and Mr. Cheng Hong Kei were appointed on 24 November 2017.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lau Siu Cheong. The Company Secretary
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board so that
Board policy and procedures are followed. He has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge during the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The following statements, which set out the responsibility of Directors in
relation to the financial statements, should be read in conjunction with, but
distinguished from, the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 78 to 83
which acknowledges the reporting responsibility of the Group’s auditor.

Annual report and accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the annual
report and financial statements of the Company for the Year to ensure that
these financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance with
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Accounting policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Group
applies appropriate accounting policies that are consistently adopted
and makes judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting
records which disclose the financial position of the Group upon which financial
statements of the Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Safeguarding assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities within the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, auditor’s remuneration for audit services was HK$1,980,000
(2016: HK$1,500,000) and non-audit services (including but not limited to
professional advice on financial activities, taxation, acquisition and disposal) for
the Year was approximately HK$1,112,000 (2016: HK$851,300).
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main responsibilities of each
level of the structure are summarised below:

Board

. evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensures the
implementation of an effective risk management and internal control
systems; and

. oversees the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

Management

. designs, implements and monitors the risk management and internal
control systems;

. identifies and assesses the risks which threaten the achievement of the
strategic objectives;

. reviews the risk areas and risk level;

o advises on matters raised by employees and the Company;

. coordinates and promotes risk management by ensuring that risk
and activities processes are operated efficiently and effectively and in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules; and

o reports periodically to the Board.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant

Risks

The Group’s risk assessment processes are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

Identifies the risks through discussion with the management and
directors of subsidiaries of the Company. Risk identification and
management questionnaire are used to document the risks identified by
the management and directors of subsidiaries of the Company.

Risk Assessment

Determines the existing controls and analyses risks in terms of
consequence and likelihood in the context of those controls. The
analysis considers the range of potential consequences and how likely
those consequences are to occur. Consequences and likelihood are
combined to produce an estimated level of risk.

Risk Response

Categorises the risks into low risk, medium risk and high risk;

Determines the strategy to handle the risk; and

Develops the risk register and internal control audit plan and determines
the frequency of review and control testing on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

on-going communication of monitoring results to the Board which
enables it to assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk
management during the Year, including:

o risk questionnaires completed by the management, risk register
and internal control audit plan; and

o fact finding report with recommendations on the review and
testing of internal controls on certain operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the management of the
Company, including analysing and appraising the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. For the
enhancement of the quality of the internal audit, the Company has engaged an
external consultant to execute a significant scope of internal audit function to:

o perform the risk assessment based on management evaluation on
identified area and report the findings and recommendations to the
management; and

o conduct various agreed upon reviews on material controls and perform
testing of internal controls on certain operating cycles and areas in
accordance with the Company’s internal control audit plan.

During the Year, the Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee, reviewed
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems which
cover all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions, and assessed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group by reviewing the work
and findings of the internal audit function. Such review is conducted annually.
The Board considered that the systems were effective and adequate for the
Year.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company has adopted its information disclosure policy and related
procedures with regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The policy stipulates the
responsibilities of the Group, key disclosure requirements under Part XIVA of
the SFO and Rules 17.10, 17.11 and 17.11A of the GEM Listing Rules, control
measures and reporting procedures of handling confidential information and
monitoring information disclosure. The Group adopts an upward reporting
approach within the Group for identifying and escalating any potential inside
information to the Board. The policy is reviewed annually and all reasonable
measures have to be taken from time to time to ensure proper safeguards
to prevent any breach of disclosure requirements and to maintain strict
confidentiality of information.
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BOARD COMMITTEES/FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary,
are circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to report
back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the Year, all being
independent non-executive Directors, were as follows:

Professor Lee T.S. (Ceased to be a member on 24 November 2017)

Ms. Xiao Yiming
Professor Chui Tsan Kit (Re-designated as the chairman on 24 November
2017)

Mr. Chan Yung (Appointed as a member on 24 November 2017)

Mr. Cheng Hong Kei (Appointed as a member on 24 November 2017)

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management, and determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model described in the Code Provision B.1.2(c)(j) of the
CG Code is adopted); and establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has performed the following
major tasks:

o reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company;

. determined and made recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management; and

o assessed performance of executive Directors.
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 16(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the member of the current senior management of the Group by band for the
Year is set out below:

TEERRE

FHEERAARSTWA LTI FE D ENGEE
WIS HRERMITE16@) K% 15 °

BEAN - RIRTRNEXEBA LG AEERESREEA
BRANFERFMNEER SO FRHIT

Number of Individual

Remuneration band (HK$) HENEE (B T) AE

0 to 1,000,000 0Z1,000,000 2

Audit Committee EREER

The members of the Audit Committee during the Year, all being independent  RAAREER  BXZEEENKE (B ABIERTESE)

non-executive Directors, were as follows: (I

Professor Chui Tsan Kit (Re-designated as a member on 24 November — 1&EHB#ER (ER-—FE—+F+—H - +IIHEEZ7
2017) ERKE)

Ms. Xiao Yiming B —8it

Professor Lee T.S. (Ceased to be a member on 24 November 2017) ERAEHER (BER-FE—F+F+—HA=-+IWHBFKS)

Mr. Chan Yung (Appointed as a member on 24 November 2017) REXYE (ER-ZF—F+F+—A-F+MHEZTS

g)
Mr. Cheng Hong Kei (Appointed as the chairman on 24 November  EEMHEAE (ER-—FE—+F+—H -+IWHEZF5

2017)
Mr. Cheng Hong Kei and Professor Chui Tsan Kit possess the appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise as required under the GEM

Listing Rules.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(a) To monitor the control procedures and the disclosures on the reporting
of the Company’s financial statements, and to review and discuss
with external auditor any significant financial reporting standards and
guidelines applied to the financial statements.

(b)  To consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need

to be, reflected in financial reports and accounts, and give due
consideration to matters raised by the Company’s compliance officer or
external auditor.
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AN s /D A
TEERIRE
(c) To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to

the work performed by them, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of auditor.

(d)  To review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems.
(e)  To review Company’s arrangements to enable employees to raise, in

confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial results and
reports, financial reporting, compliance procedures and effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Company, report on the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes, re-appointment of
external auditor and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties. The Audit Committee also met the external auditor
twice without the presence of the executive Directors. Besides, there is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
re-appointment of external auditor.

Nomination Committee

The members of the Nomination Committee during the Year, all being
independent non-executive Directors, were as follows:

Ms. Xiao Yiming (Re-designated as a member on 24 November

2017)
Professor Chui Tsan Kit
Professor Lee T.S.

(Ceased to be a member on 24 November 2017)

Mr. Chan Yung (Appointed as the chairman on 24 November

2017)

Mr. Cheng Hong Kei (Appointed as a member on 24 November 2017)

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

DENEZEEETHOIE  HBRREAK
R AR EINEZ B RIR - W REAIH R
£ BEEREENESSRUES -

BEARTNHBES - NBERRARERH
JE o

BN ARREBEEE BT RARLFGTBHE
oo NEEESREMT A REEENTEETAR
REBEMZHE -

RAFER  BREZEQCEHMARRIZMIEEE LR
& WBER - BOIRF R ABEZBERNSRA - A5t
RRRAMEEREARERRN BT - BIEINEZE
FERREULEREBEARALETAREBINS
P BERZEENGENTESRFENIFTN TEINEZ
HEDRITIR G - kYN BERRHEERESSUES
BEIBNEREEFER R DI -

REEES

RAEER  REEESHRE(OABIENTES)
o

B84t (ER=-F—tF+—A-1THAEEFH

TREREHUR

FREHR (BER-F—tF+—HA-FHHBREXR)

REXE (ER=F—tF1 - A-THABZER
TE)

BEEEE (ER=F—tF1 - A-THABZER

KE)



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and recommending any changes to the Board;
identifying qualified and suitable individuals to become Board members
and selecting and making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy adopted
by the Company on 30 August 2013 (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and that
selection of candidates for appointment as a Director will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based on
merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee considers an appropriate balance of diversity
perspective of the Board is maintained.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to the directors’ nomination procedures
adopted by the Company on 31 December 2015 (the “Director Nomination
Procedures”) to certain criteria such as the Company’s needs, the integrity,
experience, skills and professional knowledge of the candidate and the amount
of time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities, as well as the objective of the Board Diversity Policy, and will
make recommendation to the Board. External recruitment professionals might
be engaged to carry out selection process when necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has performed the following major
tasks:

. made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Wong
Hin Shek, Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey, Mr. Chan Yung and Mr. Cheng
Hong Kei as the Directors after having considered their respective
working experiences, qualifications and backgrounds;

. reviewed the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives and
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure the appropriateness in determining
the optimum composition of the Board;
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TEERBRE

o reviewed the Director Nomination Procedures to ensure the
appropriateness in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship; and

o assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors.

Analysis of the Board’s current composition is set out in the following chart:
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code
Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
GEM Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the
required standard of dealings (the “Required Standard of Dealing”) in respect
to any dealings in the Company’s securities by the Company’s Directors and
relevant employees. Specific enquiries have been made to all Directors and
they all confirmed they had complied with the Required Standard of Dealings
during the Year. No incident of non-compliance of the Required Standard of
Dealings by the relevant employees was noted by the Company during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at Shareholders’ meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. According to the GEM Listing
Rules, all resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on
by poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company after each Shareholders’ meeting.

Set out below are the procedures for members to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as Directors.

Procedures for members to make proposals at general meeting
other than a proposal of a person for election as Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

1. The Company holds an annual general meeting every year, and may
hold a general meeting known as a special general meeting whenever
necessary.

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the

total voting rights of all members having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (i) not less than 100 members, can submit a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at the annual general
meeting; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at a particular general meeting.
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3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 21/F, China Hong Kong
Tower, 8-12 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks before
the annual general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week before the general meeting
in the case of any other requisition.

4. If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board (i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or (i) to circulate the statement for the general meeting,
provided that the member(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money
reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the
statement submitted by the member(s) concerned in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the member(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the member(s) concermned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the annual general meeting; or the statement will not
be circulated for the general meeting.

The following are the procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

If a member, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s), wishes to propose
a person (other than the member himself/herself) for election as a Director at
that meeting, he/she can deposit a written notice at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 21/F, China Hong Kong Tower, 8-12
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all members of that proposal, the written
notice must state the full name of the person proposed for election as a
Director, his/her biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, and be signed by the member concerned and that person
indicating his/her willingness to be elected.
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The period for lodgment of such a written notice will commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the notice
is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior to that general meeting,
the Company will need to consider adjournment of the general meeting in
order to (i) assess the suitability of the proposed candidate; and (i) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation to the proposal
to the members at least fourteen (14) clear days and not less than ten (10)
business days prior to the general meeting.

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are available on the Company’s website.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and regulation.

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
in Hong Kong at 21/F, China Hong Kong Tower, 8-12 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not
within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. For the avoidance
of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings
of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’” Communication Policy reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for communication with its
Shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the Shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and understandable
information of the Company. Such policy will be reviewed by the Company
regularly to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing
regulatory and other requirements.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining on
ongoing dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports,
quarterly reports, notices of meetings, listing documents and circulars
are issued in printed form and are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkex.com.hk and the Company’s website at
www.geth.com.hk in a timely and consistent manner as required by the
GEM Listing Rules;

(ii) corporate information and the memorandum of continuance and Bye-
laws of the Company are made available on the Company’s website;

(iii) periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company;

(iv)  annual general meeting and special general meetings provide a forum
for the Shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the
Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Company’s share registrar serves the Shareholders in respect
of share registration, dividend payment, change of Shareholders’
particulars and related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
Year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Ms. Hung Yvonne (“Ms. Hung”), aged 48, has been appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company since
December 2016 and has been the Acting Chairman of the Board since March
2017. She has more than 10 years of experience in marketing. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Hung has taken up various marketing positions in education,
entertainment and event management industry. She was a marketing director
of Delon International Film Limited, a company engaged in film trading and
distribution business, from 2009 to 2015.

Ms. Hung is a director of some subsidiaries within the Group. She is also
currently the chairperson of the board, an executive director and the
chairperson of the nomination committee of China Candy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8182), whose shares are listed on GEM. In accordance with
the letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Ms. Hung,
Ms. Hung would serve as an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on 13 December
2016 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Mr. Lee Kin Fai (“Mr. Lee”), aged 45, has been appointed as an executive
Director since December 2016. He obtained a Master’s Degree in business
administration from the Manchester Business School of The University of
Manchester in the United Kingdom in 2007. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee was the
company secretary of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (formerly known
as “DX.com Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 8086), whose shares are listed
on GEM, from 1 August 2013 to October 2017. Mr. Lee was an independent
non-executive director of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (stock
code: 8120), whose shares are listed on GEM, from May 2013 to November
2017. Mr. Lee was also an independent non-executive director of China
Smartpay Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8325) from March 2011 to
May 2014 and First Credit Finance Group Limited (stock code: 8215) from
June 2013 to July 2016, shares of which are both listed on GEM.

Mr. Lee is the compliance officer and an authorised representative of the
Company for the purpose of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Lee is also a director
and the company secretary of some subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lee
was a director of corporate finance of the Company from 1 July 2016 to 13
December 2016. Mr. Lee would serve as an executive Director for an initial
term of three years commencing on 13 December 2016 and is subject to
retirement from office and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. As at 31 December 2017 and the date of this report, Mr. Lee had
share options which entitled him to subscribe for 623,193 ordinary shares at
an exercise price of HK$2.721 per share with an exercise period from 15 July
2015 to 14 July 2018.
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Mr. Wong Hin Shek (“Mr. Wong”), aged 48, has been appointed as
an executive Director since September 2017. He obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of Toronto in Canada and a Master of
Science degree in Financial Management from the University of London in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Wong has over 23 years of experience in the investment
banking industry. He has been involved in the management, business
development and strategic investment of listed companies in Hong Kong
having operations in environmental protection, hotel, manufacturing software
industries. Mr. Wong is the responsible officer of Veda Capital Limited, a
licensed corporation which carries on Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the SFO.

Mr. Wong is currently the chairman and an executive director of DeTai New
Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559) and the chief executive officer and
an executive director of Bisu Technology Group International Limited (formerly
known as “Excel Development (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 1372). He
was redesignated as a non-executive director from an executive director and
ceased to act as chairman of the board of directors of Sino Golf Holdings
Limited (stock code: 361) from November 2016. Mr. Wong was also an
executive director of Dongwu Cement International Limited (stock code:
695) from November 2016 to August 2017. The shares of these companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong would serve
as an executive Director for an initial term of three years commencing on 1
September 2017 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey (“Mr. Pon”), aged 57, has been appointed as
an executive Director since November 2017. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors and obtained Professional Diploma of Estate
Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Master of
Science in Finance from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pon has been a director of Centaway Training Limited since 2014, a
training institute which offers investment courses. Mr. Pon was the managing
director of Centaway Property Asset Management Limited during 2006 to
2015. Mr. Pon has over 25 years of experience in holding management
positions in various corporations. Mr. Pon would serve as an executive
Director for an initial term of three years commencing on 2 November 2017
and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

ITREEETELRE]D 48E BT tFNAALE
RERWITES - BENMEAZMEAERRZAES
TR REERBABER B EERBBRL BN -
ITAERNRERITEEBRBF LR - RBEEER
RBE BHESGTE URBELTZRRZE
B EBERREBMRETIE - TAEREKELRE
RARZBEAE  ZARRRIEES LS G AT
EFRGIEBREREER) RRE B ZFEE -

FRAEBBRRFFEREEFR AR (BHAE : 669)
ZEIFERATES R EMEEEREREER AR (AT
[MasERAR AR - BORSR : 1372) 21T B E &
HITESR - RE T A"Ft—ARBIEEZERARA
AR SR - 361) ZATTERRERIFNTES » LT
BREAEEZESEFE - ERETR - ZT—RF+—HE
“ZFN\AHREERRIOEEBEAR AR (MK
5% 0 695) ZMITE R - ZE R R 2R IIREE T EIR
E e ERAEERTES BT EFAAARE
MNERB=F  LWERBARFAAURESEE -

BRAEETERED 575 BT —tF+— A
EZERNTES - RADTBIEMBEEE - YIS
BRRTREBZMEERERERBEETXAREEH
SRERT BT

EEER T -IFRETTERIERARRERE
AREZBIEIB) 2EF - BEEN_TTRFE-Z
—hFHREETEEEERER AR 2 EFEKRE -
BEREREETRRRZERBRAL B A B25FK
B BAEEERTEE BT LF T+ AZARE
VERB=F  UWERBARFMAAURESEE -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Chui Tsan Kit (“Professor Chui”), aged 49, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director since April 2015. He is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Board and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Board. Professor
Chui obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in Finance (with Distinction) from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master of Business Administration Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science Degree in
Engineering (Electronic Commerce) from The University of Hong Kong, a
Master of Science Degree in Investment Management from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a Master of Laws Degree in Chinese
Business Law from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a certified
financial consultant of The Institute of Financial Consultants and a chartered
wealth manager of the International Academy of Financial Management. He
was an honorary assistant professor of the Department of Computer Science,
Faculty of Engineering at The University of Hong Kong and an adjunct associate
professor of the Department of Marketing, Faculty of Business Administration
at The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Professor Chui was the director of
Investment Services of ICBC International Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (stock code:
1398) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
January 2010 to December 2010. Professor Chui was the head of warrant
marketing of Bank of China (HK) Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOC Hong
Kong (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2388) whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from October 2007 to February 2009.
He was also the head of wealth management of China Galaxy International
Financial Holdings Company Limited and the chief executive officer of China
Galaxy International Wealth Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited, both
being the wholly-owned subsidiaries of China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 6881), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from October 2012 to May 2014. From July 2005 to September
2007, Professor Chui was also the associate director of retail operations and
the director of investment education of Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited, a
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (stock code: 86), whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of GR Properties Limited (stock code: 108), shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2015 to
February 2018.

Professor Chui is currently the chief strategic officer of Zhongtai Financial
International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhongtai Securities Co.,
Ltd. (State-owned securities firm in China), and the managing director of
Zhongtai International Wealth Management Ltd.

In accordance with the letter of appointment entered into between the
Company and Professor Chui, Professor Chui would serve as an independent
non-executive Director for a term of two years commencing from 23 April
2017 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Professor Lee T.S., alias, Lee Tien-sheng (“Professor Lee”), aged
69, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director since
September 2015. Professor Lee obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree
in Electronic Engineering and a Master of Science Degree in Management
Science from The Chiao-Tung University in Taiwan, a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Operations
Management from The University of Missouri-Columbia in the United States of
America. He was the chairman and associate professor of management at The
University of Utah in the United States of America, a senior lecturer, professor
and the chairman of the Department of Decision Sciences & Managerial
Economics at The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a professor and the
dean of the Faculty of Business Administration at The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He was the vice-president (Academic & Research), professor and
programme director and the head of the Department of Supply Chain and
Information Management at The Hang Seng Management College in Hong
Kong.

He is currently the professor emeritus of the Department of Supply Chain and
Information Management at The Hang Seng Management College in Hong
Kong. He is also the chair professor at Feng China University in Taiwan. He
is certified in Production and Inventory Management and a member of Beta
Gamma Sigma. Professor Lee is currently an independent non-executive
director of Embry Holdings Limited (stock code: 1388) whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In accordance with the letter of
appointment entered into between the Company and Professor Lee, Professor
Lee would serve as an independent non-executive Director for a term of three
years commencing from 1 September 2015 and is subject to retirement from
office and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Xiao Yiming (“Ms. Xiao”), aged 37, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since January 2014. She is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Board. Ms. Xiao graduated from the Harbin
Institute of Technology with a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration
in Management. Ms. Xiao has over 10 years’ experience in the field of
public relations. Ms. Xiao was a senior manager of investor relations of a
hotel chain in China. She was a consultant of corporate communications
and investor relations of a subsidiary (‘PR Company”) of a company whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange and whose subsidiaries are
principally engaged in, among others, the provision of advertising and public
relations services. Ms. Xiao is currently the chief representative of the Beijing
Representative Office of the PR Company and is responsible for offering
consulting services in corporate communications and investor relations to
companies listed in Hong Kong as well as to clients in initial public offering
projects. The PR Company has provided consulting services in corporate
communications and investor relations to the Group from 2012 to February
2018. Nevertheless, Ms. Xiao is not a director, partner or principal of the PR
Company and Ms. Xiao is not or has not been involved in providing such
consulting services to the Group. In accordance with the letter of appointment
entered into between the Company and Ms. Xiao, Ms. Xiao would serve as
an independent non-executive Director for a term of two years commencing
on 2 January 2018 and is subject to retirement from office and re-election in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Mr. Chan Yung 88Bs, Jp (“Mr. Chan”), aged 48, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since November 2017. He is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Board and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr. Chan
obtained a Bachelor’s Degree from The City University of Hong Kong, a
Post-graduate Diploma of Politics and Public Administration from Tsinghua
University and a Master’s Degree in Law and Public Affairs from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He was appointed as a Justice of Peace by the
HKSAR Government in 2011 and awarded Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2014.

Mr. Chan is a registered social worker and the chairman of New Territories
Association of Societies. He is also a director of New Territories Association
of Societies (Community Services) Foundation since 2002. Mr. Chan has
various public appointments including Hong Kong Deputy to the 12th
National People’s Congress of the PRC and non-official member of Lantau
Development Advisory Committee. Mr. Chan is also a vice-chairman of
Democratic Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
would serve as an independent non-executive Director for an initial term of
three years commencing on 24 November 2017 and is subject to retirement
from office and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESENRSREEEDE

Mr. Cheng Hong Kei (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 63, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since November 2017. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Board. He
studied accountancy in Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (practising), the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheng is a co-founding director of Cheng & Cheng Limited and had worked as
an assessor for the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department for 12 years. He
has over 30 years of experience in accounting and taxation.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive director of Great China
Properties Holdings Limited (stock code: 21), whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and South China Assets Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8155), whose shares are listed on GEM, and was an independent
non-executive director of South China Holdings Limited (now renamed as
“Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited”) (stock code: 265) from 28
September 2004 to 3 October 2014 and Sino Resources Group Limited (now
renamed as Elife Holdings Limited) (stock code: 223) from 7 June 2008 to 30
April 2009, shares of which are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cheng would serve as an independent non-executive Director
for an initial term of three years commencing on 24 November 2017 and is
subject to retirement from office and re-election in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Siu Cheong (“Mr. Lau”), aged 44, was appointed as (i) the
company secretary; (i) the financial controller of the Company; and (i) the
authorised representative for the purposes of the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622, the Laws of Hong Kong) and the GEM Listing Rules since 1 August
2013. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) degree from
the Curtin University of Technology in 1999. He is a member of the CPA
Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau
was the finance manager of the Company from 30 January 2010 to 31
July 2013. Mr. Lau is principally responsible for, among others, the overall
financial management, financial planning and budgetary control of the Group
and carrying out company secretarial functions of the Group. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau has over 20 years of
experience in finance and accounting.

Mr. Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”), aged 33, was an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company from 5 July 2013 to 13 December
2016. Mr. Xue obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Science and
Technology from The University of Electronic Science and Technology of
China in July 2007. Mr. Xue is a co-founder and a director of the Boom Max
Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 30 July 2001 and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability on 9 January 2014 (Bermuda time).
Its shares have been listed on GEM since 31 December 2001, and the head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong is at 21/F, China Hong
Kong Tower, 8-12 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while the Group is principally
engaged in (1) research, development and distribution of PC performance
software, anti-virus software, mobile phone applications and toolbar
advertisement, (2) investment in securities, (3) money lending business, and (4)
provision of corporate management solutions and |.T. contract services. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 84 to 231 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final dividend for the Year
(81 December 2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the Year, particulars of
important events affecting the Group during the Year, an analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report and note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group can be found throughout this report, particularly in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Risk Factors” of this report. Also,
the financial risk management of the Company can be found in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. These discussions form part of this report
of the Directors. In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations
and the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders are also provided in
the following sub-sections of this report of the Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the segment results and geographical locations of operations
of the Group for the Year is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donations. (2016:
HK$38,000)

SHARES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements and the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — 2017 Rights Issue”
of this report. Such disclosure forms part of this report of the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Convertible Notes

On 13 August 2015, the Company entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement (as varied and supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 16 September 2015) in relation to the acquisition
of additional 14.677% of the issued share capital of Boom Max at a
consideration of HK$180,416,400. Consideration of such acquisition payable
by the Company comprised (i) a cash payment of an aggregate sum of
HK$30,000,000; (i) the issue of the Convertible Notes in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$75,208,200 conferring rights to the holders thereof to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.30 conversion share (subject to adjustment(s)); and (iii) the allotment and
issue of, credited as fully paid, a total of 250,693,999 ordinary shares of the
Company at an issue price of HK$0.30 per share.

Convertible Notes, which accrued no interest, relieved the Group from a heavy
interest burden and delayed the immediate dilution of earning per share of the
owners of the Company and it was the reason for the Company to settle part
of the consideration by the issue of the Convertible Notes.

Immediately prior to the redemption of the Convertible Notes in full by the
Company in December 2017, the Convertible Notes had a principal amount of
HK$75,208,200 and entitled the holders thereof to subscribe for an aggregate
of 50,138,799 ordinary shares of the Company at the then prevailing
conversion price of HK$1.50 per conversion share. On 31 December 2017,
the Company has redeemed the Convertible Notes in full. Details of the
issuance of Convertible Notes are set out in notes 4(qg)(ii) and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

Share Options

As at 31 December 2017, the share options granted under the 2007 Share
Option Scheme (as defined below) which entitled the holders thereof to
subscribe for an aggregate of 1,246,386 ordinary shares of the Company
remained outstanding. Except for the share option held by Mr. Kuang Hao
Kun Giovanni being lapsed on 1 July 2017 following his resignation as a
Director, no options were granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the
2007 Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme (as defined below)
of the Company during the Year.

Details of the 2007 Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme of
the Company are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
and the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no equity-linked agreements
entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisting at the end of the
Year. The disclosure in the aforementioned sections of this report forms part
of this report of the Directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries during the Year are set out
in notes 43(a)(i) and 43(c)() to the consolidated financial statements and the
sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Review —
Discontinued Operation: Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis — Material Transactions” of this
report.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 88 to 89 of this report and note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the reserves available for distribution to owners of
the Company were approximately HK$39,898,000 (2016: HK$539,329,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws,
or the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the Shareholders.

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO DIRECTOR(S)

Except for the director’s fee payable, there is no amount due to a Director nor
loans from a Director as at 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held an entire interest in a commercial
property which is currently leased to and occupied by a clinic with a short-
term lease. The existing tenancy agreement will expire in December 2018.
The property is located at Shop F, Ground Floor, Yenfu Mansion, Nos.
121-125, 129-135, 139 and 141, Hip Wo Street and Nos. 92—-112 Shui
Wo Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Details of the principal properties held for
investment purposes during the Year are set out in note 22 and 43(b)(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements and details of the Property Disposal are
disclosed in the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure” of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s total turnover for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

Turnover
- the largest customer: 7.35%
- five largest customers in aggregate: 18.84%

The percentages of Group’s purchases for the Year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

Purchases

- the largest supplier: 15.65%

- five largest suppliers in aggregate: 48.79%

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more

than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) has any interest in any of the
Group'’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group are set out in notes 33 and
37 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining environmental
sustainability in its daily operation and acts in all material respects in
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to environmental protection
and pollutant control, such as the Water Pollution Control Ordinance, the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance and the Waste Disposal Ordinance. The Group is
a service-oriented enterprise mainly with office operations, therefore its daily
business does not generate material direct emission, industrial pollutants,
sewage and hazardous waste. Nevertheless, the Group pays high attention to
environmental protection in order to become a green corporation.

The Group is committed to environment protection and sustainable
development through promoting and adopting green practices in its
business activities. Initiatives within the Group include, but not limited to,
waste reduction by double sided printing and separating recyclable paper,
green procurement by avoiding single-use disposable items and using office
equipment with Energy Label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department, and energy reduction by switching off idle electronic appliances.
The Group will continually review its green practices to integrate environmental,
health and safety management and compliance considerations into operational
processes. By promoting green awareness amongst and maintaining dialogue
with employees and business partners, the Group is determined to promote
environmental protection in the daily business operations and establish a
sustainable environment.

Pursuant to Rule 17.103 of the GEM Listing Rules, an Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report of the Company will be published within three
months after the publication of this report in compliance with the provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform with the market
standard.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture. The Group also
understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with its suppliers
and customers to fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
market competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at delivering
services of constantly high standards of quality to its customers. During the
Year, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

According to the credit rating of different customers, the Group allows a credit
period of up to 90 days to customers. In extending and/or granting credit
terms to customers, the Group will carefully assess creditworthiness and
financial standing of each individual customer. Management will also closely
monitor all outstanding debts and review their collectability periodically.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Data privacy has become a critical issue for online sales business in the world.
In relation to the Software Business, the Group has paid close attention to
confidentiality of personal data and privacy of its clients. Under the daily
operation of the Software Business of the Group, it is inevitable to deal with
enormous amount of customers’ and potential customers’ information during
the process of online transactions involving our Group’s I.T. products. It is
of significant importance for the Group to handle their data with care so as
to comply with the laws and regulations relating to data privacy. Employees
are required to fully abide by the provisions stipulated when handling clients’
data and they are prohibited from any unauthorised copying, dissemination or
disclosure of confidential information, including client identity and transaction
records.

The Group has been aware of increasing public concerns over the charging
of exorbitant fee by a number of illegal referral agents in the money lending
industry. In compliance with the additional licensing conditions of money
lenders licence which took effect from December 2016, the Group has revised
procedures to handle third parties business referrals with care and caution.
The Group strives to provide reliable loan products to its customers and wiill
closely update the relevant laws and regulations to avoid involving any illegal
money lending activities.

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any material non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

As from 31 December 2017 to the date of this report, no significant event
affecting the Group has occurred.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
232 of this report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, related party transactions in relation to the copyright licence
agreement and the new copyright licence agreement (as defined below)
disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements fell under the
definition of “continuing connected transactions” under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Such transactions were de minimis in nature and were
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

Related party transactions in relation to the transactions with key management
personnel (i.e. Directors’ remuneration) in note 46(c) to the consolidated
financial statements fell under the definition of “connected transactions” and
they were fully exempt under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Year, save as abovementioned, the Company has not entered
into any connected transactions that are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, nor their respective close associates, had any interest in
a business, apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The changes of the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

EEEHE

B5E

RAFERBERNRERY  EFZHUT :

Appointed on Resigned on

RUT BHERE RELT B BT

Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Hung Yvonne kit
(Acting Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (REEFEFHITBAEE,)
Mr. Lee Kin Fai =Xy
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TREEE
Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey BRI KA

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni (Chairman) (Note 1) EFSéR5E4E (/&) (1)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Ms. Xiao Yiming B—Isz+
Professor Chui Tsan Kit IRIBERHIR
Professor Lee T.S. FREHK

Mr. Chan Yung FRE A

Mr. Cheng Hong Kei BERHE S A

Note 1:  Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni resigned with effect from 31 March 2017 since he
would pursue his personal endeavours overseas.

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election. As such, Mr. Wong Hin Shek, Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey, Mr. Chan
Yung and Mr. Cheng Hong Kei will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13 December 2016 -
—E-RETZAT=H
13 December 2016 -
—E-RETZAT=H
1 September 2017 -

—T—tFNA—H

2 November 2017 -

—FTEFt+—HZH

9 June 2014 31 March 2017
—E-FRANA —T—+F=A=+—H

17 January 2014 -
—Z-ME—-A++H

23 April 2015 -
—E-hFEMA=+T=H

1 September 2015 -
—Z-hFENA—H

24 November 2017 -
—E—+F+—A=+WAH
24 November 2017 -
—E—+F+—A=+WAH

MiEE1 s BEBEERAEBHNEEAAESHMmEE 8 =-F
—tFEZRA=t—HEBAER -

RBEARRBHRAAMAIESIQ)MG - BERERIELAER
BREROEMNES  HEHEZEZERARFEE
BRERELL  TAAREEAE LEREE MEEES
RENENAFEESESLAHENEMNESNEINER
EARBFTERRBFAGRLELTEERBRET -
Bt - THEAKE BRI ELE  RBELEREHEHSE
ERNEERRBERASRE  YHAEREREE -
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Pursuant to Bye-law 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general  RIBA QRN AGIMAIFES4IE  REERRAFAS
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not ~ + * B =5 —WMEE(HHMEEARLIF=ME - 8
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall — EHEZETETLVR=D—MWASGHE)BRERT  HS
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject HREZERZLEF=FRERT X BREEEHLER
to retirement at least once every three years. The retiring Directors shall be — FEZE(T o B —184+ NI 2B A 157 fE R R A E
eligible for re-election. Ms. Xiao Yiming and Mr. Lee Kin Fai will retire and, A&EF  HEREFTEERLFEZTERET -

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EENEREEEHEE
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the EZRARARSHEREEBHELE @ HRAREES3E
Company are set out on pages 53 to 59 of this report. 598 °

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST BEER L ERSHMNA T HM
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals ~ EZ R AEB A AT S HIA THOEFES - 2 RIHEHRL
of the Group are set out in notes 16 and 15 to the consolidated financial 434 M IEHERMFE16515 °
statements respectively.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE BYFHTEENEB LM
DIRECTORS

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of independence were — ANARHER - IRIFEGEM MR AIZES.0915 © RARIEHE
received from each of the existing independent non-executive Directors ~ EZRIBUIENTEENFEBYERRE  TRE
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all existing independent &8I EIB L IFNITE B BIBL ©

non-executive Directors are considered to be independent by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS BEEREEY

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the ~ 2T = EREAQ BN A BME RGEM EHRE
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s ~ RAANA R EEF K SHERT L ERET -
Bye-laws and the GEM Listing Rules.

The emoluments of the executive Directors and independent non-executive  ITE B RBIUIFRTESHNTHAESTGLXEFES
Directors are determined with reference to their respective background, BB S « &k - RAEBNBELBE U NIRITHR
experience, duties and responsibilities with the Group and the prevailing &R E °

market conditions.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general EREREMRAFASERFTINESE  BETEAL
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Company or &8k E Tl i} B X A F Al i — F (B CEEEER N
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other £ IFHIRRTE A4 -

than statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS

None of the Directors (including any person who at any time in the Year was a
Director) or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially interested,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance subsisting during or at the end of the Year which is significant
in relation to the business of the Group, nor did any Director have direct or
indirect interests in any assets which have been acquired or disposed of by or
leased to, or are proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to, any
member of the Group at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares (“Shares”) of the Company
and underlying Shares

EEERE

%ﬁéllﬂ

AEENLET LT RARFERAEBBEHE([TER
MOEBABZERRITRAL

EERNENRRFHER

BESER(BERAFECARMARESEZ AL)HE
ZEZAWENEENAFEARAEEERK DAL
BEHAEEXBN EBEANEARS - RHREL
THEAREEAEAERNEEER  TEEFAESER
AEE K 8 R BRANEE A RE L AFE R EAE
RIFTUCHE - MERMEERBNE - HEFEENEFE
PR (T E R R

EERFTETBRAERAE QB SEAREE
B R - HEROREFHERRLAE

R-Z—t&+-A=+—8 BERARFAETETHK
ABRARN R EEMBEEE(ERRFHLEAEED
EXVED) Bk - ARG KESFT - BEBRIEES
REAE GG E 352N ERFE 2 T M A AT SRR 15
GEM ET# A5 4615 TlE FETE EMMRTIRER
BITMEARR R KBRS IAR T

RAREEER (R4 ) REERD TR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the total issued

underlying share capital

Name of Director Capacity Shares interested of the Company

BERERN HERATEBERT

EEpE 55 HERGHE RAEBQOBES L

(Note 1)

(%)

Lee Kin Fai (“Mr. Lee”) Beneficial owner 623,193 0.14%
(Note 2)

FREBEE(TFEE]D BEma A 623,193 0.14%
(M5E2)
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Notes:

®. The total number of 444,448,237 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2017 has
been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

2 Based on the Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice — Interests in Shares of Listed

Corporation filed by Mr. Lee dated 20 February 2017, these 623,193 underlying
Shares had an exercise period from 15 July 2015 to 14 July 2018 with an exercise
price of HK$2.721 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors nor
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni, a former executive Director and Chairman
of the Board who resigned on 31 March 2017, was interested in the share
option entitling him to subscribe for 1,246,387 ordinary Shares which had
an exercise period from 15 July 2015 to 14 July 2018 with an exercise price
of HK$2.721 per Share. The share option lapsed on 1 July 2017 after three
months following the date of his resignation in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the 2007 Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests or Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures of
the Company or any Associated Corporations” and “Share Option Scheme”
in this report of the Directors, at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and
the chief executive, their respective spouses or children under the age of 18
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (“2007 Share Option Scheme”) of the Company
adopted pursuant to a Shareholders’ resolution passed on 24 December
2007 has been terminated on 13 June 2017. A new share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the Shareholders in the annual
general meeting of the Company on 13 June 2017 and adopted on 15 June
2017. Upon termination of the 2007 Share Option Scheme, no further options
shall be granted pursuant to the 2007 Share Option Scheme but the scheme
shall in all other respects remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect
to the exercise of any outstanding options granted prior to its termination. The
existing options shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the 2007 Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to the
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliore employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any entities in
which any member of the Group holds equity interest.

The Directors may subject to the provisions of the Share Option Scheme and
the GEM Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of the following
classes of eligible participants, to take up share options to subscribe for
Shares: (a) any eligible employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director) of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any member of the Group holds
any equity interest (“invested entity”); (b) any non-executive Director (including
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any invested entity; and (c) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any invested entity.

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on its adoption date. The Share Option Scheme will remain
in force until 15 June 2027 and after such date no further options shall be
offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options
granted before its expiry or termination but not yet exercised.

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted at any time under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued Shares on the date of Shareholders’
approval of the Share Option Scheme or the date of Shareholders’ approval
of a refreshment of such limit in a general meeting of the Company (“General
Scheme Limit”). Previously granted options which may be outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the General Scheme Limit.
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The limit on the number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
(including the 2007 Share Option Scheme) must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the total Shares in issue from time to time.

Each grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to any Director, chief
executive of the Company or substantial Shareholder (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) or any of their respective associates must be approved by
independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Director who or whose associate is the proposed grantee). Where any grant of
options to a substantial Shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or
an independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective associates,
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in
issue; and (b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares as at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further
grant of options must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting.

Upon acceptance of an option granted under the Share Option Scheme, the
eligible participant shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as consideration for the
grant. Such option will be offered for acceptance within such time specified in
the offer which shall not be later than 21 days from the date on which the offer
is made.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Group (including exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
The exercise price for the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined at the discretion of the Board but in any event shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Share.
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Details of the movements in the options granted under the 2007 Share Option

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

RIE - DT FRBRER S BRI SR L B g

Scheme and the Share Option Scheme during the Year are as follows: RERSBEFIFHOT :
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat
price 1 January during during during 31 December
Date of grant Grantees Exercise period per Share 2017 the Year the Year the Year 2017
RZB-—t% R=B-tF&
-A-H REE XEE tZA=t-H
RiLAH ERA gt BRITHEE HATE  AFERH fiff HE#/XR HAITE
2 July 2015 Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni 15 July 2015 to 14 July 2018 2.721 1,231,000 - - 1,246,387 -
(Note 2) (Note 2)
“E-REEA-A BRERLE(HE) “Z-RFtATHEAZE (ir2)
“T-\FtATHA
2 July 2015 Mr. Lee 15 July 2015 10 14 July 2018 2.721* 615,500" - - - 623,193"
ZT-REtAZA R4 “Z-REtATHAZE
“T-\FLATHA
2 July 2015 the company secretary, 15 July 2015 to 14 July 2018 2.721* 615,500 - - - 623,193
financial controller and a
director of subsidiaries of
the Company
ZZ-RFYAZA AAANBARCARANE . —B-EFtA+RAZ
FBAEEHBAR EE T \FLATRA
Total 2,462,000 - - - 1,246,386
et

After the adjustment for the capital reorganisation of the Company (“2016 Capital
Reorganisation”) and the 2017 Rights Issue effective on 24 May 2016 and 15
February 2017 respectively.

*

"ARR_E—AR"FRAZ+TNAR-_T—+tF-_A+H
BEMNARAEAEA( Z - FEAEH) R =%
—EFHRARE -

Notes: Bf5E

1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the 1. BERENREBEHAERL BB EETEHRAB AL -
commencement of the exercise period.

2. Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni resigned as an executive Director and the Chairman 2. BSEEEN T —tF A=+ HEIESENTE
of the Board on 31 March 2017. His share option lapsed on 1 July 2017 after EHTF o RBE DT EHRIREE ) 2 R R -
three months following the date of his resignation in accordance with the terms HERENEETEART=[EAR B =Z2—tFtA
and conditions of the 2007 Share Option Scheme. =ES &

3. The number of Shares of 1,246,386 that may be issued upon full exercise of the 3. ERITHEBE RS TR A T317.21,246,386 /% %

outstanding share options represents approximately 0.3% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and the date of this report,
which will not have a material dilutive impact on the issued Shares, the respective
shareholdings of the substantial Shareholders and earnings per Share.

MUEERBAR _F—tF+_A=+—HAEAHREEH
2HEBHITRALN0.3%) ETEHEBHITRMN RARRE
ERREBZFHRERSRBFERERBELLE -
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Details of the options granted by the Company under the 2007 Share Option
Scheme have been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
2 July 2015. Details of the 2016 Capital Reorganisation are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 29 February 2016 and 23 May 2016 and
the Company’s circular dated 20 April 2016. Details of the 2017 Rights Issue
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 21 December 2016,
10 January 2017, 17 January 2017, 14 February 2017 and 17 February 2017
and the Company’s prospectus dated 20 January 2017.

As at 31 December 2017 and the date of this report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 44,444,823,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this report.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS
INTEREST IN SECURITIES

Substantial Shareholders
As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than Directors or

the chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions 37 2B [RIZNA 7] K2 B 32 BT it 52 sk 8 AN A Bl iR IE 5 5 I 2

of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the

B I&HIF3361FAFENELMANERIORR

register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares

REBREVIFE
Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
Number of share capital of

Name Capacity Shares interested the Company
hARRFE
2B BT
mEEREN BRABELN
wE BB 54 ROEE Aokt
(Note 1) (Note 2) Notes
(M3E1) (M3E2) (g
Universe International Financial Interest of controlled corporations 74,074,500 (L) 16.67% 3
Holdings Limited (“Universe”)
SEFERSRIERAER AT R AE R
(rE=xD)
Ace Source International Limited Beneficial owner 30,131,060 (L) 6.78% 4
(“Ace Source”)
Ace Source International Limited E=mAA
(T Ace Source ])
Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”) Interest of a controlled corporation 30,131,060 (L) 6.78% 4

BRE(ELEED SinrE kS

Notes: s -

1. “L” denotes a long position. 1. [LIfEtFR -

2. The total number of 444,448,237 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2017 has 2. AEBMAE ERRAR - E—tF+A=1+—HZE
been used for the calculation for the approximate percentage. ITRRD 482k 444,448,237 0% -

3. Based on the records of the Company and to the Directors’ best knowledge, 3. REANBGHEREESEE A BEREMAMN &
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries, Weluck Development BRTEE  keeBER AR ATIFHT74,074,5000% %15 © 7k
Limited held 74,074,500 Shares. Weluck Development Limited is wholly owned BERRARATBBIRELIER)ER AT (TSI
by Fragrant River Entertainment Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant River”) which 2B MBI TIHEF(HBRHREAFTER T (RD
is in turn wholly owned by Universe (the shares of which are listed on the Main REE 1 1046)) 2 BHEA - At - BIEBAERBEEGE
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1046)). Accordingly, each of Fragrant XVE - BIREFEBHBRIER KL ERBR AT
River and Universe was deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Weluck BRI o
Development Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

4. Ace Source was interested in 30,131,060 Shares in the capacity of beneficial 4, Ace Source AE# A A F1H730,131,0600 A% () T A&

owner. Ace Source is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xue. As such, Mr. Xue
was deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Ace Source pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Xue is a director of Ace Source and certain subsidiaries of
the Company.

#Eas o Ace SourcefREE LA EEREAR o Bt - BIEFH
HREE RG] - B AR ER Ace Sourcei B 2 2%
ARG RER - 254 BAce Source R AR T E THEBA
RIZES -
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any other
person (other than Directors or chief executive of the Company) who, as at
31 December 2017, had or was deemed to have interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her duties or otherwise in relation
thereto pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company. The Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group. The relevant provisions in the Bye-laws
of the Company and the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance are currently
in force and were in force throughout the Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes in operation for the Year
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the audit committee of the Board (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee currently
comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng
Hong Kei (the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Chan Yung, Ms. Xiao
Yiming and Professor Chui Tsan Kit. The Audit Committee meets at least
quarterly each year. The Company’s financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed and discussed by the Audit Committee before any disclosure
and release of information.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong Kong,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Hung Yvonne
Acting Chairman and Executive Director

26 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B M A E R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GET HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GET Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
84 to 230, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

78  GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

RSM

BEZERBRATRR
(RESRBAMATRREFEFEZERAT)

=2z
=

AZEED AT R B BT HIINE84ZE2308
BomBARARIEARD REMBAR (HHE &%
B BHRE  WRaMBRReE —_T—tF
ToA=t - BENHEMHIRAREBEZRA LFER
FARGR SeBEmlkEtEZAKRE  FREERE
PRMGERERER - URESMBWMKRM T - B
TERHREE -

BMRA  SAEVBREEREFTEGHMAS([EE
BETEIAE ) EHNEEMBREEN([FERBRE
ERDEEMAFRR SRER-_ZT—tF+-H
=+ ANRAMBARAREBEZ R LFENLEGE
HHEEERGERERE  YERREEL RN
BREZ AR -

RREXE

KAREEB S MASREANETSETEYN(EEE
FHER D ETER - ROEZFENTHEEERMN
WBENREERB RGP B REAAENEE—EE
— St - RESESHMASRMOEESANERE
STRICTSPRID) - BB E5E - YEEETHE
TTHMERET - LMABEE - RAOIMESOEZRERE
FRLEEMRERMANBZE RIRMHER



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key
audit matter we identified is “Impairment assessment of goodwill” and how our

audit addressed this key audit matter is set out below:

Key Audit Matter
BREXSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BERE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

2R TEIRRM 23 -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had goodwill with carrying
value of approximately HK$318,356,000, arising from the acquisition
of Boom Max International Limited and its subsidiaries (“Boom Max
Group”), e-Perfect IT Limited and its subsidiary, Wafer Systems
(Hong Kong) Limited, AP Group Investment Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries, and Nobel Education Organisation Limited.
Management has allocated goodwill to individual cash-generating
units (“CGUs”). Goodwill is required to be tested for impairment on
an annual basis.

R-DZE—+F+-_A=+—H > & EERAY%HEBoom Max
International Limited & E Ff{ & 2 &1 ([Boom Max&k @) « FERHLH
RARREWNBAGR  BEEF(EB)ERAE - BEHEELRE
RARIRENBAR  URETHTZHERBEFRARESEZEER
T B # /318,356,00078 7T ° EFE;‘HF’%E SEEEERIRESES
FI((REERE]) - BEBTFFETRENHR -

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined on the basis
of value in use models which require significant estimates concerning
future cash flows, and associated discount rates and growth rates
assumptions, which are based on management’s expectations
of future business performance and prospects. In respect of the
goodwill arising from Boom Max Group, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$182,000,000 was made during the year to
reduce its carrying amount to its recoverable amount.

BeEHETNIRESENEREFEREERER (KB EAA
REESREDNERMGF AREBERERIERERER)ETE -
EEBERBREDNEREEBHARERRR LS 2EH -
HBoom Max(RBIEEZEEME * ERAFEELRERIED
182,000,000/ LA AR B = H o] kBl &5 -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM ERNAEERREXSE

We have our in-house valuation specialists to assess the integrity of
the model used to estimate value in use and the appropriateness
of the discount rates and long-term growth rates adopted by
management.

BB ARBGHEEREE R ERANAREEHEREENER T
BUARBRR R R RNER M SBEITETTAE -

We agreed inputs to the model to supporting evidence including
the latest approved 5-year budgets and considered the accuracy of
management’s previous budgets.

BAREFEFREEANBARE - 25T
W& BB IR E S TR E ERE I -

TEHtETFEE -

We assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions made
by management in preparing the cash flow forecasts in light of
historical results and the current operating environment.

ENAERANENEERE  BRAEEEEERERSRER
AREHEERRABIE -

We carried out sensitivity analysis to assess the impact of
reasonable possible changes in key assumptions and discount
rates on value in use.

R ITHRE S
fEEnTE -

DHTIAR A = 2RE MR KA e A IR B BT

We also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of the impairment testing of goodwill.

BMMERE EXEAREBERENAREZTRE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B M A E R

OTHER INFORMATION AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all the information in GET Holdings Limited’s 2017 annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

18 M B B R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Chris Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two,
28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

26 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EE—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)

2017 2016
—E2—tHF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BfaE FExT FAExT
(Re-presented)
(ggE5)
Continuing operations BEREER
Turnover =3 8 187,780 193,534
Cost of sales THEK A (71,147) (61,602)
Gross profit EAR 116,633 131,932
Other revenue HAbUA 9 4,578 1,835
Other gains and losses, net HAhlhzs R E51E - JFRE 10 (527,913) 28,262
Selling and administrative expenses SHE RITHFAX (77,773) (70,497)
(Loss)/profit from operations cE(EE)RA (484,475) 91,532
Finance costs BhE A AN 12 (13,720) (22,562)
Share of loss of associates FEIGEEE A RS (15,644) (5,550)
Share of loss of a joint venture EiE—HeEEEE (2,932) (5)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(B518) R 13 (516,771) 63,415
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiiE R, (Fx) 14 14,438 (29,576)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing EEEFEREEK
operations (&518), =R (502,333) 33,839
Discontinued operation DRIEEEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued operation RERE DRI EEE BT 17 3,123 1,155
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FE),#wR (499,210) 34,994
Attributable to: BT AT FE4h -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ SN (512,327) 17,092
Non-controlling interests IR 13,117 17,902
(499,210) 34,994
(Loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) BREER) BRGEW) 19
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERDRIHEEER
Basic A (120.30) 6.21
Diluted E (120.30) 6.21
From continuing operations REAFELCEER
Basic BN (120.89) 6.00
Diluted g (120.89) 6.00
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeESERkEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZT—+tF+-_A=1T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR)
2017 2016
—Z & —T—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FiaE FExT FET
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FR),SEF (499,210) 34,994
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2wk - 20
Items that may be reclassified to profit or ~ AJ EF F R B #IEE
loss:
Exchange differences on translation WEIGINB A R R & A A
of financial statements of overseas MR EENEN =58
subsidiaries and associates 4,887 95
Exchange differences reclassified to profit gt &GN E 2 RIFE 7 =5
or loss on disposal of foreign operations BEENDERAR - (56)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial At H&E &R EE N FEE
assets [E518 28 (44,046) (21,029)
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss AHEAMEHE S REEREHHLE
on disposal of available-for-sale financial AREEER
assets 2,733 (1,106)
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss gt °] it & & Bl & E R E 18
on impairment loss on available-for-sale REREI D HEFE
financial assets 28 38,241 11,914
1,815 (10,182)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEWE - MBRHE
for the year, net of tax 1,815 (10,182)
Total comprehensive income AEER2ERRBE
for the year (497,395) 24,812
Attributable to: AT A LRSS -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE 2= DN (510,512) 6,890
Non-controlling interests SRR M A 13,117 17,922
(497,395) 24,812
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BBIR R

At 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R B AR =l
(A TTEIR)

2017 2016
—E—tH —T—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BfaE FExT FAExT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE K& 21 1,877 2,482
Investment properties wEYHE 22 38,300 62,400
Goodwiill GRS 23 318,356 500,459
Intangible assets | EE 24 79,777 82,041
Investments in associates REE N RIRIRE 26 28,182 38,939
Investment in a joint venture R—EEETENKE 27 3,418 -
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESRERE 28 37,149 83,567
Contingent consideration receivable PR SR A RAE 32 - 18,710
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HMEWFRIA 30 - 6,000
507,059 794,598
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 29 535 1,802
Trade and other receivables = %&E{ME WsRIE 30 78,846 54,348
Financial assets at fair value through %iﬂ?@ NEEYIRE
profit or loss Ko j‘iﬁ? 31 9,656 523,899
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 35 - 959
Tax recoverable ATk eI FIE 5,391 3,918
Pledged bank deposits BIEARITER 33 2,645 2,638
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 33 101,548 87,350
198,621 674,914
Current liabilities REIEE
Trade and other payables f’f%&,ﬁ\@ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ 34 17,721 44,762
Loan notes EREER 37 - 208,000
Convertible notes T&Hﬁmﬁ% 35 - 71,789
Current tax liabilities EHRIEAE 26,825 36,203
44,546 360,754
Net current assets REBEEFE 154,075 314,160
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRRBER 661,134 1,108,758
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Deferred tax liabilities LU,‘E&IEE & 36(a) 12,301 24,308
Loan notes BEREER 37 - 2,000
12,301 26,308
NET ASSETS EEFE 648,833 1,082,450
GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BEIR R

At 31 December 2017 NS = F Sar= 2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR)
2017 2016
—E—tH ZE—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BfaE FExT FAExT
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital %N 38 4,444 2,963
Reserves Gl 40 606,919 1,044,572
Equity attributable to owners KNS AELER
of the Company 611,363 1,047,535
Non-controlling interests SRR i 37,470 34,915
TOTAL EQUITY RS 648,833 1,082,450

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018 and are signed on its wEEeN _ T N\F=A_+BHESHUTES

behalf by: REF=
Hung Yvonne Pon Kai Choi Phemey
A BT
Director Director
FE 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-FT+F+-A=+AILFE

(A TTEIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTERAERS
Share Convertible Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed option noteequity  Exchange revaluation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
TRREE REEfR FER
Bx  ROEE EHRR BRERE EERE  EXGR R EibE &t Bi R
HK§000  HK§000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§000
TEn TEr  TEr  TEn T TR TEr  TEr TER  TER TiEn
At 1 January 2016 RZF—"5-A-H 12346 40124 982277 2,839 25,555 (45) 13293 (440436) 1,015,953 37,868 1,053,821
Profi for the year TEEET - - - - - - - 170R 170 17902 340
Other comprehensive income th2EkE - - - - - 19 (1021 - (10202 0 (10182
Total comprehensive income for AR E2ENHLE
the year - - - - - 19 (10,221) 17,092 6,890 17,922 24812
Avising from acquistion of WE-BHBLAREE
asubsidiary (note 43(3){i) (FizE4(a) - - - - - - - - - (1704 (1704
Disposal of a subsidary HE-FHBAR
(note 43(c)i) (FizE43(c)i) - - - - - - - - - (761) (761)
Share consolidation and RZZ—"FRA
capital reduction on ZTRBHRAAHR
24 May 2016 (note 38(a) TRREB (PH3E381e)) ©.877) - 9877 - - - - - - - -
Issuance of consideration shares &7 ER 1 (H5360))
(note 38(0)) 408 19,992 - - - - - - 20400 - 20400
Issuance of subscription shares ~ ETERER (3 (H338(c))
(note 38(c)) 86 4,206 - - - - - - 429 - 409
Dividends paid tonon-controling B FHERERMRE
interests [note 25) (Hizkos) - - - - - - - - - (184100 (18410)
Changes in equity for the year TERERE 038y 24198 9,877 - - - - - UBR (0875 3817
At 31 December 2016 and RIF—RF
at 1 January 2017 TZA=+-BRk
“2-tF-A-A 2963 444322 992,154 2,839 25,565 (26) 3072 (423,344) 1,047,535 34915 1,082,450
GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEmRBR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE

(ABTTEIIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATERAES
Share  Convertible Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed option noteequity Exchange revaluation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
TRREE REEfR FER
& RHEE EHER BRERE BERE EXRE R iR Eh Bi R
HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK000  HKS000  HK§000
TEn  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEn  TEr TR TEn TEx
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-E
at 1 January 2017 TZA=t-BRk
“F-t5-A-A 2963 444322 992,154 2839 25,565 (26) 3072 (423,344) 1,047,535 34915 1,082,450
Profit for the year TEEET - - - - - - - B12%n)  (12.32) 1817 (499,210)
Other comprehensive income Eth2EkE - - - - - 4887 (3.072) - 1815 - 1815
Total comprehensive income TERRENEEE

for the year - - - - - 4,887 3072 (p12327) (610512 13117 (497,39)
Avising from acquistion of WE-BHBAAREE

asubsidiary (note 43a)() GEZEE) - - - - - - - - - 2238 2238
Disposal of a subsidary HE-FHBAR

(note 43(c)) (FizE43(c)) - - - - - - - - - (1,990 (1990)
Redemption of comvertblenotes BB AT EREH (HizE35)

(note 35) - - - - (255%) - - 0555 - - -
Forfture of share options RERE - - - (1,419) - - - 1419 - - -
Righs issue of shares on RZE-tEATRAN

15 February 2017 note 38(d) HREARA(H3380) 1481 72850 - - - - - - T4 N ]
Dividends paid tonon-controling B TFHERER MRS

interests [note 25) (Hizkos) - - - - - - - - - {0810 (10810)
Changes in equity for the year TERERE 1481 72,859 - (1419 (26559 - - 26974 74340 (10,562) 63,778
At 31 December 2017 RIF—tF

TZA=1+-A 4444 517181 992,154 1,420 - 4,861 - (908697) 611,363 37470 648,833
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E-FLF A=t ALEE

(A TTEIR)

2017 2016
—T—tF ZE—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B s FHET FiET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHELSRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT(E5IR) m A
Continuing operations FHEIC B 2T (516,771) 63,415
Discontinued operation BRI EETE 3,123 1,155
(Loss)/profit before taxation Fian(E18) S5 F (513,648) 64,570
Adjustments for: L
Bank interest income ERITHBURA (88) (11)
Bad debts written off AR M8 = 29
Amortisation i3 21,602 19,524
Depreciation e 1,708 2,094
Dividend income AR EMA (1,598) (137)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment BEMEATFEERE (W)
properties 3,600 (8,495)
Fair value gain on contingent consideration — FEUS sk A (B A FBE U 25
receivable (1,690) (1,117)
Finance costs LI I %N 13,720 22,562
Fair value loss on derivative financial THESRIARNFEEBR
instruments 959 20,605
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at B @BEZ AR FEEFIRNSREE
fair value through profit or loss AT EERR(Uek) 31,240 (81,673)
Share of loss of associates JE(RES &N RIEE 15,644 5,550
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—EeErEEE 2,932 5
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERT B R M (1,845) (311)
Reversal of commission clawback provision < [B] % # & # o] - (1,585)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale  H &R HELREEN
financial assets B8 () 2,775 (849)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at far ~ H&EFEBERARFEETIES
value through profit or loss TEVE EREE 260,547 556
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWZE - B MR
and equipment BB (M) 11 (5)
Loss on disposal of an investment property &R EYEREE 2,477 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ESmEERERE
financial assets 38,241 11,914
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 182,000 30,000
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREAERERERE 7,769 995
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on trade Z SEUERR (B E),REEE
receivables (207) 161
Other loan interest income HAhEHFR 28U (828) (96)
Operating profit before working capital LEASEERNLERT]
changes 65,321 84,286
Decrease in inventories FERL 1,267 207
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 I E A fE G IE R 25,584 38,240
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMENFRIER D (9,443) (11,897)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair % @18 5 AR FBEFIERAY
value through profit or loss SRMEERD,(EM) 222,456 (119,700)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & XIS,/ (FTA)BEE 305,185 (8,864)
Income tax paid BRATSH (8,606) (19,228)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating #&4 EEFTE,/(FTH )R L FE
activities 296,579 (28,092)

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

= e e El

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2T

(ABTTSIR)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
B s FHET FiET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELSRE
ACTIVITIES
Capital injection to a joint venture M—AEERAIMNEE (6,350) -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of BRRENBATWEEEEEN
assets through acquisition of subsidiaries Bent F5E 43(b)(i)&(ii) - (36,997)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of BB ARMNR S RAFRE
subsidiaries 43(a)(i)&ii) 414 1,360
Net cash outflow of acquisition of associates Uk EEEf S N BIHYIR & m HF 58 - (40,290)
Bank interest received BUHERTTH B 88 11
Other loan interest received Eﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬂf)ﬁmﬂ%\ 921 -
Dividend received 2R E 1,598 137
Expenditure on development projects R E b (27,107) (28,144)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI T UL N (7) (5)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal of HEREARRBRS ML FE
subsidiaries 43(c)(i) (9,274) (457)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale & AJ#t H &£ RS EN TS 7KIE
financial assets 4,111 58,571
Issue of subscription shares BITRER N, = 4,292
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets B8 & Al HE S R EE - (12,708)
Proceeds from disposal of an investment L EREYERMSRIE
property 18,023 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE%  BE L& (606) (628)
Loan to an associate By —EBERRNER (27,230) -
Advance to former subsidiary of the Group B T AN B i B 2 Al M B - (7,545)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBAARE FE (45,419) (62,403)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEEHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid EH?"H (15,284) (19,298)
Proceeds from rights issue HxE’Jﬁﬁ?%?k 74,340 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests EH?H A (10,810) (14,727)
Proceeds from issuance of loan notes BITERER E’]ﬁﬁ %/(IE - 2,000
Repayment of loan notes 1 g ﬁ%mmﬁﬁ (210,000) (4,500)
Repayment of convertible notes BEATBRRER (75,208) -
Net cash used in financing activities BB RE TR S FEE (236,962) (36,525)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BERBESEEYEM, CRL)FE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14,198 (127,020)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEETE R F B ) o8 - 93
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—B—HBHHNERERESEEY
1 JANUARY 87,350 214,277
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RT-ZA=+—HHERERESEEY
31 DECEMBER 101,548 87,350
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH BEeERREEEY I
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEEY 33 101,548 87,350
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GENERAL INFORMATION

GET Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 30
July 2001 and continued in Bermuda on 9 January 2014. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located at 21st Floor, China Hong Kong Tower, Nos 8-12
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The principal activity
of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries (together with the Company collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000) unless otherwise stated. Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”") is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017. None of these impact on the accounting policies
of the Group. However, the Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative require disclosure of changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
effect of the amendments on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements has been the inclusion of additional disclosures in
note 43(e).

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(A TTEIR)

REER

BHERERAR(ARRNR=ZEZT—FtA
—tRERSHEFMKIABREER AR
YR-ZZE—NF—ANBEBREFE - A2
7] 5% ff ¥ = & {2 % Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda » EE T B &%
B AE S E(FEEATES- 125 R B KE214E -

ARABENRBEBARSAARRAE (B
FTDGEMET « RRABME R X RIREER -
HfE AR GERARRGMEI AEE D EEE
BRI AR & B ISR MY 3125

BIEREHA  BRAGEFBHRERATET(T
BT DB < BIT([EIT]) /SR RRKLY
EEEERASENTIREY -

mREE

ZEGEVBHRERETBGANLG([HE
GEEAE DEGNMEERERYBRELED
(IBEEMBMELER ] RE - BEMEIMEER
BREBMBHREEA([EBHMBREER])
aFRetEA( BB e ER ) - k2 - %%
fr A B IS AR IS A B A2 P RE 25 AR Rl R SE
BRI R BB RN TR (5622 ) B ERIRE
REERMNN T E S BERKBERM TS

WASEz ARG HE  FESHMASERMG
ETERERLAIHRFER 2N REBITE
BHBHEER - EREARTEAEEGHN
BRI A i BT S MENTAE
ABREE  ERMNGRAHBEAN  AHE
FHETRES ©

RN RS B R M B REER

(@) MR REETEBMHEHREZER

BAEGHAGERBZEN T —LF—
H— B2 & 50 F 2 8 B R AR R
R REERI BB MELER - ZFEAW
BYBEASENEHER - A - BEGE
HRIE7TRRESREBR | WEABNETE
FWERATHELNAGEES  BIERE
RenBNEH IR CEE - ARETY
AEBEERE RO ERNHITE43)#
AFRIMEEEE R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017. These new and revised HKFRSs
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

1 January 2018
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
HKFRS 16 Leases

1 January 2019

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed for
HKFRS 9, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standard are initially
applied in the Group’s first quarter financial report for the three
months ending 31 March 2018. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that first quarter financial
report.

e PR RR M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

94

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will
not restate comparative information.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of the
Company have assessed the impact of HKFRS 9 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group expects to irrevocably designate those
listed and unlisted equity securities currently classified
as available-for-sale as at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Fair value gains and losses on these instruments will no
longer be recycled to profit or loss on disposal. Impairment
losses on equity securities will no longer be recognised in
profit or loss but rather in other comprehensive income.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
(o) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise and measure
either a 12-month expected credit loss or lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on the asset and the
facts and circumstances. The Group expects that the
application of the expected credit loss model will result
in earlier recognition of credit losses. Based on historical
experience of the Group, the impairment loss made on
the outstanding trade receivables is insignificant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and the default
rate of the outstanding trade receivables is low. The
management of the Company preliminary assess that
the adoption of the new impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 would have insignificant impact to the Group’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of
services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies
the accounting for revenue from construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. The standard permits either a full retrospective or
a modified retrospective approach for the adoption. The Group
intends to adopt the standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the
adoption will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has
identified timing of revenue recognition which are expected to be
affected.

Currently, revenue arising from the provision of services is
recognised over time, whereas revenue from the sale of goods
is generally recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership
have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised
good or service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(a) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(o) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(c) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any
of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point
in time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting
HKFRS 15 on the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the new standard
on the consolidated financial statements until a detailed analysis is
completed.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations.
The new standard introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS
17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to
classify leases as operating or financing leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for
the year prior to first adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

98

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect
primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating leases. The
Group’s leases for office premises and office equipment are
currently classified as operating leases and the lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise and measure
a liability at the present value of the future minimum lease
payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset
for these leases. The interest expense on the lease liability and
depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit
or loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and the
timing of expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 44(b), the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office
premises and office equipment amounted to HK$11,235,000
as at 31 December 2017. These leases are expected to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-
use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will be
adjusted for the effects of discounting and the transition reliefs
available to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties, contingent
consideration receivable and certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties.
A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve relating to that
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum
of the consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwiill
is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If
an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder
has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement. The Group has assessed the type of each of its
joint arrangements and determined them to all be joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint
venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in a
loss of joint control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (i) the Group’s entire
carrying amount of that joint venture (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If
an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation

0

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
Statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. FESTTBER(E)
(e) Foreign currency translation (continued) () IMNEE]E (&
(i) Translation on consolidation (i) AERRARRE

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the lease term, if shorter

Office equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Computer hardware and software 3-5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable
to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair
value based on valuation by an external valuer. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of the investment property are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised as intangible assets if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs (see note 4(v)), where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Customer relationship and computer software are that intangible
assets with finite useful lives and are acquired through business
combination. The intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are stated at cost, being the fair value at the date
of completion of the business combination, less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

U]

0

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Development costs on personal computer 2-9 years
performance software, anti-virus software
and mobile applications (“Computer and
Mobile Phone Software”)
— Customer relationship 10 years
— Computer software 6 years

The residual values, useful lives and amortisation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Operating Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments are stated at cost and subsequently
amortised on the straight-line basis over the remaining term of
the lease.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Inventories

Inventories represent finished goods which are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises
the agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts from
variation orders, claims and incentive payments arising from
professional |.T. contract services. Contract costs incurred
comprise equipment and material costs, subcontracting costs,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of work completed to date to the estimated total work
of the relevant contract. Where the outcome of a contract cannot
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as
an amount due to contract customers.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset’s but has not
retained control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

HE—ZT
(A TTEIR)

4.

TR ) e il S |

FEEFBER(R)

(k)

V)

RIBEH

BHWABRERESNERBENETER
BEEHE  REXAFEEARRAOR
%%Eiﬁ’ﬂi%% FREAR KA BIERER
WHER - DRER  BEEATRAZEHHE
i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@}@%‘%{%ﬁ °

BERERBASRATIZE LB D LR -
T2RIRKE K TIREA A O hET T
RESNLLPIETE - EANBARNBERREE

BAE - AR ERE LRRARE
W TIRE AR

RN E R ERAEL AR EERHR
=l

el

fi B BIPRE LA SR A INE RER R FIRE i
WESTEtHj&}EVTAIE BRI RAR (R
BRFPFIBRRE - fWiREE AR B 5
FREEAE BV K9P I B MR 7B B e RR B
1B BRBREERNANEPFIRRE -

RRItEREMIA

AEERBSERTEA BT HOTE -
EREERSBBENGESPBRRKE

7,
PRUWERE ER R ERTKENEW - A&
EEEEERGENBABS R L ER ;
AAREEREEBEN MRAEEREENE
REBS B R B3R - B TMRE & E R PG
o BeRIEReREE - RELEERS
BMEER ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁ\ﬂ%ﬂﬂﬁuﬁaﬂ
Hith 2 E W TR Rt BB EFHEN =
BN ERIER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
financial assets within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either financial assets classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these financial assets are

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method (except for short-
term receivables where interest is immaterial) minus any
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically
trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash are

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
these investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investments are disposed of or there
is objective evidence that the investments are impaired,
at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.

4.
(m) Financial assets (continued)
0
recognised in profit or loss.
(i) Loans and receivables
classified in this category.
(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(0)

(9)]

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for money
lending, merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group (i.e. the
operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group) that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the component meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs
when the component is abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)]

(q)

Discontinued operation (continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented in the statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group constituting the discontinued
operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

()

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the
notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
that consist of a liability and an equity component. At
the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity of the Group, is included in equity as convertible
note equity reserve. The liability component is carried as
a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

If the note is converted, the convertible note equity
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the convertible
note equity reserve is released directly to retained profits.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

BHE—ZT
(ABTTEIIR)

e PR RR M

= e e El

4. FESTHHEHE)

(@ =EBMEENKRATAGE)

(i)

(i)

()

AR

BT A ARMNZREELRESRE
RMREERE RA T AN]SR
5 iR A M B E gD AR H
BATHE -RETEH  BEFHH
NP BETRE R REERRER
BTG ARG o BITRIRRERIED
FRSFIREIEE RB BN AFE
EMERNER @ BESEABRE
R AASE R BRAHE T
REmIIERR R MHE - &
EED (€ A E B A TR IR E KA
BRRAE  EEENAREDR T
ke

RPRATRERRBERENEER

Rz A DN EET A B ARRREER
LBl e - Bt a0 A BRI ER D
B ENERTHIER o

THERBE R - BRI R R
wERREEESS NREETE
BERAREDEE - EREITRN
BRE - [MRBERERD - BIATHRR

EREnHESEEREREETN -

BZRAEMENTE

B 5 REMENFAN SRR TEE
FIfR - HAR A BRI $5£$§%§éiﬁi$
T8 RIEBRRPEBEN - RILtE)

T BRRANER

KA TA

ARARETORATEREWAERK
EHIRERETRAALR -

BEZERABRAT 201755k

115



116

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

U]

(s)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently measured at
fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised
in profit or loss as they arise.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or non-
financial host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of
the host contract with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

) Service income

- Revenue from website development is recognised
when the services are rendered.

- Revenue from software application, e-learning
platform and maintenance services is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the service
contract.

- Revenue from corporate management solution
service contracts and professional I.T. service
contracts is recognised on the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to
the proportion of work completed to date to the
estimated total work of the relevant contract, where
the outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered.

- Revenue from [.T. maintenance service is
recognised when the service are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

()

Sale income

Revenue from the sale of application software, sale
of goods, hardware and software is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold.

Loan interest income

Interest income on loans are recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset. When a loan
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash receipts for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Toolbar and advertisement

Toolbar revenue is derived principally from online toolbar
private label arrangements with toolbar service providers.
The Group allows the toolbar service providers to launch
their toolbar installation application associated with the
installation of the Group’s software. One part of the
toolbar revenue is received from the service providers
based on number of qualified installation. Another part of
toolbar revenue is from search-based income. When the
users use the search engine incorporated in the toolbar
to search for goods and services, and they purchase the
goods and services from the advertisements listed in the
search result, the toolbar service provider will share part of
the revenue it receives with the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

118

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

()

(V)

(i)

(vii)

Toolbar and advertisement (continued)

Income from advertisement is derived principally from
online advertising arrangements. The Group enters
into advertising arrangements with advertisers to allow
them to put advertisements on particular areas of the
Group’s electronic platforms, or embedded hyperlinks
to advertisements in the Group’s electronic platform. For
the hyperlinks embedded in the Group’s websites, the
advertisers pay the Group based on number of clicks on
the hyperlinks.

The Group recognises revenue when the revenue can
be measured reliably and the collectability is reasonably
assured.

Commission income

Commission income from provision of an online shopping
platform is recognised when the services are rendered.

Commission income from insurance and mandatory
provident fund schemes brokerage services is recognised
on an accrual basis based on the commissioning of the
respective insurance policies and mandatory provident
fund schemes.

Training course income

Training course income from provision of education and
training program is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(Vi)

()

Bank interest income

Bank interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits

U

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

120

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
and interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

A

B

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

U

(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

@

(i)

(i

()

(vi)

(i

(viil)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provide key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v)

(2)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates
are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
its financial assets (other than those at fair value through profit or
loss) are impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables, etc.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

4.

FEEFBER(R)

(v)

(2)

FERMEERE

HiF2 R EEMNREENS RS AR
EERERETS - WEEDRE @ QBB
SHRGBRAFHBRE LA AT RE S -
MBS E YR ERNEEETE - HEMEEL
BEARMOBYUNEMEEREEAAN
HemA - AR eEREEMBNRS
EHBETETE - TREeEAENEESLR
SEHETHEMBEERREQAFEBRLE
RAMRE R Z 8=

EREEREE REEHEITHEFRKE
SREBNEE - RERKREERRENRE
E/ReEHET(BE8RE) NNERE
M BIRE IR KA H -

ReERETMRERBEEERNEHEERNC
MR RERASELETNEMEEZM
RELPIDEE - BER Mt R EBE R R
RIERETARSE  EEBERE -

TREERE

RERERR - AEEEREFZEEERR
EREENGFARRSREANTSHER
BRE|EEN-BRZEEHMIIZE) T
HepBECEBBENRFEAEENS
BEERINEDRE -

SRAHEHERRTAME - RENRATEE
KW B 5 4 T BB AR TR AR R B R
BERR -

BES - BRI (R 2 B 5 AR
M - A% E SR EA %A B ERRE
B - EEA NITEEREN - REKHE
BB RS IR EIR R RS
SEHAFEATRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(2)

(aq)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount
of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for trade receivables) through profit or loss.
However, the reversal must not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds what the amortised cost of the financial asset would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed.

For available-for-sale debt securities, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. In
respect of available-for-sale equity securities, an increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve;
impairment losses are not reversed through profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

4. FESTHHEHE)

(2)

(aa)

TREEMEE)

28 5 YRR REE S 6B RERT
A T EAR U E 2 AT IEH RO BRRR Th AT AR
iR - BB REEZBERT R -

B EMCEREEMS - KEETEZRR
IERRIEL IR

SRR A ENEREEN = - WEE
BESENERPERD - MZRD AR
Bt ERRREREEN—IAEMHEM
AR C R EEBEEBIEREE(E
EREZHRE SRR RNBER) - A
i BENSEEREERMRE L EER
MEZIASREERELREE A K
7K o

MAHNERTESME - WREZ A THE
B INTT AR E I SRR EERREE 2
—HEMHER  AREFREREN ST
‘e - R HHERAESTE - HBRRE
JEHRIE 2 N T EES TR Hofh 2 e s
R AR AEGFE  TREBETER
BEP RO -

BERIREE

AR BB E B EARRBARRETE
Bff - BETZEEM ERGBEBENER
- WEEAISEfAEt 2R - AIEpE AR RHER
SENEEHN B ERRERIE - HWEXRER
EX - AREMETE AN EEL
& o

WARATRER BRMEEN - KEBEA
SRR - MIEMAETREAXAAE
BRIER BRI RE IR R AV ERIR - BiE R
AL AR S IEARREFEERLF
FERETHWAREE  THREAXAAE K
SEV B AT BE MRS R VE RIS ©

BEZERERAT 20175

125



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(bb) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use (“VIU”) of the CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated. The VIU calculation requires the directors
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$318,356,000 (2016:
HK$500,459,000) after an impairment loss of HK$182,000,000
(2016: HK$30,000,000) was recognised during the year. Details
of the impairment test for CGU containing goodwill are set out in
note 23.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

Recoverability of intangible assets

During the year, the management has evaluated the impairment
of intangible assets by way of higher of VIU calculation by
reference to the discounted cash flows derived from financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group or fair
value less cost to disposal with reference to the latest market
transactions (“FVLCTS”). If the higher of the VIU or FVLCTS is
less than the corresponding carrying amounts, an impairment
loss may be required.

U

Development costs on Computer and Mobile Phone
Software

During the year, the Group reconsidered the recoverability
of its internally-generated intangible asset arising from
the Group’s Computer and Mobile Phone Software
development, which is included in its consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2017 at
approximately HK$71,276,000 (2016: HK$71,962,000)
after an impairment loss of approximately HK$7,769,000
(2016: HK$995,000) was recognised during the year.
The projects continue to progress in a very satisfactory
manner, and customer reaction has reconfirmed the
Group’s previous estimates of anticipated revenues from
the projects. However, increased competitor activities have
caused the Group to reconsider its assumptions regarding
future market shares and anticipated margins on these
products. Detailed sensitivity analysis has been carried out
and the Group is confident that the carrying amount of the
asset will be recovered in full, even if returns are reduced.
This situation will be closely monitored, and adjustments
made in future periods, if future market activity indicates
that such adjustments are appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Recoverability of intangible assets (continued)
(i) Customer relationship and computer software

The management determines whether customer
relationship and computer software are impaired
requires an estimation of the VIU of the CGU to which
the assets are allocated. The VIU calculation requires the
management to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate to
calculate the present value. No impairment loss was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016. Detailed of the impairment review are provided in
note 24.

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets reflect
management’s estimation on the Group’s intention to
derive future economic benefits from the intangible assets.
The management performs annual reviews of whether the
assumptions made of useful lives continue to be valid. When
useful lives of intangible assets are different from those previously
estimated, the amortisation charges for future periods will be
adjusted accordingly.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$79,777,000 (2016:
HK$82,041,000).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group estimates the useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives and
residual values are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear and
tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence arising from
changes in market demand or service output of the assets. The
Group also performs annual reviews on whether the assumptions
made on useful lives and residual values continue to be valid.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$1,877,000 (2016:
HK$2,482,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(e)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group had available-for-sale investments which were stated
at their fair values on the basis of their quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period, on an individual basis. Any gains
or losses are recognised as a separate component of equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss previously reported in equity is included in profit or
loss. Management has to assess whether objective evidence
of significant impairment exists and consider whether it is
appropriate to charge the cumulative loss to profit or loss. In
making its judgement, the Group considers (i) the future prospect
of the underlying investments; and (i) the underlying financial
position of the investments.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine
when an available-for-sale equity investment is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost; and the financial health of and short-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology as well
as operational and financing cash flow.

If declines in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
below cost were considered significant or prolonged, additional
impairment may be required.

During the year, approximately HK$38,241,000 (2016:
HK$11,914,000) of impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets was charged to profit or loss.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques and considering information from a variety of sources,
including the latest financial information from the fund manager or
administrator of the underlying investments. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in these estimates and
assumptions could have a material effect on the fair value of the
available-for-sale financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
(continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market at the end of the reporting period was
approximately HK$1,933,000 (2016: HK$2,147,000).

Trade and other receivables

The aged debt profile of trade and other receivables is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the debtor balances are
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried out if the
agreed credit periods have been exceeded. However, from time
to time, the Group may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of debtor balances is called into doubt, specific
provisions for impairment losses are made based on credit
status of the customers, the aged analysis of the trade and other
receivable balances and their write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible, yet subsequently become
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the statement of profit or loss. Changes in the
collectability of trade and other receivables for which provision
are not made could affect the results of operations.

As at 31 December 2017, accumulated impairment loss for
bad and doubtful debts was approximately HK$20,000 (2016:
HK$304,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$14,438,000 of income tax
from continuing operations was credited (2016: HK$29,576,000
income tax charged) to profit or loss based on the estimated
profit from operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(i

0

Revenue and profit recognition

The Group estimates the percentage of completion of the
contracts for services by reference to the proportion that the
stage of work performed to date to the estimated total costs
for the contracts. When the final cost incurred by the Group is
different from the amounts that were initially budgeted, such
differences will impact the revenue and profit or loss recognised
in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$2,176,000 (2016:
HK$6,669,000) of revenue from the contracts for services from
continuing operations was recognised.

Fair value of contingent consideration receivable

The fair value of contingent consideration receivable from
acquisition of AP Group Investment Holdings Limited (“AP
Holdings”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“AP Group”) was determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select a method and make
assumptions, including the discount rates and estimation of post-
acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Changes
in assumption used could materially affect the fair value of the
balances and as a result affect the Group’s financial condition
and results of operation. In view of the financial performance of
AP Group for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2017, the directors consider that the likelihood for the AP Group
to meet the Profit Guarantee (as defined in note 32) is remote.
Therefore, the directors consider that it is likely for the Group
to receive the principal amount of HK$20,400,000 (notes 30(h)
and 32). During the year ended 31 December 2017, a gain
on fair value change of contingent consideration receivable of
approximately HK$1,690,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the carrying value of other
receivables. Details of the contingent consideration receivable
and other receivable are disclosed in notes 30(h) and 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent valuer to assess the fair
value of the investment properties. In determining the fair value,
the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the method of valuation and inputs used
are reflective of the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2017 was approximately of HK$38,300,000 (2016:
HK$62,400,000).

Joint control assessment

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint arrangement
of Creative Lead Limited. The directors have determined that
the Group has joint control over the arrangement as under the
contractual agreement, it appears that unanimous consent
is required from all parties to the agreement for all relevant
activities.

Consolidation of entity with 50% equity interest
holding

Although the Group owns 50% equity interest in Nobel Education
Organisation Limited (“Nobel Education”), the directors treated
Nobel Education as a subsidiary because the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of Nobel
Education by virtue of shareholders’ agreement and Articles of
Association of Nobel Education. Management had exercised
judgement and determined that the Company has control over
Nobel Education.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities
and United States dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The effect of the strengthened or weakened of Hong Kong
dollars against US$ on the loss after tax is not significant.

Price risk

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price risk due
to the fluctuation of shares prices of available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
directors review the exposure to the equity security price risk on
the available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss regularly.

If the share prices of the available-for-sale financial assets and
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss increase/
decrease by 10% (2016: 10%), the other comprehensive income
and loss (2016: profit) after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$3,715,000 higher/lower (2016: HK$8,142,000
higher/lower) and approximately HK$806,000 lower/higher (2016:
HK$43,736,000 higher/lower) respectively, arising as a result of
the fair value gain/loss of the available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Price risk (continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had concentration of equity
security price risk on one (2016: two) of its listed securities
investments in Hong Kong accounted for 64% (2016: 78%) of
its available-for-sale financial assets and one (2016: two) of its
listed investments in Hong Kong accounted for 66% (2016: 98%)
of its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31
December 2017.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
pbasis.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers and service providers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customers’ and service providers’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer and service provider
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer and service provider operate. The directors are of the
opinion that no further provision for uncollectible receivables is
required in the consolidated financial statements. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral or guarantee from customers
and service providers except the loan receivables under money
lending business.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s

exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 30.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

6. MBARERE(HE)

Liquidity risk (d) REBESRE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected REBBR D THERRR RERRESHRS
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient B2 UBRESENRSHEEBRNEHR
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short RERBDESHE -
and longer term.
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BEAEBCRAENEGLRMIBRS R
flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: ERNEHESTT
2017
—Ztf
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or on less than less than After
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1ERR BB1F BiE2fF
REREE B2 BAHR5E 55% @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THET TR THET TET THET
Trade payables B HEMER 3,366 - - - 3,366
Deposits received Blge 3,054 - - - 3,054
Amount due to non-controlling FERTE A AR iR
interests of subsidiaries B)FRE 971 - - - 971
Accrued expenses and BB R R E M ER B
other payables 7,658 - - - 7,658
Total trade and other payables S REMENFALE 15,049 - - - 15,049
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6.

(d)

HE—ZT
(A TTEIR)

TR ) e il S |

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MEEKER(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) (d) FRBESEMREE)
2016
ZERF
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than After
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1ERK iE1FE @A
REXER PivES NES 5% it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FiET FET TET
Trade payables U g 5,016 - - - 5,016
Deposits received BlEe 5,481 - - - 5,481
Amount due to non-controling [ERME AR E R
interests of subsidiaries E’J/TAIE 3,972 - - - 3972
Loan notes interest payables TEREENE 4,983 - - - 4,983
Accrued expenses and 1‘J‘§ﬁ REAERFIE
other payables 21,421 - - - 21,421
Total trade and other payables BHREMBNFELE 40,873 - - - 40,873
Loan notes BEREE 221,548 2,180 - - 223,728
Convertible notes BEES 75,208 - - - 75,208
337,629 2,180 - - 339,809
Interest rate risk (e) FI=Ek

(e)

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities are bank deposits and loan receivables from
customers. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities were bank deposits, loan
receivables from customers and loan notes.

The Group’s interest income from bank deposits is dependent
on changes in market interest rates and will not have significant
adverse impact on the Group’s financial position.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and loan receivables from
customers are at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to

fair values interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR)
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. HKEMEE(E)
()  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December H HK+tZBE=+—HHSmIALEH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EB—RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Financial assets: SWMEE :
Financial assets at fair value through FRBRUAANTEBEYIENSREE
profit or loss:
Held for trading HEEE 9,656 523,899
Derivatives financial instruments PTESRMITA - 959
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 37,149 83,567
Loans and receivables (including cash and B & EWRFIE(BIERE &
cash equivalents) ReFEBW) 180,984 147,425
Contingent consideration receivable PR SR ARAE - 18,710
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R ENERAE 15,049 317,180
(9) Fair value (90 2~¥EE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and NEBGEMBIIARIRERHEELRES R
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of BEMNEREEREZENA T EBERS

financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:
Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

 E—E—+F+-A=1t—HIFE
(ABTTSIR)

APEENE

RFEEETS2EEZMNGAEAREAFR
SHHEEER KM HE R BRI THER
TXHEEAAFEESRIENAFEE B
R ERFEENGEN ZBABBRELED K=
BRI

ERS TN ¢ & AEEARE 2 A HGHE
RBEREENERTHH
BORERR) -

Et ETUN ¢ & ERFRRNEER AR
BREARE  MEFE R
FREFEIRE -
EEIEIUN ¢ & BEFRBOTABEGA
g -

FEENRERERBEZEHRE (A NEHE
B EFM=ERNBARELER

@@ RTZA=+t—HNAFEESREK

December: =
Fair value measurement using: Total
AP EEFEMABR et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
E—R B E= —B-tF
Description HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#1E FTHEx FHET FTHERT FERT
Recurring fair value measurements: EHEHAFEEFE :
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through BIBBEAATEAETIRN
profit or loss CREE
Listed equity securities ERAES 3,236 - 6,420 9,656
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EEHEE
Listed equity securities R AES 35,216 - 1,635 36,851
Unlisted equity securities FEEMBRAES - - 142 142
Unlisted investment funds FELEMEEES - - 156 156
Investment properties REME
Commercial units - Hong Kong PEHEEN BB - 38,300 - 38,300
Total et 38,452 38,300 8,353 85,105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(a)

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

7. AVEEFEGE)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ RTZAE=+—HHATFEESHHE
December: (continued) #= ()
Fair value measurement using: Total
REEBEAEFMAER fEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
F—5 St} F=H —TRE
Description HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
L FAT FAT FHAT FAT
Recurring fair value measurements: EHEHAFEEFE :
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through BIBBENAATEAETRW
profit or loss SREE
Listed equity securities FIRAES 523,899 - - 523,899
Derivatives financial instruments TEERIE - - 959 959
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EEHEE
Listed equity securities FTRAES 81,420 - - 81,420
Unlisted investment funds FELEMEEES - - 2,147 2,147
Contingent consideration receivable WK ARE - - 18,710 18,710
Investment properties REME
Commercial units - Hong Kong EEBN-BE - 62,400 - 62,400
Total et 605,319 62,400 21,816 689,535

During the year, two listed equity securities which were classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets amounting to approximately
HK$6,420,000 and HK$1,635,000 respectively were transferred
from measurement based on Level 1 to Level 3 as these
listed equity securities were suspended of trading in the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2017.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

REE  MBELHEAZFRDBAEBE
sARFEEINENEBEERAHREE
THEE - 25 R#4)6,420,000/8 T &K
1,635,000 7T ' ERE-—REBEE=H
AR EARRELTRAESFREE-T
—tF+ A=t RIEFERBRMEE

o

mf
i

\

REE_ZT—RE+A=+—HILLFE -
NS Sk i A ik S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AVEEEGE)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) REFE=FRAFEEAENEEY
on Level 3: AR :
2017
“E-tF
Financial
assets at fair
Derivative value through Contingent
financial profit or consideration
instruments loss Available-for-sale financial assets receivables
Listed Listed Unlisted Unlisted
equity equity equity  investment
securities securities securities funds
EBAG
WATHE
SIERM
fTESMIA SREE THLESREE EKSARE
L L

LhRAES  LRRAES BaEs REES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Thn T TR T

At1 January 2017 RZE—t5-F-H 959 - - - 2,147 18,710
Purchases/additions BE/HE - - - 1,781 = =
Transfer into Level 3 #2240 - 6,420 1,635 - - -
Transfer to other receivables BREEMENGR - - - - = (20,400)
Total gains/(osses) recognised RTSIBE #a2h)
i/ (FR)aE
-in profit or loss ~ gt (959) - - - - 1,690
~in other comprehensive income —E2ERA - - - (1,639) (1,991) -
At 31 December 2017 RZF-t%
+-F=1-H - 6,420 1,635 142 156 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7.

(b)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

BHE—ZT

= e e El

(ABTTSIR)

7. DV EEEGE)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) REBEE=FZEANFLEEFT=ENEES
on Level 3: (continued) R (&)
2016
—E-5E
Financial
assets at fair
Derivative  value through Contingent
financial profit or consideration
instruments loss listed Available-for-sale financial assets receivables
Listed Unlisted Unlisted
Equity equity equity investment
securities securities securies funds
WATEE
gl
TESRMIA SRARE RLESRERE s AR E
L ¥Em
IikAES  LIRARS BAES RERe
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR b TiEn T AT
At1 January 2016 R=F-~5-A-A 21,564 - - - 30,613 -
Purchases/addtions BE/TE - - - - - 17593
Settlements & - - - - (21,000 -
Total gains/(losses) recognised N TbER
I/ (FR)BE
~in profit or loss - Bt 20,605) - - - - 1117
- in other comprehensive income -EhzEls - - - - (7,466) -
At 31 December 2016 RIZ-—RETZA=1-H 959 - - - 2147 18,710
® Included in other gains or losses. ® HAHAMUKRES SIS o

The total losses recognised in other comprehensive income
are presented in fair value loss on available-for-sale financial
assets in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The total gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss including
those for assets held at end of reporting period are presented in
other gains and losses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Hih 2R ERNEIBRENREER
&E{ﬂi@”ﬁl sRPAHEECREEAT
BEFIEZ7 -

—HE\

RiBERERNKE (BB BEENRE
HIREE - WkreBakh E e
REEE5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2017:

The Group’s management is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.
The management reviews the fair value measurements at least
once a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the

valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements
are mainly:

- risk free rate (estimated based on zero coupon rate)

- yield spread (estimated based on certain comparable
bonds)

- expected volatility (estimated based on historical volatility)

- dividend yield (estimated based on no dividends will be
paid in the near future)

- present value of expected future share price (estimated
based on dividend yield is zero)

- probability-weighted profit
- discount factor

Level 2 fair value measurements

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

7. AVEEFEGE)

() BHEAKER-T—tF+=

A=+—

BAFTAGERRF - AERTEQFEE

TR A ARE

AEEEREABERMBRSE

i
RaEn R FEEAR(BES
R

BHHE) - ERESFEDS—
B -

P

1

LA
oo
N

THRREE
N RFE

RE=RATEEIEMS - ALE—RE
B A B A H A 1S B AR AR

HEMLEER o

E=RATVEEMAIETTEERAARE

TERRE:

- ERRAE(REZEEERMHE)

- WEER(REETHELRESG

&)

- EHRECREESLREG)

fhah)

- BREXRMBREBEIAERTEIRMNES

-  AHARRERENREREZRSX

fhah)

—  AIRElEINREE A

- MBRREE

E-RAFEBHT 2

Fair value

ATEE
Description Valuation technique Inputs Carrying amount 2017 2016
e TEER BAHE BEE —E—tF ZERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT T
Commercial units located Direct comparison method Market price per square foot 38,300 38,300 62,400

in Hong Kong

MINEEZEREN BRI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(©

e PR RR M

HE_T—+tHF+-_A=1+—HIEFE
(ABTTEIIR)

7. DV EEEGE)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () BWEAEENR-Z—tF+ZA=1+—
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value HETRAMERR - AERTRAFER
measurements at 31 December 2017: (continued) sTEMMARWAZE - (&)
Level 3 fair value measurements E=RNFEETZE
Effect on fair
value for increase Carrying Fair value
Description Valuation technique Inputs Range of inputs amount 2017
BAREEM AVEE
#E RER BAZE B8 HATEENYE AR ZE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BRBRRATEGBE
HepAE
- Listed equity securities  Index return method Share price HK$0.108 - HK$0.167  Increase 6,420 6,420
Return on relevant market 0.2% -4.46% Increase
index
Liquidity discount 30% Decrease
- FiRAES EHEHE RE 0.108%7T-0.167%7T M
RATSERER 02%-4.46% 10
FBMNRE 0% HY
Avallable-for-sale financial
at assets
e REE
- Listed equity securities  Index return method Share price HK$0.16  Increase 1,635 1,635
Return on relevant market 4.46% Increase
index
Liquidity discount 30% Decrease
— tmRRES REERA RE 016/
RATSERER 4.46% $Em
FBMNRE 0% HY
- Unlisted equity securities Net asset value Net asset value per share HK$0.85 Increase 142 142
—F ETRAES EEFE BREESE 085787
- Unlisted investment fund  Net asset value Net asset value per share HK$142  Increase 156 156
-FITREES EEFE BREESE 1428 B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AVEEEGE)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () BWEAEENR-Z—tF+ZA=1+—

AP AfGERF - ERTEQFEE

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

144

measurements at 31 December 2017: (continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

STEFAEARE - (&)

FE=RNFEEFE(E)

Effect on fair
value for increase Carrying Fair value
Description Valuation technique Inputs Range of inputs amount 2016
SAZEEN NTEE
HiE fhER BAZE HE HATEENFE REE S
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT Fh
Derivative financial Binominal model Share price HK$0.543  Increase 959 959
Instruments ZERER Risk free rate 0.858% Increase
fTESmIA Yield spread 6.1% Decrease
Expected volatility 69.57% Increase
Dividend yield 0% Decrease
& 054357 1M
pidel eyl 0.858% 3Em
WeEE 6.1% FD
bt 69.57% 35
Rex 0% "D
Available-for-sale financial
assets
AfHESREE
- Unlisted investment fund  Net asset value Net asset value per share HK$1,952  Increase 2,147 2,147
—JtmRELS EERE BREETE 1,952i87 &M
Contingent consideration ~ Discounted cash flow Probability-weight profit Loss of HK$19,397 - Increase 18,710 18,710
receivables approach profit of HK$1,965,505 321
SRR E BERREREE BEmERH E1819,30787LE  No change or
1#711,965,505%7  decrease
REZARD
Discount factor 6.97% Decrease
BRRZ i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied and services
provided to customers. An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year

M RAR MR
BE-F—tF+-A=+AILFE
(ABTEHIR)

EERERAEPHEE R RIEHREWIHEERE
B AEEAFEREFELEEBTNEEED

from continuing operations is as follows: T -
2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—K
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
(Re-presented)
(ggE5)
Sales of computer and mobile phone software 5% B K BN E A EF A K
and toolbar advertisement TEWES 109,209 120,259
Loan interest income BERF2WA 813 4,684
Provision of corporate management solution REGEEBBRIRER
and I.T. contract services BB A DR 60,949 59,963
Sales from online shopping business W LEEMEBIEERA 25 550
Provision of education and training programs RIEHE MIEIEE 16,784 8,078
187,780 193,534
9. OTHER REVENUE 9. EHfgA
2017 2016
—Z & —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(Re-presented)
(ggE5)
Continuing operations BFREREEER
Bank interest income RITFLBMA 88 10
Other loan interest income EABE A BUA 828 96
Rental income AEWA 1,604 1,343
Dividend income & B U A 1,598 137
Others HAh 460 249
4,578 1,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE

(A TTEIR)

10. Hftizm RESHE - F8E

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Continuing operations BEREEL
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net [ H ks (B518) - F58 16 (118)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets BRBRUATEEYENSREE
at fair value through profit or loss AHEE(EE), e (31,240) 81,673
(Loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEESEE(B8) W
financial assets (2,775) 849
Loss on disposal of financial assets HESEBEBRUAFEENERD
at fair value through profit or loss CRIEERBE (260,547) (556)
Loss on disposal of an investment property HEREMENEBE (2,477) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR
(notes 43(c)(i)&ii) (P 43(c) (i) B i) - 311
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWME - BREREEN(EBE) ke
plant and equipment (11) 5
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial A E SR EEREEE(ME28)
assets (note 28) (38,241) (11,914)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 23) PR A RS (M13523) (182,000) (30,000)
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note 24) m & ERE RS (M5E24) (7,769) (995)
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties BEMENFEEER) et
(note 22) (fzE22) (3,600) 8,495
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments #7144 &t T B A FEEEE (Fi5£35)
(note 35) (959) (20,605)
Fair value gain on contingent consideration FEU AR E AT EE Y (FFE32)
receivable (note 32) 1,690 1,117
(527,913) 28,262
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines and geographical locations. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has four (2016: five) reportable segments.

- Research, development and distribution of computer and mobile
phone software and toolbar advertisement (“Software Business”)

- Securities investment (“Securities Investment Business”)

- Money lending (“Money Lending Business”)

- Provision of corporate management solutions and I.T. contract
services (“Corporate Management Solutions and I.T. Contract
Services Business”)

Provision of insurance and mandatory provident fund schemes
brokerage services (“Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage
Business”) operation was discontinued during the year. The segment
information reported does not include any amounts for this discontinued
operation, which is described in more detail in note 17.

The Group’s other operating segments include, (i) provision of online
shopping business (“Online Shopping Business”) and (i) provision
of education and training programs which do not meet any of the
quantitative thresholds for determining as reportable segments. The
information of these other operating segments is included in the “Others”
column.

BHE—ZT

e PR RR M

= e e El

(ABTTEIIR)

11.

2 EBERE

REBIZAPIEREET - BEBER KRR
BHEBTK - AEBEENERSEHFF(ZE—K
F Al HmATXER/DEERKIERER
MmAALEEDRTHREEABNDHREER
MTAER -

— WE RS HEKRRBE FU R TARE
HEmHEB]D)

-  EFRE(EFREER)D
- {EE(EEEBD

- RECETERRDEREARHA KRS
(TEEEEFRRT RNEMBHA R
%1

RERBEBHEARESHECCREER (TR
BREECTECCERD ERNEAFERILE
o FIZMANTERTRELERIECEER
W - R 175

AEBEMEES HEBORMELBYES(H
LR KRB RIBVIE S REE R
ENMEHAEEBL BEIEMNEB(LREENR -
UL E M EE D B BRI ET A E A |18 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- Segment profit/(loss) represented profit earned by/
(loss from) each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, finance costs and income tax
expense and do not include share of loss of associates
and share of loss of a joint venture.

- Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of other corporate assets,
interest in associates and interest in a joint venture.

- Segment liabilities include all current and non-
current liabilities with the exception of accrued central
administration costs, loan notes and convertible notes.

Inter-segment revenue is priced with reference to prices charged
to external customers for similar orders.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are as those
described in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets

BHE—ZT
(ABTTEIIR)

e PR RR M

= e e El

11. 2#®wE (F)

(@) DEBELE

- BEREEE)

BEDBHRNEERAFELEETORS
)

and liabilities from continuing operations by reportable segment is HiRAE - BERRBOTWT -
as follows:
Corporate
Management
Securities Money Solutions and L.T.
Software Investment Lending  Contract Services
Business Business Business Business Others Consolidated
PRERRAAR
REANEAY
BHER  BHREER REER i3 A &e
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
“E-tE “E-tE “E-tE “E-tE “E-tE “E-tE
HKS 000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tn Tn Tn TEn Tn TEn
Tumover gxy
Revenue from external customers NREPYA 109,200 - 813 60,949 16,809 187,780
Inter-segment revenue GELION - - - I - 248
Reportable segment revenue REHTUA 109,209 - 813 61,197 16,809 188,028
Reconciliations: bl
Eimination of intersegment revenue HEA PRI (248)
Revenue WA 187,780
Results |
Segment results PHEE (187,321) (332,435) 753 4,881 (518) (464,640)
Reconciliation: HE:
Interest income 'A‘ 18MA 88
Unallocated income ROBMA
- Rentalincome -HERA ) 1,604
- Fair value loss on investment properties  ~RENFATEEER (3,600
- Fairvalue loss on derivative financil ~~ — T4 4RI EATEESE
instruments (959)
~ Fair value gain on contingent -EYIAREATEENE
consideration receivable 1,690
- Loss on disposel of property, plantand~ ~ &% - iR
equipment REREE (1)
- Loss on disposal of investment -HERANEER
property (2417)
- Other income Y10 829
Unallocated expenses RARR
- Corporate expenses -ER% (16,999)
Loss from operations BeER (484,475)
Finance costs BERL ) (13,720)
Share ofloss of associates FEBENAER (15,644)
Share of loss of ajoint venture [Eli-BaetssE (2939)
Loss before taxation RENEE (516,771)
Income tax credlt e j
Loss for the year TEEER (502,333)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017  E-E—tF+_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. 2R E (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (@) 7HEE BEREEE)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets MEDEANEEREIFEL L EBHORE
and liabilities from continuing operations by reportable segment is DEEE BERABEINTET : (B)

as follows: (continued)

Corporate
Management
Securities Money Solutions and L.T.
Software Investment Lending  Contract Services
Business Business Business Business Others Consolidated
CEEREARR
REANEAY
BEEE  B5REER BEER BREs it &a
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
“E-tE “E-tE “E-tE “E-tE “E-tE “E-tE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn Tn Tn TEn TEn TEn
Assets &E
Segment assets PHEE 40,170 47,358 12,775 57,313 11,937 539,553
Reconciliation: B!
Unallocated assets AOREE
- Property, plant and equipment -%  BEREE 190
- Investment property R vIES 38,300
- Investments n associates ~REEDAIE 28,182
- Investment in a joint venture -R-BAELENEE 348
- Trade and other receivables -BSREEYGE 48,474
- Cash and cash equivalents -RERRLEEN 47,563
Total assets AElE 705,680
Liabilities &f
Segment liabilities 2H8E 39,279 200 164 9,313 5713 54,669
Reconciliation B
Unallocated liabiities APRERE
- Trade and ofher payables -BHRAMERE 2178
Total liabilties BE4E 56,847
Other segment information: Efnias
RENE  BERRE
Additions to property, plant and equipment - - - (354) (127) (481)
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEERY (20,024) - - (1,578) - (21,602)
Depreciation £ - (60) - (229) (1,318) (1,607)
Development costs capialised B 21,407) - - - - (27,407)
Fair value loss on financial assets FREENATEENEY
atfair value through profit or loss SREENTEESE - (31,240) - - - (31,240)
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERRRENATEEER
atfair value through profit or loss SHEENER - (260,547) - - - (260,547)
Loss on disposal of avallable-for-sale HETHHECHERN
financial assets | - 2175) - - - @775
Impaiment loss on available-for-sale TRLESREAERERE
financial assets - (38,241) - - - (38,241)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BYEEREER (7,769) - - - - (1,769)
Impaiment loss on goodil BERERE (182,000) - - - - (182,000)
Legal and professional fees ERREXER (1,367) (14) (44) (29) (5,379) (6,827)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-T—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR)
11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. 23R E (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) oHEE BEREEE)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets i\ﬁi:‘.:%% T$E@IE%#£«(M¥5§7$&%
and liabilities from continuing operations by reportable segment is DERE - AERRESTWOT : (8)
as follows: (continued)
Corporate
Management
Securities Money  Solutions and L.T.
Software Investment Lending  Contract Services
Business Business Business ~ ~ Business Qthers Consolidated
EREREANR
‘ . N REREED N
BHEl  BRREER FEEE RBEE it A
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
ZFrE ZFRE ZFRE ZTE ZTNE ZTNE
K000 HK 000 K 000 K000 K000 K000
Titr Titr Titr Tikr Tikr Fikr
(Re-presented)
(@5
Turnover g%y
Revenue from external customers NREPYA 120259 - 4,684 59,963 8628 193,534
Inter-segment revenue AEERA - - - 25 - 205
Reportable segment revenue FEPPBA 120,259 - 4,684 60,188 8,628 193,759
Reconciliations: baf
Eimination of inter-segment revenue HEa PRI (225)
Revenue WA 193,534
Results &
Seqment resls A 33,404 68,507 3498 12472 w9 1763
Reconciliation: HE:
Interest income FEHA 11
Unallocated income ROEMA
- Rentalincome -HERA 1343
- Fair vaue gain on investment poperies  —R&NE LT EENG 849
~Fairvalue loss on derivative fnancill 1T £ BT EAFEESE
instruments N (20,605)
-Ganondsposal of avalleble-for-sdle. —HEAEHESREENE
financial assets 491
- Gain on disposal of a subsidiary -tE—EHELRNNE 3
- Other income —EfA %
- Fair value gain on contingent -EUSAREATEENS
consideration receivable 1,17
Unallocated expenses -BERENLE
- Corporate expenses -EEY (17,081)
Proft from operations bieyenl 91,53
Finance costs BERA 22,562)
Share of loss of associates ElBENEER (5,550)
Share ofloss of a oint venture EE-HAstEEE 9)
Profit before taxation WA 63415
Income tax expense FERAS (29,576)
Profit for the year TERER 33,839
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. 2HHE(E)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () HEE BEEREEE)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment results, assets BEDBEAEEREFELEEBHRE
and liabilities from continuing operations by reportable segment is DEELE - BERBESTWOT  (8)
as follows: (continued)
Corporate
Management
Securities Money  Solutions and I.T.
Software Investment Lending ~ Contract Services
Business Business Busingss ~  Business Others Consolidated
bEERRANE
) o ) REARHAY
BN nfa*fﬁﬁ%f% HEER BBR fty )
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
“E5E 25 25 “E5E 25 3
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tk Tk Tk T Tk T
(Re-presented)
(@5
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 601,107 611,752 18,856 64,317 9,148 1,305,180
Reconciliation: HE 18,786
Assets relafing to discontinuied operation EEEE”M“L%%EUQE
Unallocated assets PEEE
— Property, plant and equipment *?%% T EC] 361
- Investment properties ? 62,400
- Derivative financial instruments 959
- Contingent consideration receivable 18,710
- Investments in associates 38,939
- Investment in a joint venture -
- Trade and other receivables 9,747
~Cash and cash equivalents -BARBAEREY 14430
Totalasses HELE 1469512
Liabilities 1|
Segment liabiltes PHEE 39,003 23,367 204 13749 7,079 83,402
Reconciliation HE 14,117
Liabilties relating to discontinued operation EEERIHEEEKMERE
Unallocated liabiities AOEEE
- Trade and other payables -BSRAMERTE 7618
~ Deferred tax liabilties T 13
- Loan notes Rt | 210000
- Convertile notes -TRERE 71,789
Total liabilties BfEEE 387,062
Other segment information: EfARER
Addtions to property, plant and equipment REVE « RERRE - - 2 (313) U] (343)
Amortisation of intangible assets EVARER (17,946) - - (1,578) - (19,524)
Depreciation E - (60) (20) (633 (1,088) (1,701)
Development costs captalised (g (28,144) - - - - (28, 144)
Fair value gain on financial assets at UBTEMM L EETIENSR
fair vlue through profit or loss BELTEENS - 81673 - - - 81673
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fai EEUBT%M Hﬁ EFIEH)
value through profit or loss SRAEA - (556) - - - (556)
(Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale ﬁ%"l%%ﬁmﬂé‘ﬁﬁ’]%
financial assets - 358 - - 491 849
Impaiment loss on avallable-for-sale HEESHEENESE
financial assets - (11,914 - - - (1,914
Impaiment loss on intangble assets EVEENERR (095) - - - (995)
Impairment loss on goodl e (30,000) - - - - 30,000}
Gai on disposal of property, plntand ~ HE9E  FE RakENIE
equipment - - - 5 - 5
Legal and professional fees ERREXER (8%9) {10) {102) ) (5,39) (6,505)

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(b)

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

11. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11. 2| EE)
Geographical information (b) HBEER
The following table sets out information about the geographical TREIGHAONRERBINAEFHEEL
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from continuing operations BEBHBARAEBNYE - BE KR
from external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant and B REYX  BYEEREE(HTEER
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and goodwill, HEEDNBRER - EFAMEGERR
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical location of ERURBIINE RN ERET © T
customers is based on the location at which the services were RBAE R IRN B RIRIREE BRI
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of the HE(WEYX - BERRERIREYR) K&
specified non-current assets is based on the physical location PEFBONE(MBERTEERAE)E
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment and JE e
investment properties and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets and goodwiill.
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
MREFEA BEFRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E—tF —E—RF —E-tF —TRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THERT FAET
(Re-presented)
(& E71)
Hong Kong B 72,901 59,674 438,310 647,382
United States of America e 39,034 43,134 - -
Russia Rz 10,824 16,681 - -
Japan =N 7,697 7,714 = -
Germany = 6,427 11,806 - -
United Kingdom FE 6,042 7,537 - -
Canada mEX 3,524 3,807 - -
Australia RE 3,429 4,137 - -
Others (including Mainland China) Efb (BIEREAM) 37,902 39,044 - -
187,780 193,534 438,310 647,382
Information about major customers (c) BEEXTEEFHNER

(©

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no individual
customer contributes over 10% of the total revenue from
continuing operations of the Group.

HE_Z—+FR_F—XRF+_A=+—
ALLFE  TEE-—FFARBBAERNR
B ELCEEFRIRAR10% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BERK
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Continuing operations BEREEL
Interest on other loan HEaERAFE - 33
Effective interest on convertible notes AR IR A B A B 3,419 3,264
Interest on loan notes BEREENFE 10,301 19,263
Other interest expenses HibF 2R - 2
13,720 22,562
13. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BFiAI(EE) ER
(Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing operations has been arrived RERBELCLEBOBRERA(BE) SR EHN
at after charging/(crediting): B (FEA)
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx FAT
(Re-presented)
(&gE51)
(@  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):  (8) ~EBIKA(BIEEEMHE) :
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHEMER 29,007 24,316
Retirement scheme contributions RIRFTEIHER 1,115 915
30,122 25,231
(o)  Others items: ()  EABIAR :
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 21,602 19,524
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENE 1,980 1,250
Bad debt written off SR - 29
Depreciation e 1,607 1,701
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment BEMEAFEESE(WE)
properties* 3,600 (8,495)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME  BERREEE (M)
plant and equipment* 11 )
Loss on disposal of an investment property HE—FREMESE 2,477 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AL ESREERBERE
financial assets® 38,241 11,914
Impairment loss on goodwill* e RERE 182,000 30,000
Impairment loss on intangible assets* EREERERE 7,769 995
(Reversal ofy/impairment loss g SRR (BE),/
on trade receivables, net REESE - FHE (207) 161
Operating lease charges: REHEER
Minimum lease payments SEMEZRE
— hire of office premises —HERAENE 7,152 4,666
# included in other gains and losses # T AE M IS R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14.

(@)

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Income tax relating to continuing operations recognised in the

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

14. FiiSHi(ER) BIxX

@) AREBEERNARSECEEBNT RN
(&

consolidated statement of profit or loss represents: it
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Current tax BRI
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBTIEH
Provision for the year (note (i) NG A (HEEG) 6,927 11,665
Over-provision in respect of prior years wEFEEERE (9,587) (1,272)
— Withholding tax (note (i) — TEHH (B i) 229 181
(2,431) 10,574
Deferred tax (note 36(a)) IRIERE (FI3E36(a)) (12,007) 19,002
(14,438) 29,576

note (i):

note (ii):

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries in which
the Group operates based on existing legislation, interpretation
and practices in respect thereof.

Withholding tax, regarding the external sales for which customers
are located outside Hong Kong, is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in relevant countries.

MEEE) - BB RIS TBUE T A E A (4 5 ERT

BUm ML E16.6%:tH ©

TBHNH B R R BIB TR IR A R B2 5E
FaERRBERNREED - 2ERIED
BRBTHEANTEE -

BEEE) BT 5 5D B B M T 50 58 84 85
S REMB A BERRTERS
BikEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETTHIR)
14. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 14. FRSBL(ESR) B ()
()  The reconciliation between income tax expense and the product (o) FTIISHMTERAFELEEBNBRIEA
of (loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations multiplied by (E18) R FRAEAT RS E ZHEN
the applicable tax rates is as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
(Re-presented)
(ggE5)
(Loss)/profit before taxation KA AT (E518),Ja T (516,771) 63,415
Notional tax (credit)/expense on B E16.5%TERIBRTIRT
(loss)/profit before taxation, (BR),#HaEFE
calculated at the rate of 16.5% (#E®), X (85,267) 10,464
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BERBRANTRIS 2 (951) (1,744)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 1~ A 3 B S FO T 75 52 2 57,099 13,829
Tax effect of share of loss of associates FE(LEG A RIE BB E 2,581 915
Tax effect of share of loss of a joint venture BiE—RAaECEBEBNRBETE 484 1
Tax effect of temporary differences not RERYRFEZENRIETE
recognised (8,980) 3,371
Tax effect of unused tax losses KRB ARERRIBEENTGZE
not recognised 32,073 5,685
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not B FBA KRR IEE BN BS TR
previously recognised (2,117) (1,851)
Over-provision in respect of prior years BAEFEHBRERE (9,587) (1,272)
Withholding tax el 229 181
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries WE AR TRBENTE (2) (3)
Income tax (credit)/expense FSTR(3E%R) X (14,438) 29,576
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HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2016: one)
of them is a director whose emolument is disclosed in note 16. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2016:

(ABTTEIIR)

15. REFMAL

EREGRFEMALES  EP—R(ZF—X
F:—RIBRSFMALIRES M NHE16

WE - TIREHEIA(ZE

—RFWR)RB

four) highest paid individuals are as follows: A TS R%E
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other emoluments Fre REMME 4,586 4,297
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET RIS 72 72
4,658 4,369
The emoluments of the four (2016: four) individuals with the highest MEZ(ZE—RF: NEZ)EaFMATOBMESN
emoluments are within the following bands: FRTHNEE :
2017 2016
—Z & —T—REF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB AE
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 Z& 021,000,000/ 70 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L% 1,500,00078 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L%2,000,00078 7T 1 1
4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

HE_ZT—+FR-_T—R"F+-A=+—HIE
FE - AEEVELHEANE F I AR HH
ATERREREMBEAREBE KT NBEFZ

S RBEEAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
16. BENEFIT AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EET/AIRER
(a) Directors’ remuneration (@) EZ=FH
The remuneration of each director was as follows: BEEHMET -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES(TRASLAZANBA AR BECATRRNHE

Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary  Share based scheme 2017
fees in kind bonuses payments  contributions Total
e RRR DYl “B-tf
- £2 0k BAls BEA  RERNXA  BRAGEMER -y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER ThR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni Bt s (M)

(note (iv)) - 421 - - 5 426
Ms. Hung Yvonne (note (i) L () - 120 - - 6 126
Mr. Lee Kin Fai (note (ii) R A (k) - 850 - - 2 812
Mr. Wong Hin Shek (note (v) FEBEAEY) - 400 - - 6 406
Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey (note (vi) J&E{7 %4 (HizE() - 119 - - 3 122
Independent non-executive BUHITES

directors
Ms. Xiao Yiming B-Bat 120 - - - - 120
Professor Chui Tsan Kit GRAEAE 120 - - - - 120
Professor Lee T.S. ZREHE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Chan Yung (note (vi) R 25 A (P i) 12 - - - - 12
Mr. Cheng Hong Kel (note (vil)) BB 704 (Y= (vil) 12 - - - - 12

384 1,910 - - 42 2,336
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. BENEFIT AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(a)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

16. EEENRER(R)

(a

EEFHM(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

SENEEEE(TRAAATRENEAAER BHCAR RS

Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary Share based scheme 2016
fees in kind bonuses payments  contributions Total
e 2R SRR Z3-RE
£ ENila WEEL  REENRN  RIGHEIRR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TATL TAT TATL
Executive directors WTES
Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni BEEEEHEN)

(note (v)) - 1,150 - - 18 1,168
Mr. Xue Qiushi (note () BB () - 342 - - 17 359
Ms. Hung Yvonne (note (i) L () - 6 - - - 6
Mr. Lee Kin Fai (note (ii) s A (M) - 15 - - 1 16
Independent non-executive BiukiTEE

directors
Ms. Xiao Yiming B-Bat 120 - - - - 120
Professor Chui Tsan Kit RBEAR 120 - - - - 120
Professor Lee T.S. ZREYE 120 - - - - 120

360 1,513 - - 36 1,909
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. BENEFIT AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Notes:

M

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii

(vii

Mr. Xue Qiushi resigned as executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 13 December 2016.

Ms. Hung Yvonne was appointed as executive director and the
chief executive officer of the Company on 13 December 2016.
On 31 March 2017, Ms. Yvonne Hung was appointed as acting
chairman.

Mr. Lee Kin Fai was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 13 December 2016.

Mr. Kuang Hao Kun Giovanni resigned as executive director of the
Company on 31 March 2017.

Mr. Wong Hin Shek was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 1 September 2017.

Mr. Pon Kai Choi Phemey was appointed as executive director of
the Company on 2 November 2017.

Mr. Chan Yung was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 24 November 2017.

Mr. Cheng Hong Kei was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 24 November 2017.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any director
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

No director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16.

17.

BENEFIT AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(o) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, save for the New
Copyright License Agreement as mentioned in note 46(a), in
which Mr. Xue Qiushi (“Mr. Xue”), a former executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company who resigned on 13
December 2016, is interested through his 35% equity interest
in PR E(ZERMABRAT (‘“AHEPEE”), no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2016 or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 21 March 2017, the Group disposed of an aggregate of
approximately 32% of the issued share capital of GET Mdream Wealth
Management Limited (“GET Mdream”) to two independent third parties
at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$3,000,000. After completion
of the disposal, the Group held approximately 19% of the issued share
capital of GET Mdream. GET Mdream ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company and became an investment of the Group without control. GET
Mdream was then accounted for as an available-for-sale financial assets.
Accordingly, the Group discontinued its operation in Insurance and MPF
Schemes Brokerage Business as one of its principal business activities.
Details of the disposal are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 21 March 2017.

Details of the assets and liabilities being disposed of and the calculation
of the gain on such disposal are disclosed in note 43(c)()).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2T

—tF+-_A=t—HItFE
(ABTTSIR)

17. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 17. BAILEREEK(E)
The results of the discontinued operation for the year are presented BEENDRIECEEBESYFHRET ¢
below:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit for the year from discontinued operation: ~ ANFEE K B B4R IS & EFHHF) -
Turnover L 29,940 69,487
Cost of sales SHERKRAR (23,768) (54,206)
Gross profit EF 6,172 15,281
Other revenue E bl A 41 485
Sell and administrative expenses HERITHAX (4,935) (14,611)
Profit before taxation BREBE AT E R 1,278 1,155
Gain on disposal of operation (note 43(c)()) HE A FE A A U (PR 3E43(0)() 1,845 -
Profit for the year from discontinued REERBORIEREEK
operation B R 3,123 1,155
Profit for the year from discontinued operation RARHER AELBERLE
attributable to owners of the Company TSR T 2,497 589
Profit for the year from discontinued TEERBCRLELEEEN
operation includes the following: RAEENATEE !
Staff costs: BIKA:
Salaries, wages and other benefits I&- %Fi&ﬁﬁﬂ?%ﬂ 2,041 8,787
Retirement scheme contributions RURETEMER 76 359
2,117 9,146
Other items: Hpg g :
Depreciation e 101 393
Auditor’s remuneration IZEREDEN 75 250
Operating lease charges: KEHESBMA
Minimum lease payments SIEBERK
— hire of office premises —HERAEYE 1,094 1,683
Reversal of commission clawback provision & bHEEHRD - (1,585)
Cash flows from discontinued operation: RECKIEEENESR :
Net cash inflows from operating activities REKLE RN RAFE 5,229 6,057
Net cash outflows from investing activities REJREFDHIR SR FE (125) (289)
Net cash outflows from financing activities REREEEHNIR SR L FE (2,000) -
Net cash inflows W MAFEE 3,104 5,768
For the purpose of presenting the discontinued operation of GET BERBBEINORILEEER HE_-F
Mdream, the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended —NFt+Z A=+t —HIHKABEERENEFEE
31 December 2016 and the related notes have been re-presented. Bl o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR)
18. DIVIDENDS 18. KE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in EETERMBE_T—tF+t=-_A=+—AH1
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$NIl). FEERMIABRE(ZT—RE : TET) °
19. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 19. BR(EER) BR
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (@) BRER(EER)BF
0 From continuing and discontinued operations () KEFFEAEEROARIACEETE
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based BREAR(EE) BATRERFE
on the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company RREVEB AES(BR),EHRE
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in ETERROINETHREGTE -

issue during the year.

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
(Loss)/earnings (E58]), &R
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the  ZNA &1 A A B (E518), % H
Company and earnings for the purpose & A {EstE A EA
of calculating basic (loss)/earnings per  (E518),/ ZF| &) & F|
share (512,327) 17,092
’000 000
TR Tk
Number of shares REE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ F{EaTBERER(EIE),/BF 6
shares for the purpose of calculating T3 AR N AR
basic (loss)/earmnings per share 425,879 275,139
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) SIXEA(EE),/BH (El) (120.30) 6.21
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
19. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 19. BR(EER) BF (&)
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (continued) (@) BREXR(EE) BRE)
(i) From continuing operations ()  KEFEEEER
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FHT
(Loss)/earnings (&518),BA

(Loss)/profit from continuing operations N2 RIEB A EIGHHBRE LXK 2
attributable to owners of the Company  (E518) % H & B1EzT &

and earnings for the purpose of BRERBF O ZF
calculating basic earnings per share (514,824) 16,503
’000 000
TR T
Number of shares REE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FI{EETEERER(E5E), BH
shares for the purpose of calculating LA I T AR 2R
basic (loss)/earmnings per share 425,879 275,139
Basic (loss)/earnings per share from FEGEER 2 BRER
continuing operations (HK cents) (E18),/ BF GEL) (120.89) 6.00
(i) From discontinued operation (i)  HKEERIAEERS
2017 2016
—E—tfF S ANCS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Earnings BF
Profit from discontinued operation [REJIREE 3 ol N
attributable to owners of the Company B A &R % F N FB1E
and earnings for the purpose of EERERETNZF
calculating basic earnings per share 2,497 589
’000 000
T8 T &
Number of shares REE
Weighted average number of ordinary RESTE S REAR RN T @R
shares for the purpose of calculating ik BREliE
basic earnings per share 425,879 275,139
Basic earnings per share from BARIHEE R 2 BREARRT
discontinued operation (HK cents) (B 0.59 0.21
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares in Mzt : R-ZT—NEFENTBRMNEFEHRR
2016 had been adjusted for the rights issue which was HERR-_ZE—+tF-A+HAR
completed on 15 February 2017. AE AR EL A -
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19. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/earnings per
share presented for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 in respect of a dilution as the share options outstanding
had no dilutive effect and impact of the convertible notes had

e PR RR M

BHE_Z—+F+_A=+—HIFE
(ABTTSIR)

19.

SR (B8 B (E)
(b) EREB(ERE) BA

BRI ARITER BRI SEEEE - mA]
BPRZRARBEEIENTE WL ERE
HE-T—+FR-_T—R"F+A=1+—
AIEFEREEM2NERERER),

anti-dilutive effect. &R o
20. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 20. HttZ2mEWK=
Tax effects relating to each item of other comprehensive income for the AFEEMEARESEEBRANBIBTE
year:
2017 2016
“E-tE IR
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
amount expenses amount amount expenses amount
REneE BEmx Ri%eE BHALE HERS BHELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAn TAR FEL FhL FEL
Exchange differences on translation ~ FTEESNHBL R REE AR
of financial statements of overseas RRREENELZR
subsidiaries and associates 4,887 - 4,887 9% - 9%
Exchange differences reclassffied to ~ BLLE BB L AL ZER
profit orloss on disposal of BRENHERE
foreign operations - - - (56) - (66)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale ARHESREEATEERR
financial assets (44,046) - (44,046) (21,029 - (21,029
Reclassffication adjustment to RNETHRNE S HEER
profit or loss on disposal of ENAEEEER
avallable-for-sale financial assets 2,733 - 2,733 (1,106) - (1,106)
Reclassffication adjustment to FUHNESHEERERE
profit or loss on impairment loss RERSHAEHRE
on available-for-sale financial assets 38,241 - 38,241 11,914 - 11,914
1815 - 1815 (10,182) - (10,182)
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

21. ¥ - BEKRRZRE

Computer
Leasehold Office  Furnitureand  hardware and
improvements equipment fixtures software Total
HEME BAE R EREs
# B R#E R84 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TAL FET FHL
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E—-A—H 1,337 349 39 2,363 4,444
Additions NE 413 86 44 90 633
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43(a)(i)) W& K B2 &) (FiEE43(a)(i)) 1,758 243 134 - 2,135
Disposals HE - (29) - - (29)
Disposals of subsidiaries
(notes 43(c)(i) and (i) B2 A (i #E43(0) i) Bei)) (419 (69) (65) (47) (600)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—A"$t-A=1+-H
1 January 2017 k=Z—+%5-F—H 3,089 580 508 2,406 6,583
Additions NE 185 9 4 408 606
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43(a)()) W& — B L F (FIFE43()0) 1,005 83 13 - 1,101
Disposals & - - - (44) (44)
Disposals of a subsidiary (note 43(c)() &~ EHEA = (Hz43(0)() (1,183) (19 (19) (343) (1,558)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1+-H 3,096 653 512 2,427 6,688
Accumulated depreciation and REHERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2016 RZT—~E—-A—H 681 151 201 1,159 2,192
Charge for the year TEERH 1,272 155 203 464 2,094
Written back on disposals HERER - (29) - - (29)
Written back on disposals of HENBLAEED
subsidiaries (notes 43(c)(i) and (i) (FIZE43(c) i R i) (109) 9 6) (30) (154)
Exchange adjustment 5 AR @ - - - ©
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—"FTZA=+-BR
and 1 January 2017 —E—t5-f-H 1,842 268 398 1,593 4,101
Charge for the year TEEZH 1,118 193 33 364 1,708
Written back on disposals HERER - - - (33) (33)
Written back on disposal of a HE—BHBARKER
subsidiary (note 43(c)(i) (BE43()) (820) ] ©) (130) (965)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=1+-A 2,140 452 425 1,794 4,811
Carrying amount BHE
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tH+=-p=1+-H 956 201 87 633 1,877
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—A"¥t-A=1+-H 1,247 312 110 813 2,482
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BE-F—tF+-A=+AILFE
(ABTEHIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

22. BREME

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 January ®n—A—H 62,400 —

Fair value (losses)/gains ANHEE(EIE), WS (3,600) 8,495
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A 7

(notes 43(b)(i) and (b)(ii) (P EE43(0)0) (b)) - 53,905

Disposal HE (20,500) -

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 38,300 62,400

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2017 on the
open market value basis by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties by an external independent valuer.

The Group’s total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

BREMER_T—LET-_A=1+—HAINEE
MfAEMESERUNEAPIZOTIEEER

ARG EEEER -

AEBERBEIAIREEEHEEHS BUARRKE

HEFIR@EENT

2017 2016

—Z & —T—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within one year —FR 996 1,843
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FoRFRF(BEEEMT) - 1,187
996 3,030

At 31 December 2017, operating lease receivables represent rental
receivable by the Group for letting its properties. The lease is negotiated
for an average term of 2 years (2016: 2 years) and rentals are fixed over
the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

REE—tF+-A=+—H EBRELHEER
SIRAKEREBEMERE S - KHERH -
HETHBRAMF(ZE—AF  MF)  He

WHEHREE - ETEREAES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
23. GOODWILL 23. BB
Corporate Corporate
Management ~ Management
Insurance ~ Solutions and ~ Solutions and
MPF Schemes ~ LT.contract  LT. contract
Software Brokerage Services Services
Business Business Business Business Others Others Total
RER  LEEEER  LEEEER
BESHE FEREANR HRREARK
L BEER  ARBREER  AOBRBER it it st
Boom Max
International e-Perfect IT
Limited Limited
(“Boom Max”) (‘e-Perfect IT”)
andits and its
subsidiaries subsidiary Wafer
(collectively (collectively Systems
referred o as referredtoas  (Hong Kong)
“Boom Max “e-Perfect Limited Nobel
Group”)  GET Mdream Group”)  (“Wafer HK") AP Group Education
Boom Max
International
Limited
('Boom Max ) LENHER
REWEAR AR(EE])
(4% Boom REWEAR HEAG
Max (GRIEE (BR)ERAR
£8)) BBEs £E) (REEE) EHEE  S0RdE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T Tin T T Tihn T Tk
Cost A
At1 January 2016 RZ2-75-A-A 757,662 865 3,934 20913 - - 783,374
Arising on acquisiton of subsiciaries BRI B D a0 (H543(a0))
(note 43(a)il) - - - - 4,581 - 4,581
A 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R=F—A"ET-A=+-HR
“$—+E-f-H 757,662 865 3,934 20913 4,581 - 787,95
Avising on acquisiton of a subsidiary Yk — RN B A AR A (PH3H43())
(note 43(a/) - - - - - 762 762
Derecognised on disposal of asubsiciary ~ HE—-TENBATRHEER
(note 43(0)) (HizE430)0) - (865) - - - - (865
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=1-A 757,662 - 3,934 20913 4,581 762 787,852
Accumulated impairment losses ZitHERE
At 1 January 2016 RZF—5-A-A 25749 - - - - - 257496
Impairment losses recognised BHRERAESE 30,000 - - - - - 30,000
At 31 December 2016:and 1 January 2017 /\:T—/ﬁf A=t-8k
+E-A-A 287,49 - - - - - 287,49
Impairment loss recognised BHERAEEE 182,000 - - - - - 182,000
At 31 December 2017 RIE-tETZA=1-H 469,496 - - - - - 469,496
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZB=1-H 288,166 - 3,934 20913 4,581 762 318,356
At 31 December 2016 RZE—NETZA=T-A 470,166 865 3,934 20913 4,581 - 500,459

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at acquisition,

to the Group’s CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business

calculation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 Impairment
of Assets, a CGU to which goodwill has been allocated shall be tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
CGU may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the CGU,
including goodwiill, with the recoverable amount of the CGU.

The recoverable amounts are the higher of the VIU and the fair value
less costs of disposal. The Group determined the recoverable amounts
of all CGUs on the basis of their VIU using discounted cash flow
method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross
margin and turnover during the period. The Group estimates discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGUs operate.
Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group prepared cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors for the next five years with the residual period using the
growth rates as stated below. These rates do not exceed the average
long-term growth rates for the relevant markets.

During the year, the directors noted that the financial performance of
the Software Business did not pick up as expected and has further
declined due to various factors which included the slower-than-
expected development pace in the Asian market, the volatility of the
global economy, the keen market competition in the I.T. market, and
the decline in the demand for personal computers. In view of the
decrease in revenue from the Software Business of approximately
HK$81,181,000 for the nine months ended 30 September 2017
as compared to that of approximately HK$90,490,000 for the
corresponding period in 2016, the directors considered that this might
be an indicator of potential impairment on the carrying amount of the
goodwill of Boom Max Group, the CGU of the Software Business. The
Group revised the 5-year cash flow forecast of the Boom Max Group
with reference to the actual financial results of the Boom Max Group
for the nine months ended 30 September 2017 and the projected
financial results of the Boom Max Group to 31 December 2017. Details
of the impairment testing of the CGU of the Software Business as at
30 September 2017 are set out in the Company’s third quarterly report
dated 10 November 2017.

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

23.

BE (&)
BEBHENREEHETARERR

RIBFBGTEAECKEERE  BEDAEZ
ReEHETASFETRENRA  REATR
BrESELETARRER  IEBHLRE
ELETZREE(RERE) BREERETZ
AU EIEEE -

ReEHETREREERRFEBERBEKRA
ZueE  AEERARBRRSRERREER
BEEEEMAERESELRENTKRDEHE - BIRE
ERBEENIZMRVEHAMAERE - EEE
INREEEREREXBER - AEERAKRST
ATEL RAGEHAAIR R - ZMEBATLE R RIS E W
B EERENRSERBRORETISEE o 15
REXDRBRSEHETEREEMELRNK
TP OREIEREAE - BEENRREERT
HEWNBEEHRTSERALAE -

BRERRME - ARBERENASRERTD
B EEHENRRAFRBREARBT
HRRAN TSR RGFE - ZFHLRI KBS
BTSN TFHORMEREE -

RAFE  EFFEINRNHEBNMBRBELR
WMEHIMEA  WASEREmE—FTH 8
FADMNTSHERSEKIENTES - 2IREER
&) AMBHEMERF AR EABKAFT K
B% - ERREUGEFBHRENEE=S—
FARAZTHILEAEAR =2 —RFREBLL
90,490,0007%8 7T & 481,181,000 T * EER A
[ BRT Boom Max& B (B4 25 HIR e EEET)
MR EMEEEE R L IRME - NEBZEBoom
MaxEERHE-_ZE—tFAA=+HIAEA
MBS %¥4E KBoom MaxEBEEZ — T —+
FH+ZA=+—BMTEFTHBELE - 557Boom
MaxEBHAFHRSRETEA - R=ZZE—tFNA
=+8 BHEEORSELETARERSEF
BIHRBRA T —tF+—A+HNE=ZF
ik o
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23.

170

 E—E—+F+-A=1t—HIFE
(ABTTSIR)

GOODWILL (continued) 23. HE(HA)
Impairment test for cash-generating units containing BEHmENREERS THRERE (&)
goodwill (continued)
The Group engaged Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an AEECEZBYANEFAERAA (B LMEE
independent valuer to determine the recoverable amount of the CGU of B BETBUHEBHASELEETIR_T—+t
the Software Business as at 30 September 2017 and all CGUs of the FLRAZ+HEERAEEMEREELEE TR
Group as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. E—+t+tF+-_A=+—HBERZ=ZZFE—X"F+=A
=t+—HHAKEIEEE -
Key assumptions used for VIU calculations for Boom Max Group’s CGU Boom Max& B¢ ELEE TR T —+F LA
as at 30 September 2017 are as follows: “+EMNEAEENEFEANEZE/RENT
30 September
2017
—Z—+tH
hB=+8
Gross margin ER=E 81.98%
Growth rate BEX 3.10%
Discount rate BhIR & 22.16%
Key assumptions used for VIU calculations for each CGU as at SReELETIR_ZE—tF+=A=1+—RH2
31 December 2017 are as follow: FREMEMEHANTIERRNT
Boom Max e-Perfect Nobel
2017 Group GET Mdream Group Wafer HK AP Group Education
“E-tF Boom Max%8 HEES EELE AEEE EHEE #nRHE
Corporate Corporate
Management Management
Insurance Solutions Solutions
and MPF and I.T. and I.T.
Schemes Contract Contract
Software Brokerage Services Services
Business segment Business Business Business Business Others Others
PEEEER PEEB@ER
RERER SEREANE  FRREARE
E Yk BHEE  SHALLEH BRRBER BHREER Hify Hitr
Gross margin ERIE 78.25% N/ATIEM 25.5% 28.95% 82.03% 79.02%
Growth rate BRE 3.08% N/ATEHA 3.08% 3.08% 3.08% 3.08%
Discount rate SR % 20.45% N/ATEHR 21.57% 16.51% 12.72% 14.48%
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (continued)

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

23. HE(&E)
BEBHENREEHETARERF(E)

Boom Max e-Perfect Nobel
2016 Group GET Mdream Group Wafer HK AP Group Education
S Boom Max& & L5 LELRE BEEE EHER En5HE
Corporate Corporate
Management Management
Insurance Solutions Solutions
and MPF and I.T. and I.T.
Schemes Contract Contract
Software Brokerage Services Services
Business segment Business Business Business Business Others Others
LEEEHR PEERER
RERSEE  ARREARER  FRREARE
2504 BHEE  HEGRER  a0BRBER SOREBER Eft Hith
Gross margin EH% 81.86% 21.99% 43.59% 34% 81.15% N/ATER
Growth rate BR% 3.28% 3.28% 3.28% 3.28% 3.28% N/ATER
Discount rate BR% 15.13% 17.32% 20.78% 15.43% 12.93% N/ATER

The recoverable amount of the CGU of Software Business as at
30 September 2017 attributable to the Group is approximately
HK$336,000,000, which is lower than the carrying amount of this
CGU attributable to the Group of approximately HK$518,000,000. The
goodwill as at 30 September 2017 has been reduced to its recoverable
amount through recognition of an impairment loss of approximately
HK$182,000,000 on goodwill. The recoverable amount of this CGU
attributable to the Group is approximately HK$380,847,000 (2016:
HK$526,212,000) as at 31 December 2017, which is higher than the
carrying amount of this CGU. The directors considered that no further
impairment loss is required.

AEBRHERZREELE TR —tF
LA =+ A Z {5 T 4R B & §8 £7336,000,000 7
T BRASEEEZREEEETZEREEL
518,000,000/ 7C - R-—Z—+FE A=+
B D HE WA E 2R EE B 4182,000,000#
T OREHFKEEE AEBEREGZEREL
BAR-_ZE—+F+-A=+t—BZAKELHE
#7380,847,000 7L (=& —754F : 526,212,000/
) mRZASEABITZERE EERAM
AR E—DRE -
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e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24. BEEE
Development
costs on
computer and
mobile phone Customer Computer
software relationship software
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b)) Total
ERRRE
EFBHAN
RBRA EFBR ElEs
(BizE(a)) (Ft £ (b)) (KtaE(b)) wct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FiET T
Cost BA
At 1 January 2016 RZT—"F—-A—H 110,633 11,066 2,826 124,525
Additions through internal development ~ BRANFEERE 28,144 - - 28,144
At 31 December 2016 and RIE—RE+TZA=t-BRK
1 January 2017 —Z—+F-H-H 138,777 11,066 2,826 152,669
Additions through internal development ~ BBAHEERE 27,107 - - 27,107
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+-A=1—8H 165,884 11,066 2,826 179,776
Accumulated amortisation and R BERAERE

impairment losses

At 1 January 2016 RZE—7~F—A—A 47,874 1,568 667 50,109
Amortisation By 17,946 1,107 471 19,524
Impairment loss BEEE 995 - - 995
At 31 December 2016 and RZZ—R"F+ZA=+—HE

1 January 2017 “T—+HF-A—H 66,815 2,675 1,138 70,628
Amortisation HH 20,024 1,107 471 21,602
Impairment loss REBE 7,769 - - 7,769
At 31 December 2017 R=F—+F+=-A=+—H 94,608 3,782 1,609 99,999
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2017 RZZ-t&+=A=t—-H 71,276 7,284 1,217 79,777
At 31 December 2016 R=F—R"F+=-A=+—H 71,962 8,391 1,688 82,041
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24.

(@)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The capitalised development costs for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 represented the expenditure incurred
for developing computer and mobile phone software.

The average remaining amortisation period of the computer and
mobile phone software is four years (2016: four years).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
development costs on computer and mobile phone software as
at 31 December 2017, having regard to the market conditions
of the Group’s products. These assets are used in the Group’s
Software Business segment. The review led to the recognition
of an impairment loss of approximately HK$7,769,000 (2016:
HK$995,000) for six (2016: one) products of computer and
mobile phone software that has been recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2017. The management
reviewed total cash inflows generated to the Group from these
products for the year and noted nearly no cash inflow was
contributed to the Group by these products. As these products
were no longer expected to generate any future economic
benefits for the Group, the carrying amount of these intangible
assets were fully impaired during the year.

Computer software (the “Software”) and the customer
relationship (the “Customer Relationship”) were acquired
through business combination. The Software are used for the
development of tailor-made programs to the Group’s customers
and the Customer Relationship represents certain contractual
relationship with its existing customers at the date of acquisition
of e-Perfect IT in 2014. These assets are used in the Group’s
Corporate Management Solutions and |.T. Contract Services
Business segment.

The recoverable amounts of the Software and the Customer
Relationship are allocated to CGU of Corporate Management
Solutions and I.T. Contract Services Business of e-Perfect Group
(note 23).

As the economic benefits arising from these intangible assets are
totally integrated with the Corporate Management Solutions and
I.T. Contract Services Business, these carrying amounts have
been taken into consideration for the impairment assessment of
goodwill allocated to this segment (note 23).

BHE—ZT

e PR RR M

= e e El

(ABTTEIIR)

24.

(@)

BITEE(R)

BE— 2 +tHER-FT-A"F+-A=+—
HILEFE i‘“ﬁzli{bl%ﬁ”‘ﬁkzli%al%ﬁ%’* 5 i &%
M E AT PIEEMF -

B RO E B AT AT IO FEREE 8 8 A0
F(ZT—RF:HF) -

MNZE—+F+-_A=+—0 £KEBH=EE
HEMNMRAEHEM R REE ER AL
RAM AT E &% - ZFEERRAER
E’J@FF%%“"*B ERAEHE G EN T
E$A1¢M/\TA§EDD(—7 /\£|E ITA
) ERBEBEL7,769,0008 (=%
—I7NEF 1 995,000 T)  WREE—T—+
FTZA=T—HBIEFENBRETER - &
BEEMAFEZSERATNEETRANE
SRAREE  WAEZEERLTINEER
Z’KE.E\J:KEE%UIL)\ ° E%?ﬁ%%ﬁ%iﬁx
BAXREBEATNABKENS %58
FAENREDENFAZHHRE -

BEEA(TREDEREPBE(EPBED
TyEBE A GRS - MIEBIERAEE
EPRBESIENER > MEPHERER
R-Z-NEREEREARERERPEY
METANEE - ZFEERNAEE MR
EERBRDREEMPHRANRBES D
B

FHREFPHEENTIKREOSED D EEEER
SEMCXERERT EREAMRE RS
EBHNRBED FE T (H5E23) -

EEPEEMESCEMNSZECES
RARKEARBREORGER @R
ERAS BESENEERETEE
SIREE(FIE23) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

25.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

REEARNRE

R-ZE—+tF+-A=+—8 ' xEEHEQA

MEBIT
Particulars of issued and Percentage of ownership
Place of incorporation/ fully paid up share interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary registration and operation capital/registered capital profit share Principal activities
Bliye BRIRBERE/ ek FrE/
WEARAR BRREEHE aRERFE MERNBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE 5f:
Lucky Famous Limited British Virgin Islands (‘BVI") 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
(“Lucky Famous”)
Lucky Famous Limited RRRUEE((HBERLES]) 1REBRIEL REER
(TLucky Famous )
Jade Fore Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Jade Fore Group Limited EERABS TR RRET REER
Citi Profit Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Citi Profit Holdings Limited RERZBE IREBERIZET REER
Citi Profit Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Money lending
BERBERAR BB REERIET &8
Perfect Growth Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Securities investment
EBARAA i 1REERIET BHRA
Supreme Right Development Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
Limited

EMERBERAF g TREBRET ek

Apperience Corporation Cayman Islands 20,666,667 ordinary shares - 50.5%  Inactive
(“Apperience’) of US$20,667

Apperience Corporation HEHE 20,666,667 L 120,667 1T EmEs
(T Apperience])

Imidea Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of HK$10 - 65.177%  Development and sales of
software and provision of
toolbar advertisement

Imidea Limited B 10BRERAR107E T B RHERHEAR
RETARES

|Obit Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 65.177%  Inactive

|Obit Limited RERAHE 1REBRIET TEex

Both Talent International Limited ~ Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of HK$10 - 65.177%  Development and sales of

(‘Both Talent”) software and provision of
toolbar advertisement

ERBRBERAR (&R ) Bh 10BR L mAR 10T REREETHIR
RETARES
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HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(ABTTEIIR)

25.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

REEARNIRE (F)

R-E—+tF+-A=+—8 ' x5£EHEQA

(continued) RFFEMT : (&)
Particulars of issued and Percentage of ownership
Place of incorporation/ fully paid up share interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary registration and operation capital/registered capital profit share Principal activities
Biioye BEARBRRA/ FreRRs/ &g/
WEARER BRREEHE EMERFE MEENBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE 5f
Mission Win International Limited BV 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Mission Win International Limited ~ £BRE 225 1REBERIZT REER
e-Perfect IT Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Provision of corporate
HK$10,000 management solutions
and L.T. contract services
L BE 10,0008 &% 10,0007 RECZEERANRR
BMRHERA MRk
e-Perfect Information Technology ~ People’s Republic of China Registered capital and paid up - 100%  Inactive
(Shenzhen) Company Limited **  (The “PRC") of RMB500,000
EEESMROMINERRAT"  HEARKAE(HE]) R &R AR #500,0007 TEe%
Wafer HK Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Provision of corporate
HK$10,000 management solutions
and L.T. contract services
BEEA BE 10,0008 &% 10,000/ 7 RECZEERANRR
BAMRHRA MRk
Perfect Win Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Online shopping business
KOBRAR B REERIET BLENES
Wise Cheer Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Online shopping business
EFBRARA Bk REERIET BLENES
GET Financial Group (International) BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited (“GET Financial Group”)
E5eREE(ER)ERAT  AERLHES REERIET RAER
(IB5erEE])
GET Development Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 - 100%  Inactive
BES5ERERAT BE 1008 ZiBAR 1007 7T TEek
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-FT+F+-A=+AILFE
(ABTEHIR)

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 25. RHMBQBNRE (&)

R-ZE—+tF+-A=+—8 ' xEEHEQA

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

176

(continued) RFFEMT - (&)
Particulars of issued and Percentage of ownership
Place of incorporation/ fully paid up share interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary registration and operation  capital/registered capital profit share Principal activities
Biioye BERATRMRRA, ks RRE/
WEARER BRREEHE aMERFE MERNBDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
EE 5f
Boom Max BVI 100,000 ordinary shares of - 65.177%  Investment holding
US$100,000
Boom Max RERZEE 100,000 L /% 100,000% T REER
Profit Winner International BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Inactive
Corporation
Profit Winner International RERZBE 1REBRET Lmex
Corporation
Service Winner Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
Service Winner Limited B 1RE BB Emgx
Dragon Oriental Investment BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$100 - 100%  Property investment
Limited (“Dragon Oriental”)
Dragon Oriental Investment HEBREUEE 1008 E @R 100 T MERE
Limited ([ Dragon Oriental])
Million Worldwide Investment BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Million Worldwide”)
Milion Worldwide Investment RERZBE 1008 E @R 100 T REER
Limited ( Milion Worldwide])
Talent Vision Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
(“Talent Vision”)
Talent Vision Limited BE 1REBEET Imex
([ Talent Vision )
AP Holdings BVI 1,000 ordinary shares of US$1,000 - 51%  Investment holding
BHER RBRTHS 1,000 &#A%1,000% T RERR
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BE-F—tF+-A=+AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(ABTTEIIR)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

25. RBRRNRE ()

R-E—+tF+-A=+—8 ' x5£EHEQA

(continued) RFFEMT : (&)
Particulars of issued and Percentage of ownership
Place of incorporation/ fully paid up share interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary registration and operation  capital/registered capital profit share Principal activities
Biioye BRATRMRRA, Frakks RAE/
WEARER BRREEHE aMERFE MERNBDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
EE 5f
AP Group International Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$10,000 - 51%  Investment holding and
provision of management
service
EHEEARAA BE 10,0008 % @ 10,000/ 7T RERRRBHERRS
Act Point Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision of education and
training programs
ER G AR AT BE 10,0008 % @ 10,000/ 7T REHE RIEIIER
Asia Professional Coach Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10,000 - 51%  Provision of education and
Association Limited training programs
TNEXARBEERAA BE 1008k Bk 10,0008 7T REHE RIEIIER
Nobel Education Hong Kong 18,000,000 ordinary shares of - 50%  Provision of children
HK$12,000,000 education service
LHRHE Bk 18,000,000/ & #%f%12,000,000/ 7 REDTUERS
* This subsidiary is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the ZHIB AR ARRBIKHINEGEECE -
PRC.
e The English name of this Company is for reference only and has not been FARAXBIBERSE KB REHER ©
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 25. AMIBARIMNIRE(E)
The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non- TRETHEBHASENSBEANFERER
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised ([BEfERERE D OMBARER - HISERBE
financial information represents amounts before inter-company EARIEIEIHRI£%8 -
eliminations.
Boom Max Group GET Mdream
Boom Max%: @ BEES
2017 2016 2017 2016
—Z—tF —ZRE —EB—LF —TRF
Principal place of business/country FTDEEME Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/ Hong Kong/
of incorporation BB AVEETER BVI BVI Hong Kong Hong Kong
&8/ EH/
RERLHES  EBREREHE BB/ BB Bk BB
% of ownership interests/ SRR PTIS EE REE 34.82% 34.82% N/A 49%
voting rights held by NCI TrREESL TEA
Financial information is BMBERBENT

disclosed as follows:

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000

T FHT FHT FEL

Non-current assets FERBEE 71,276 71,961 N/A 569
TEA

Current assets RENEE 49,536 48,134 N/A 17,352
TEA

Current liabilities mEaE (3,506) (9,937) N/A (15,137)
TEA

Non-current liabilities FERBAE (10,898) (9,084) N/A -
TEA

Net assets BEFE 106,408 101,074 N/A 2,784
TEA

Accumulated NCI ERE R 37,051 35,194 Nil 1,364

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

25. RBRRNRE ()

Boom Max Group GET Mdream
Boom Max5% & BHEES

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

ESES HE BHE HE

—E—tF NS —E—tF —E—RF

+=A=t—-H +=ZA=+—8 +=ZA=t—-H +ZA=+—H

LEE HFE LFEE IHFE

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FAT FTiEx FAT

Revenue A 109,209 120,259 N/A 69,488
i A

Profit il 36,375 49,808 N/A 1,154
i A

Total comprehensive income 2R EREE 36,375 49,808 N/A 1,154
i A

Profit allocated to NCI REGRE L ¢ Stz 0agi] 12,666 17,343 N/A 565
i A

Dividends paid to NCI B IR SRR S (10,810) (17,430) N/A (980)
i A

Net cash generated from operating BT 68,052 74,887 N/A 6,057
activities e TR il A

Net cash used in investing activities REGHMARETE (27,121) (28,154) N/A (289)
ER

Net cash used in financing activities BMETBAREFE (38,800) (42,292) N/A -
ER

Net increase in cash and cash ReENREEEBY 2,131 4,441 N/A 5,768
equivalents HEhNFEE i A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
26. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 26. RBEEQNRNRE
2017 2016
—E—tf e OR
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Unlisted investments: EETIRE -
Share of net assets EIhEEFE 27,426 38,183
Goodwill mE 756 756
28,182 38,939
Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2017 are as follows: REBR - ZE—+F+_A=+—HBHHEZ QA
BT -
Percentage of
ownership interest/
Issued and voting power/
Name Place of incorporation paid up capital profit sharing  Principal activities
FiEREs
Rirg/
A% ARt B BRTRAZKRA AMEENEA TEER
Jun Yang Energy Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 35,566 ordinary shares of US$1 35%  Investment holding

(Formerly known as “ Jun Yang Solar
Power Investment Holdings Limited”)

(“Jun Yang Energy”)
EGeRIERAERAR HeHs 35,566 &3t 35,5665 7T BEAER
(AR EBAEREBRERAR])
(TR
Wink Sky Company Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 35%  Investment holding
BEREB AT RBRUEE 1REBERIET RERR
Jun Yang Solar Power Investment Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 35%  Investment holding
Limited
EGXEREBRAT EE RERRET REER
TREGRERRAR The PRC Registered capital of 35%  Investment holding
US$55,000,000
(of which US$40,000,000
has been paid up)
IREGREBRAR H FHfl & 7556,000,000% 7 REER
(ER40,000,000ETE&R)
AEEGEHERAR" The PRC Registered capital and paid up of 35%  Operation of amorphous silicon
US$3,400,000 thin-fim solar photovoltaic
power station
AEEGENBERAR I FHT K48 B 7%3,400,000% 7T EEFREERAGE KB

180  GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 26.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

REERRNIRE (H)

AEER-ZZ—tF+A=T—HHKELA

(continued) BT - (8)
Percentage of
ownership interest/
Issued and voting power/
Name Place of incorporation paid up capital profit sharing  Principal activities
fiskEs,/
Rirg/
i SR Lt 2 BRTRBRRA AMERFEA  TEEH
HEEBENARAR” The PRC Registered capital and paid up of 35%  Operation of solar photovoltaic
RMB20,000,000 power station
HEEBENERAR HE A RE R AR EERGRERREY
AR20,000,0007T
BREREERARY The PRC Registered capital and paid up of 35%  Operation of amorphous silicon
RMB38,167,939 thin-film solar photovoltaic
power station
EBHRERERAR H A kAR AR MEIREERAGE R
AR38,167,9397T
Rongcheng Jijun Power Co., Ltd.© The PRC Registered capital of 35%  Operation of amorphous silicon
US$6,000,000 thin-flm solar photovoltaic
(of which US$4,000,000 power station
has been paid up)
KREEBNBRAT HE FEf & 786,000,000 7T BEFRERRAGR X REN
(EAR4,000,000ETE 52 )
Jining Junyang Electric Power The PRC Registered capital of 35%  Operation of amorphous silicon
Co. td.@ US$17,520,000 thin-film solar photovoltaic
(of which US$14,520,000 power station
has been paid up)
BEEGSHBR R F T & A17,520,000% T BEEREIRAGRE A REY
(H#R14,520,000% T
BAR)
LongKou Jinjun Power Co., Ltd.® The PRC Registered capital of 35%  Operation of amorphous silicon
US$6,000,000 thin-flm solar photovoltaic
(of which US$2,200,000 power station
has been paid up)
ERSERENERAR H FEf & 786,000,000 7T BEFREERAGREARE
(H#R2,200,000E L2812 )
* The associates are wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the * ZEBE N R AR BNININTBEDE -
PRC.
# ZEBMERNRRPETIEERF -
# The associates are a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC.
@ FZABRX BT EHRDE R REHER
@ The English name of this Company is for reference and has not been
recognised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26.

182

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 26.

 E—E—+F+-A=1t—HIFE
(ABTTSIR)

The following table shows information on the associate that is material
to the Group. This associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. The summarised financial
information presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements of

the associates.

REERRNIRE (H)

TRITEHAEEEESENHE NRER - B
BAREAERENG S M BBRRAAR - AR
BMEMBER DERBERR 2B EMBIREE
RISATE R -

Jun Yang Energy and its subsidiaries

EHERRENB AR
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
Principal place of business/country EBRHN T BT GMER People’s People’s
of incorporation Republic of Republic of
China/Cayman China/Cayman
Islands Islands
REARENE - PEARKLRE
HEHS MEHE
% of ownership interests/voting rights held RNEEFFRREE R 35%/35% 35%/35%
by the Group FREE DL
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Non-current assets IERBEE 530,472 N/A TiE A
Current assets MEVEE 158,795 N/A NE A
Current liabilities mEaE (570,090) N/A 3 A
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (40,815) N/A i A
Net assets BEFE 78,362 N/A 7~ iE A
Group’s share of net assets AEBEEEFE 27,426 N/A TNE A
Goodwill mE 756 N/A 3 A
Group’s share of carrying amount of interests REB AL ERREE 28,182 N/A “1~3E
Year ended 31 December: BEt-A=+t—HLEE:
Revenue WA 84,719 N/A “~3E F
Loss for the year KFEEEE (44,524) N/A e A
Other comprehensive income b2 mEhas 27,004 N/A 3 F
Total comprehensive income B ESIERE (17,520) N/A A3
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table show, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for
using the equity method.

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

26. RBEQRNRE (R

TRIRAE B RGP A £ AR AR ER

TEZE R R SEAER

2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—K
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:

Carrying amounts of interests EmREE N/ATE A 38,939

Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=+t—HLEE:
Loss for the year AEEEE N/ATE A (5,550)
Other comprehensive income Ehamikas N/ATE A -
Total comprehensive income HEK BT N/AREFA (5,550)

As at 31 December 2017, the bank and cash balances of the Group’s
associates in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$15,754,000 (2016: HK$24,510,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

R-Z—t&+-A=+—8 A&£EBEFTH
MEBERRZRITRBESEHRUAREB(TAR
¥ ) EHE - B4915,754,000/8 T ( ZF — N 4F ¢
24,510,000/ 7T ) © AEE G AR HIRK INE
B - B TR BIINE B FIHRG] R AEE - S8 Rt
FEEIRIRIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017  E-E—tF+_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
27. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 27. A—REELENRE
2017 2016
—E—tHF =T N
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong: REBIELTIRE :
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 3,418 -
Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 December 2017 are as RZE—+FE+-_A=+—BAEELLEDEY
follows: SHIBEWT -
Percentage of
ownership interest/
Issued and voting power/
Name Place of incorporation paid up capital profit sharing  Principal activities
fiskEs/
eSS
A% TEM AR Lt B BRTRARZKRA MERFEAIL  EEEH
Creative Lead Limited Hong Kong 12,710,000 ordinary shares of 50%  Not yet commenced business
(“Creative Lead”) HK$12,710,000
BrRABAR({ER]) EE 12,710,000 LiEAR DN
12,710,000/%7C

(2016: 10,000 ordinary
shares of HK$10,000)
(ZZ—7"F 10,0008

E1BH10,0007T)
The following table shows the Group’s share of the amount of TRIRANEBE(EFRAEDSZEAENTITZEES
immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method. BN EE o
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—-8:
Carrying amount of interests Rz IREAE 3,418 -
Year ended 31 December: BZ+=-B=1+—HLLEE:
Loss for the year NEEBE (2,932) (5)
Other comprehensive income HEb 2wk - -
Total comprehensive income PENEBEE (2,932) (5)
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has not recognised HEZZ—X"F+ZA=+—RHLFE  ~£H
loss for the year amounting to HK$2,625 for Creative Lead. The MWARERBEXFANEB2,6258T - RZT—~
accumulated losses not recognised were HK$2,625 as at 31 December F+ZA=+—H  TAREREFEIER2625H
2016. JT °©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

28. AHESREE

2017 2016
—E—tH —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT

Listed investments, at fair value BATEETTEN LTRE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB L TRIRAE S 36,851 81,420
Unlisted equity securities FE_ETRRARFE 142 -
Unlisted investment funds FEMRERES 156 2,147
37,149 83,567

Analysed as: AIR/ATIER -

Non-current assets SEMBEE 37,149 83,567

The fair values of listed equity securities traded in active market are
based on current closing prices in the Stock Exchange. The fair
value of listed equity securities which were suspended of trading in
an active market are estimated by using the index return method
by an independent valuer. The fair values of the unlisted investment
funds have been determined by reference to the quotation provided
by the administrators of the investment funds on the reporting date.
The directors believe that the estimated fair values provided by the
administrators of the investment funds are reasonable, and that is the
most appropriate value at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, loss on fair value change in the investments
of approximately HK$44,046,000 (2016: HK$21,029,000) were
recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected in the
investment revaluation reserve.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, included in the fair value
loss on available-for-sale financial assets were fair value loss arisen
from investments in listed equity investments of approximately
HK$34,611,000, unlisted equity securities of approximately
HK$1,639,000 and unlisted investment fund of approximately
HK$1,991,000 which were determined to be impaired and the
cumulative losses totalling approximately HK$38,241,000 accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.

EEEMSEEN ELMRAZESNAFEEDR
BEMZARTRHEEE - EERHS LERE
HE ETRABHO A FEME A —BBULAEE
b AIE B SMOEERMERMMAE - JF LMK
BEEENATEEC2EREESEEARRE
PERHNWBREMNETE - EEHE REEZSE
BEAMBEHEROGFAFEEBSE  RBSHKR
Rt ERERE -

RZT—+F+-A=+—8  REMaZ2ERE
PRI E N T EEE BEE# 44,046,000 7T
(ZZ—75%F 1 21,029,000/ 7 ) + WAL E Bk
B

HE_T—+tF+-_A=1+—8 s AT#HEE
CRMEENATEEEBRE LTRAKREN
34,611,000 7T + JF AR 778 %5 £1,639,000/%
TCRIEETRE RS 1,991,000 L% & FTE £
ANEEEEE  BEETABAE TRREE
hiEER R RETE RS HE184938,241,000
BRI OEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28.

29.

BE-FT+F+-A=+AILFE
(ABTEHIR)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 28. OHHELREE(E)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016, included in the fair value loss HEZT—X"F+A=+—RHLFE "JH#HE
on available-for-sale financial assets were fair value loss arisen from ECRMEELATYEEEBEERE LTRAEZELN
investments in listed equity investments of approximately HK$5,700,000 5,700,000/ 7T & IE E T IR & E £ £96,214,000/%8
and unlisted investment fund, of approximately HK$6,214,000 which TREMEEAAFEEEE  EETABMRA
were determined to be impaired and the cumulative losses totalling B MRBREEGHREPRITNRITEBREG R
approximately HK$11,914,000 accumulated in the investment 11,914,000 T EEFH D E18% -
revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.
At 31 December 2016, available-for-sale financial assets with carrying RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H KEENHA
amount of approximately HK$40,441,000 were charged in favour of 40,441,000 TR EcMEED KB T
a brokerage firm as collateral for the Group’s liabilities in respect of its 21T ERAEBRRERECEIRFPS LKA
margin trading account. ERERR -
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong Kong At ESREE NS TIE
dollars.
INVENTORIES 29, ®E
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Finished goods BIRK 535 1,802
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZT—+tF+-_A=1T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR)
30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. ESZRHMEKRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables (notes 30(e) and 30(f)) & 5 IR 3R (MI5E30(e) %2.30(f)) 24,133 37,899
Allowance for doubtful debts (note 30(b)) REREHE (FIFES0(0)) (20) (304)
24,113 37,595
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIR « 12E READEWREIE
(notes 30(g) and 30(h)) (P 5E30(g) &230(h)) 27,286 17,430
Amounts due from brokers FEMUAS 40 708 140 4,029
Amounts due from non-controlling interests FEU—FEIF B A R FE R AR A 22 ) 3E
of a subsidiary (note 30(i)) (P E30() 77 45
Amount due from a joint venture (note 30(i)) U — A & 23R IE (FFRE30() - 1,249
Loan receivable from an associate (note 30()) PR — R A BB SR (BEE30()) 27,230 -
78,846 60,348
Analysed of trade and other receivables as follows: E 5 REAMBEWFIESHITAT
2017 2016
—Z—tf —ERE
Non-current Current Non-current Current
assets assets Total assets assets Total
FRBEE RBEE @ ERPEE TMEEE &5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET FiET FET TR
Trade receivables E SRR - 24,113 24,113 6,000 31,595 37,595
Prepayments, deposits and other  FBFUE « B& &
receivables Hith IR - 27,286 27,286 - 17,430 17,430
Amounts due from brokers JENS R TRIE - 140 140 - 4,029 4,029
Amounts due from non-controlling  FE — R B2 7]
interests of a subsidiary FEERERMFIE - 77 77 - 45 45
Amount due from a joint venture  [E—RIA S ¥R - - - - 1,249 1,249
Loan receivable from an associate [EUR—FEH& AR EH - 27,230 27,230 - - -
- 78,846 78,846 6,000 54,348 60,348
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 30. ESRHMmEKREE)
(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables (@) EFERIRMRWIREDT
According to the credit rating of different customers and service BIETRR P KRG HEENEETR - &
providers, the Group allows credit periods ranged from 0 to 90 EEATHESRFPHEERNT0E0H
days (2016: 0 to 90 days) to its trade customers. Further details —ZT—XF 0290RH) - FRAELEEE
on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 6(c). PR B — PR BRI E6(C) ©
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for Z ZEWIRR (R EEIB R E) RE D H
impairment loss) based on due date is as follows: ARERER DTN -
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FET
Not due A ER 19,715 31,458
Less than 1 month past due mE L R1EA 1,561 1,331
1 to 3 months past due BE Z=3{E A 1,796 3,928
More than 3 months but less than 12 months  #1EA8:831E A8 L7 1218 A
past due 939 749
Over 12 months past due m AR A 1218 A 102 129
4,398 6,137
24,113 37,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly (see note 4(z)).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of impairment on both individual and

collective basis.

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

30. E5RHEMEWRE(E)
(b) EZEWIRIAVRIE
B 5 P AR SR L (598 T 4B 0 PR 3
fRAREIER - BRIE AN SR B AR B B IR T At
MARK - EZERT - REEETEENE
2R D il i (R RE4()) -

RE RS - ARERTE S RLERE
AR R A FIREE -

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: B S RBERRELE
2017 2016
—E—tH —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
At 1 January »n—A—H 304 206
Allowance for the year REERE 20 304
Reversal of allowance for the year F B OB (227) (143)
Amounts written off ZIHE R (77) (63)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H~ 20 304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)
30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 30. ESRHMmEKREE)
(c) Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired (c) EEHERBENESEWRK
As of 31 December 2017, the ageing analysis of the Group’s RZZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H FEEE&E
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is as follows: HERRENE S E KRR R 270
T~
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Less than 1 month LR1{EA 1,561 1,331
1 to 3 months 123(@A 1,796 3,928
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 31 A LA _H{E 1218 A 939 749
Over 12 months HBi@121E8 A 102 129
4,398 6,137
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to B EE R ENE R IEERNEEZ L
a number of independent customers and service providers BRIFIEHENBYEL MIRIGHERERE -
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past BIEEALER  SEEBHEHAMRZSES
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance EHRERE  REACZEEEWME R
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been B MZEEADNEE AR 28ULE -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

(d) Currency denomination of trade receivables (d EFEWERIENEN
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are NEEZ FEWEFOEREN T &)
denominated in the following currencies: g :

2017 2016

—E—tHF e ANCS

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

HK$ BT 12,296 25,498

us$ e 10,717 11,020

Japanese yen = 1,100 1,077

24,113 37,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(e)

Loan receivables from customers

As of 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables were loans to customers of approximately
HK$6,177,000 (2016: HK$11,673,000) for the Money Lending
Business. The detailed analysis of loan receivables is as follows:

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

30. E5RHEMEWRE(E)
(6) EUREFER
R-F—tF+-A=+—8  F£ENE
HENER D EREREBARSERO

6,177,000/ 7L (= F — 734 : 11,673,000/
U)o EREFFANITIT -

Secured Unsecured Total
[=Fiigi IR st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—Z-tfF ZE-R b Sl 3 —TRF —Z-tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THEL THT FiEr THT FHT
Current ENER 6,177 5,484 - 189 6,177 5,673
Non-current JERNE - 6,000 - - - 6,000
At 31 December RTZA=1+—8 6,177 11,484 - 189 6,177 11,673

As at 31 December 2017, the loan receivables of approximately
HK$6,177,000 (2016: HK$11,484,000) was secured by personal
guarantees granted by a director of a former subsidiary of the
Company (2016: was secured by unconditional and irrecoverable
corporate guarantees provided by an independent third party or
personal guarantees granted by a director of a former subsidiary
of the Company).

R-ZE—+F+-A=+—8 EHEKRERY
6,177,000 7T ( ZF — X4 : 11,484,000/ 7T) J)
HAARIAMBARZ —BEERENEAER
BB (ZT—RF - B FE = RE &GS
RATHMERRERIAARGMBARZ —&
BEEEHOEABRERR) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
() Due from contract customers

As of 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables was amounts due from contract customers of
approximately HK$992,000 (2016: HK$1,298,000) for Corporate
Management Solution and |.T. Contract Services Business.
Detailed analysis of the amounts due from contract customers is

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

30. EZRHEMEYREE)

(f)

B SN %EF IR

RZZB—tF+-A=+—8  x5£EH
BHRPBEREEREEERBRRTRR
ARMBRENRBEBRE S OEP KA
#7992,00078 7 (ZZ —7< 4 : 1,298,000/
7T - REANEPFAFASWAT -

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tH ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAExT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits B EA A KIS B FER
less recognised losses to date SEFR B HERE R 2,374 2,273
Less: Progress bilings W EE IR (1,382) (975)
992 1,298
Amounts due from customers AHITREREFHIE
for contract work 992 1,298

There are no advances received in respect of service contracts at
31 December 2017 (2016: HK$NIl).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(9)

(h)

U]

0

Other loan receivables

As of 31 December 2016, included in the Group’s prepayments,
deposits and other receivables was loan to GEO Finance
Limited, a former subsidiary of the Group, of approximately
HK$7,545,000. The loan was secured by unconditional and
irrevocably personal guarantee given by a director of a former
subsidiary of the Company, interest bearing at 11% per annum
and repayable on 31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017,
the other loan receivables are fully settled.

Other receivable

As of 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s prepayments,
deposits and other receivables was contingent consideration
receivable of HK$20,400,000 arising from the profit guarantee in
relation to the adjustments to the consideration for the acquisition
of AP Group during the year ended 31 December 2016. Details
of the calculation of the adjustment to the consideration are
disclosed in note 32.

Amounts due from non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary/a joint venture

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and with no fixed
repayment terms.

Loan receivable from an associate
The loan due from Jun Yang Energy is unsecured, interest free

and is repayable upon demand subject to the consent of all
shareholders of Jun Yang Energy.

BHE—ZT

e PR RR M

= e e El

(ABTTEIIR)

30. EZRHEMEBWE

(9)

(h)

U]

0

RIE (48)
HibEWER

m_7 —NFE+=ZA=+—8  AEEBEN
R &%&EMEW NIEBER TASE
me BHRFUHEARRRZERL
75%pm%n ZEREBARARAIHBR

Al —BERRM Z E G R P EEEA
RIEIEI Eﬁﬂ%¢ﬁ¥ﬁ§iﬁm—
T—+tHF+-f=+—BEE -R=_T—+
F+-—A=+—8" EMEWE E*%

e

Hib W IR

T AR

CEERAMERHERERE S
O
B % AR B AR IR B AT A RO
e (E20,400,0008 7T - REFBNE
BB BRI 382 -

FELL — BT 1 B A9 SE I AR A
BERIE

w5

BRFEAEERR %0 ABEEERY
MR -

FEl —BEtE R RER

RREGRERRERR R AEEE
SKIEE - HEBGERERBEREAERTS
1FE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31.

194

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

31. EBRERUQATEEIIRNESHEE

2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Equity securities held for trading, at fair value BAEBEAEREELTH
Listed in Hong Kong BIEEBERAES 9,656 523,899

Analysed as: DITALTIEE :

Current assets REVEE 9,656 523,899

The investments represent listed equity securities investments that
offer the Group the opportunity for return through dividend income and
fair value gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. The fair
values of listed equity securities traded in an active market are based
on market prices at the end of reporting period. The fair value of listed
equity securities which are suspended of trading in an active market are
estimated by using the index return method by an independent valuer.

At 31 December 2016, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
with carrying amount of approximately HK$146,770,000 were charged
in favour of a brokerage firm as collateral for the Group’s liabilities in
respect of its margin trading account.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.
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RAFEBERSERQRN EHRAERRE -
ZEREVEETFTINPALERE - RIEETS
LEEN EMBRAESFNAFEEDRER RS
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EHFzATEER-RELGEMERERD
WAERBERMA -

R-E-—RE+-_A=+—8B E@EEHAE
146,770,000/ LM E B Bm AR FEEYIRN S
MEECHEFR T —BELTIEARNEERERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32.

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 32.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable represented

the profit guarantee in relation to the adjustments to the consideration
for the acquisition of AP Group (note 43(a)(ii)) during the year ended 31
December 2016 as detailed in note () below. Contingent consideration

receivable was measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The movement of the fair value of contingent consideration receivable is

W RAKE

BURSAKREBZ A FEEREERBE_Z—~F
T A=+—BILFEREE BB (F:E43()()
ZREZABRBE ZHFIERGFEHL T XH
() - BIRSARBRFEHRZAFEER
B o BRSAREBRFEEZZESWT

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
At fair value: RATEHR:
At beginning of the year REH 18,710 -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries WEEM B A RIFTE A
(note 43(a)(ii) (Pt 3E43(a)(i)) - 17,593
Fair value change NEEEE 1,690 1,117
Transfer to other receivables (note 30(h)) 2 H At E U IE (B FE30(h)) (20,400) -
At end of the year NGRS N - 18,710

BEZERABRAT 201755k

195



196

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE
(continued)

)

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered in relation
to the acquisition of AP Group, in the event that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for the period from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2017 is less than HK$16,000,000,
the vendor shall, and Universe International Holdings Limited
(now known as Universe International Financial Holdings Limited)
(“Universe”) (Stock Code :1046) as the guarantors shall procure
the vendor to, pay to the Group the adjustment amount (the
“Adjustment Amount”) in accordance with the formula set out
below:

A = HK$20,400,000 — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:
“A” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$.

“NP” means the net profit for the period from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2017. Where the NP is a negative figure, NP shall
be deemed to be zero.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable as at 1
July 2016 (date of acquisition of AP Group) and 31 December
2016 are based on the valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer using discounted cash flow approach. At
31 December 2017, based on the unaudited consolidated
management accounts of the AP Group for the period from
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017, a fair value gain of
approximately HK$1,690,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. The balance was transferred to
other receivables as at 31 December 2017.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

32. EWREARNEGER)

BEFRBEEHERI L2 EE RS @ WE
HEBE - F—A—HAEE=Z—t
F+ZA=+—AIHMZEFZGRR &R
A % 2 52 16,000,000 7T © BIE F E K&
ERABTFEERZREBRAGCIEETFTR
BemzRERAR(EF] (RO
1046) EME B HRIE Tl AR A4S B &
RS E((ARLE])

A = 20,400,000/ 7T — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Hep
A TEHEZ HE S HIE -

[NPJEEEZZE—R"F—A—BRE=Z
—t&E+ A=+ AL EFFE -
s F FEAEEME BRI FEEERE
R-Z—ANEtA—RARESHEERS)
R RE+-A=t—B2zEKEIAK
B2 AFEEDNRIEE L ZEEEMETH
HEFERIRBESREAEL - RZT—t
F+-A=+—B  REEHEENR-F
—RNE—A—BE-_Z—+E+=-_A=+—
AR REEZGAERER  WRa
B R NER A FEE K 491,690,000
TeRZEBE—+F+-A=+—H &5
2 H A EUGRIA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

33. EEARTERUARRERRESEEY

EQUIVALENTS
2017 2016
—E—tH —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTE R 101,548 87,350
Pledged bank deposits BEEAIRITHER 2,645 2,638
104,193 89,988

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s pledged bank deposits represented
deposits of approximately HK$2,645,000 (2016: HK$2,638,000)
which were pledged to banks to secure banking facilities to the extent
of HK$2,500,000 (2016: HK$2,500,000) granted to the Group. The
deposits included approximately HK$623,000 (2016: HK$622,000) and
HK$2,022,000 (2016: HK$2,016,000) which are denominated in US$
and HK$ respectively. The deposits are interest bearing at fixed rates
from the range of 0.2% to 0.3% (2016: 0.05% to 0.3%) per annum.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had available undrawn banking
facilities of approximately HK$2,908,000 (2016: HK$2,902,000).

The pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents of the
Group are denominated in the following currencies:

FRIBITHR SBLRIARITE B F R KRR
HYF BN BRERFIE,

R-ZE—+tF+-A=+—0  REENHTIEF
RITIF RUEIE IR T ER1TATT 51 402,645,0007%8 TT( =
T —/R%F 2,638,000 70) ' fEAXEBERS
2,500,000/ 7T ( ZF —734F © 2,500,000 7T ) iR
TRVE IR - FREF£9623,0008 70 (= —~
£ 1 622,000/ 7T ) }2.2,022,000/8 T ( —F — /N4 ¢
2,016,000/87T) D RIAZE T KB TTHIME © F3RE
FEMENTF02BEE03E(ZZ—NF : 0.05F
F0.3F)FE °

MN-Z—+F+-_A=+—B AEEAAHA
KRITEUIRTTRE & £92,908,00058 7T ( —F — /N4 -
2,902,000/ 7T) °

FEENEERROTEFFIUARRAE LR EEY
T HIEs5IE

2017 2016
—E2—+tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FiExT FHET

US$ e 39,949 44,800
RMB AR 572 618
HK$ BT 63,672 44,570
104,193 89,988

As at 31 December 2017, bank balances and pledged bank deposits
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$543,000 (2016: HK$568,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

RZZE—tF+-A=+—H ZEEUARE
P (E R IRTTA #R R B IR 1T17 ;40 A543,00078
TL(ZZ—75F : 568,000/ 70) ° #§ A RE HIBRK
SN EIRIE R BIONE BB IEH R AETE - SRR
EEIRFIE T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

34. EZRHEHMENTIE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables B SRR 3,366 5,016
Deferred income FEIEWA 2,672 3,889
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FERTHI R A R FEIEAR M 22 O SRR
of subsidiaries (note 34(d)) (FfF5E34(d)) 971 3,972
Loan notes interest payables ERTEREEFE - 4,983
Accrued expenses and other payables FET B R R Ho A FE S 5RIE
(note 34(c)) (FfF5E34(c)) 10,712 26,902
17,721 44,762
(a) Ageing analysis of trade payables () EBSEMIRAIIREDT
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of B 5 FETBR AR B UG ER /IR B HARYBR
receipt of goods/services, is as follows: O
2017 2016
—Z & —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
Less than 3 months DHABE A 3,316 2,399
More than 3 months but less than 12 months ~ #2:@31E A {8 DA 121E A 42 1,847
More than 12 months BiB121EA 8 770
3,366 5,016
(b) Currency denomination of trade payables (b) BEEMNERNEEEN

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

REEE S RNERNREERIATEES]
B :

2017 2016

—E—tHF —Z—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

uss$ E 2,499 3,049
HK$ BT 867 1,967
3,366 5,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 34. EFRAEMEBENREGR)

(c)

(d)

Commission clawback provision (c)

As of 31 December 2016, included in accrued expenses and
other payables of the Group was commission clawback provision
on the Insurance and MPF Schemes Brokerage Business of
approximately HK$29,000. The commission clawback provision
represents expected cash outflows which are estimated with
reference to the sales volume, past experience of the levels of
clawback, and the directors’ best estimates of the expenditure
required to settle the obligations. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised by the directors where
appropriate.

REmERE

REZB—RE+ZA=+—H  AEEEN
ERRAEMENFBRSERARR I BES
FHEIAE 4 T 60 (8 £ [ 47 18 48 49 29,0008
T AEmBEAAERRSRT - miAY
RentH2EHE - OB EKFIAR
EEHEBFRBAERXREMETRME
Bl - EESRHERHNINEERIKEES
BAfHEAE -

The movement in commission clawback provision is as follows: AeRmBEESNT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
At 1 January »n—A—H 29 1,900
Reversal of provision in prior years B OATFERE - (1,585)
Utilisation during the year AEEEA - (286)
Reversal on disposal of a subsidiary HE— W EB AR R E (29) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H~ - 29
Amounts due to non-controlling interests of (d) FEFHEBERFERERNFIE
subsidiaries

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and with no fixed
repayment terms.

BRBNREREERR T REEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 31 December 2015 upon completion of the acquisition of additional
14.677% interest in Boom Max, the Company issued zero coupon rate
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$75,208,000 to vendors as partial consideration for the acquisition at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.3 per conversion share (as adjusted
to HK$1.5 per conversion share after the 2016 Capital Reorganisation
(as defined below) becoming effective on 24 May 2016 and subject
to further adjustment(s)). The maturity date of the convertible notes is
the date falling two years after the issue date of 31 December 2015.
Noteholders shall have the right to convert the notes into ordinary
shares at any time during the conversion period. If any amount due
under the convertible notes is not paid when due, at the Company’s
sole discretion, such amount shall be redeemed by the Company by
issue and delivery by the Company of a promissory note in favour of the
noteholder(s) in the principal amount equal to 100% of such amount
together with interest accrued on the overdue sum at the rate which
is the lower of () HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum and (i) 4% per annum,
and will be due to mature on the first anniversary date of the issue of
the promissory note. At any time prior to the maturity date, at the sole
discretion of the Company, the Company may cancel and redeem
such amount outstanding under the convertible note at 100% of such
outstanding amount. The terms and conditions of the convertible notes
are summarised in the Company’s announcements dated 13 August
2015 and 16 September 2015 and the Company’s circular dated 23
November 2015. The convertible notes were redeemed in full during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

35.

JRRRE

R-Z—AF+=A=1+—HZKKEEBoom Max
EBIM4.6TT %R R - R ARIAIBEH BT B
#/75,208,0008 T T E A MIREE - fEAK
BEHINRE VP RBRERETRIMIRMN0.3IET
(RZZ2—R"ERABE(EER TR HARE
BRBRBKRNDI15ET RZE—R"FRA=-+T
HBAR - WA — %) - ATARZEIEA
ABTEMN-Z—AFt+-A=1+—HBE:nM
FEA - ZEBBABERLBRATMRREE
BRBRALER - WAl RRBEIE A EMR
EREHRDAIN  ABRLESHAARAZE
MEER - FRAEAARARBEFE AL RER
NASERENEEEEI00%NF L ERE  ER
BRAEESEAENDIEFLE - FIRBOES
SRITEZEIF BANE IR A 58 R (i) 4 F R 4B H &K
H UHRBTALZER —BAFEAIH - R
FH B AR - AR R 2ERNIBEREER
B2 S EERI100% 5% § & I [0 AT HR AR SR 4R 18 T AR (8
B - IMBREBROGRERBEHRA AR BE
B-E-RAFENAT=BR-Z—HEAA+~
HOAEURAARABA=-ZE—RF+—A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-T—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR)
35. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 35. TAREE(E)
The convertible notes contain three components, equity, liability and ARBREBEDE=(E5 5 : #= BERTET
derivative components which have been split as follows: AEn - oRIEST ¢
Equity Liability Derivative
component component component Total
BRI D a&Hs FTETESRS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FAL FAT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—A—H 25,555 68,525 (21,564) 72,516
Effective interest expenses FRERFERZ
for the year - 3,264 - 3,264
Fair value loss NHEEEE - - 20,605 20,605
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+=ZA
1 January 2017 =+—BRRZZE—tF
—H—H 25,555 71,789 (959) 96,385
Fair value loss R EERE - - 959 959
Redemption of convertible notes & Bl Al iR Z 1 (25,555) (75,208) - (100,763)
Effective interest expenses FRERFEFRL
for the year - 3,419 - 3,419
At 31 December 2017 WZZ—+tE+_H
=+—H - - - -

Fair value at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=A
“t+—HMmATEE - - - _

Fair value at 31 December 2016 RZE—R~E+=A
=+—BHATEE - 70,283 (959) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35.

36.

 E—E—+F+-A=1t—HIFE
(ABTTSIR)

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 35. AEARERE(E)
The liability component of convertible notes was initially stated at fair ARBREENEBERS> DL ELATFEEE A
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective BABRF X IRB K AT E EERBRRT
interest method until distinguished on conversion. The effective interest TR - BEMBIRNTERFNERFNER
rate of the liability component on initial recognition is 4.7% per annum. 4.7 o
The fair value of the liability component of the convertible notes at 31 AR EREBESIR_E—A"F+A=1+—
December 2016 was approximately HK$70,283,000. This fair value BE A F(EELA70,283,000/8 7T ° AT EE
was calculated by discounting the future cash flows at market interest ERETM SN EBRERKBeRE(E_RAF
rate (level 2 fair value measurements). The derivative component BEFE)FTESH - TTETASHRSMEL K
was measured at its fair value at the date of issue and at the end of RERBITAB ATEAEE - AT EARE
each reporting period. The fair values were estimated using binomial AoEXAEX(E=RATFEAENZE)ETHET -
model (level 3 fair value measurements). The fair value of the liability RZE—R"F+ZA=+—RHABEREEAES
component and derivative component of the convertible note as at 31 METETARND 2 A TFEBEDABLIEXGHE
December 2016 were estimated by an independent professional valuer. RYE L fAaT ©
DEFERRED TAX 36. EERIIE
(a) Deferred tax liabilities () EEFIBEEE
Financial assets
at fair value
Investment Intangible through
properties assets profit or loss Total
BEiBEEN
ATEETIREN
RENE EREE SMEE S
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TEx TAR TART TAT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—~F—A—A - 5,170 - 5,170
Charge to profit and loss (note 14(a))  sFAIBZE(FisE14()) - 5,577 13,425 19,002
Acquisition of a subsidiary YeiE — AT A Al (T =E43(0)()
(note 43(0)() 136 - - 136
At 31 December 2016 and RIE—RE+ZA=+-HEK
1 January 2017 —Z—+tF—-f—-H 136 10,747 13,425 24,308
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss (FTABE) /fiBE MGk
(note 14 () (FE14() (136) 1,554 (13,425) (12,007)
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—tF+-A=t—-H - 12,301 - 12,301
(b) Deferred tax assets (b) ELEBIBEEE

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$279,092,000 (2016: HK$65,501,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets
in respect of tax losses carried forward has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of the future profit streams. Tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. LOAN NOTES

BHE—ZT

e PR RR M

= e e El

(ABTTEIIR)

37. ERREE

2017 2016
—E—t5 AR
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
BEE TET TAT
Jun 2015 Notes S AR S 37(a) = 19,000
Aug 2015 Notes —REFENARE 37(b) = 191,000
- 210,000
Analysed as: AITRATIES -
Current liabilities mBEE = 208,000
Non-current liabilities FRBAR = 2,000
- 210,000
(@ 10% per annum notes (“Jun 2015 Notes”) () 10EFEEE(-EBE—RFEXAE
=)
Pursuant to a note placing agreement dated 26 June 2015, the BiERRAEA—S—RAFE A -+ HNERE
Group issued 10% unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured BES AR ERSBEEESHARE

(b)

loan notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$19,000,000
to certain subscribers during the period commencing on the
date of this placing agreement and up to (and including) the date
falling on the 15th day of the sixth month after the date of this
placing agreement. The Jun 2015 Notes are denominated in HK$
and will mature on the second anniversary of the issue dates of
the Jun 2015 Notes.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
fully repaid Jun 2015 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$19,000,000.

9% per annum notes (“Aug 2015 Notes”)

Pursuant to a note placing agreement dated 20 August 2015, the
Group issued 9% unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
loan notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$191,000,000
to certain subscribers during the period commencing on the
date of this placing agreement and up to (and including) the
date falling on the 15th day of the sixth month after the date of
this placing agreement. The Aug 2015 Notes are denominated
in HK$ and will mature on the second anniversary of the issue
dates of the Aug 2015 Notes.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
fully repaid Aug 2015 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$191,000,000.

(b)

A EEEREANE158E R (BE%
H) LB - AEEEE TREAZEITI0E
7R #8758 /19,000,00078 ST Y MG - FE1&
EREEAEREE —E—hFAEE
PAZSTTEIE - R =T — AT N AREE%
fTRHE BEERIE -

ét 4 FF+_A=Z+—HUEEFE &K
NEIE RS #2%619,000,000/8 LA EE E
—E-RFRNAEEK-

IEFERB(=T-—HFNARE]

BREARA-Z-RF/\A-THONRER
Bk - BULECE HaE R E S I ACE B
FERHREANEANEI6HER(B1EZA)
LHHR  AEERETRBARTIELAS
#%8/3191,000,000/8 TLEVEE AT - FFIR(E

REEFERERE —_T—AFN\AZEI
BILAIE - TR —RAF N\ ARIEET
AEAE —AFEIE -
REBEE-Z—+tE+_A=+—RALEE

FiN/N Te%ﬂi > 48%8191,000,0007% 7T &
EBE-_Z—RAFNAZE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE

(A TTEIR)

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. BA&
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
SREE ROEAE iox-]
Note HKS$ '000 HK$'000
(= BT F & FABT
Authorised: SEIE
Ordinary shares TR
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—A—H 0.01 80,000,000 800,000
Share consolidation f&AE fF 38(a)(i) 0.05 (64,000,000) -
Capital reduction and share AR AN Bk K2 AR 1 v 4
subdivision 38(a)(i) 0.01 64,000,000 -
At 31 December 2016, RZZ—RF+=H
1 January 2017 and =+—H -ZF—+F
31 December 2017 —A—BR=ZZF—tF
+=-—A=+—H 0.01 80,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
Ordinary shares TR
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—A—H 0.01 1,234,579 12,346
Share consolidation f&AE fF 38(a)(i) 0.05 (987,663) -
Capital reduction and share AR AN Bk K2 A% 1 v 4
subdivision 38(a)(i) 0.01 - (9,877)
New issue of consideration shares ~ #1277 EBR (D 38(b) 0.01 40,800 408
New issue of consideration shares #1277 B 38(c) 0.01 8,583 86
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+=A
1 January 2017 =t+t—HE=ZE—+tF
—H—H 0.01 296,299 2,963
Rights issue of shares HERFEITRR D 38(d) 0.01 148,149 1,481
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=A
=+—-H 0.01 444,448 4,444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 20 April 2016
in respect of the capital reorganisation (“2016 Capital Reorganisation”).
Unless otherwise specified herein, capitalised terms used in this paragraph
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the circular.

The 2016 Capital Reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
23 May 2016 and became effective on 24 May 2016. The 2016 Capital
Reorganisation involved the following:

(i) Share consolidation

Pursuant to the share consolidation (“2016 Share Consolidation”),
every five issued and unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each were consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.05
each (“2016 Consolidated Share”) and the total number of the
2016 Consolidated Shares in the issued share capital of the
Company immediately following the 2016 Share Consolidation was
rounded down to a whole number by cancelling any fraction in the
issued share capital of the Company arising from the 2016 Share
Consolidation.

(ii) Capital reduction and share subdivision

- the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.04 on each of the issued
2016 Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value of
each issued 2016 Consolidated Share was reduced from
HK$0.05 to HK$0.01 (“2016 Capital Reduction”);

- immediately following the 2016 Capital Reduction, each
of the authorised but unissued 2016 Consolidated Shares
of HK$0.05 each was subdivided into 5 new shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company; and

- the credit of approximately HK$9,877,000 arising from (i)
the reduction of paid-up capital and (i) the cancellation
of any fractional 2016 Consolidated Share in the issued
share capital of the Company arising from the 2016
Share Consolidation was transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company within the meaning of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Immediately after the 2016 Capital Reorganisation became
effective on 24 May 2016, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$800,000,000 divided into 80,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each, of which 246,915,825 shares were in
issue and the aggregate nominal value of the issued share capital
was approximately HK$2,469,000.

e PR RR M

 E_T T A=1+—RHIFE
(LAETTHIR)

38. KA (#)

@  EZEAARFAHRA—T-RFHA-THD
B ARAEBRAZEA( - RFRAE
M) - RXEZAREI - AR AREEEK
PR ER ABHAREE -

TE-RFRABHERARTNE_T—R"Eh
AZT=A8THRREFAGEARFTBRR
HE IR_F-—RFEA-+TMHBEER - =F
—NERABES RIATHA

[0} & &0

RIERGE G ([ ZF—REROHEH]) -
ARABEREECOVETHE KRB HIT
RARBETRM AR —REE.05ETA
IO (ZF—RFA0RH]) - MERE
ZE-RFBROAFHRARFEETRA
T T REAHRNEERE EBTH
A-Z—RFRODAFMEEARTDH
FTRA P IR TR RS R -

(i P A3t B2 A A 3 AR

- AEARBEREETE—F
BHBRMDOEHER0.04BTT « #5
LABIRA AR B BEITRA - 2F
REBIT =T —A~FAHRMHOE
ER0.058 LB E0.01E ([ =%
—NERRAEIR]) ¢

- BT NFRAEIRE - HE
[l I {8 /30.0678 TTH) A FE B AR T
—E-REAHBRHERIFAR/S
& IR EE0.01 BTG &

- & () Bl AR AR A R (i) sE S E =
T-RNERNDAEHAEEARARA]
BETRAFEA T —RFE
HROZEMBRHEEZERY
9,877,000 LE AR ARG ME
BEABK(EER—NAN—Fa&
ENRNE) e

R T -AFRASER T —FA
BZ+HmBEHE  ARALAERA R
800,000,000 % 7t * % /A 80,000,000,000
BEBREECOIETHRMD - Ef
246,915,825/ B BT B BITIRAEE
HERH) 12,469,000/ 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (cont’d)

)

On 18 June 2016, Lucky Famous, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 51% of
the equity interest of AP Holding from Fragrant River Entertainment Culture
Holdings Limited (“Fragrant River”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Universe,
at a consideration of HK$20,400,000 (subject to downward adjustment),
which was settled by way of allotment and issue of 40,800,000 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each, credited as fully paid, at an
issue price of HK$0.5 per consideration share pursuant to the general
mandate granted in the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23 May 2016. Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 June 2016, 23 June 2016 and 1 July 2016.

On 13 June 2016, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Weluck Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fragrant
River, in relation to the subscription of 8,583,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company by Weluck Development Limited at the subscription price of
HKS$0.5 per subscription share to be allotted and issue under the general
mandate of the Company. Details of the subscription are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 13 June 2016, 23 June 2016 and 1
July 2016.

On 21 December 2016, the Board proposed the implementation of the
rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every two existing ordinary
shares held on the record date of 19 January 2017 at the subscription
price of HK$0.52 per rights share to raise approximately HK$77,038,000,
before deduction of expenses, by issuing 148,149,412 rights shares to the
qualifying shareholders.

The transaction was completed on 15 February 2017, on which
148,149,412 rights share were issued. The net proceeds of the rights issue
was approximately HK$74,340,000.

Details of the proposed rights issue are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 21 December 2016, 10 January 2017, 17
January 2017, 14 February 2017, 17 February 2017 and the Company’s
prospectus dated 20 January 2017.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that
it can continue to provide returns for the shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38.

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 38. BA(#&)
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital AEEBRGR TR REEEEARNER - Ui
structure to maintain a balance between higher shareholder returns that FREL = 18 FOK ST A] AR 75 2R e R 2 A R [ g L ER
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages BRBESMAE RO E R RRE 2B K F
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgement & - WHEEIRIB NS A AN L HIET -
as to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group and the Company monitor its capital structure on the basis REBMEARNAIREBEHERL R AEEERHA
of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debts is defined B - gt CABREHFEATAEBR
as total debts (which includes trade and other payables, amount due to H(RIEES REMENTIE BN —EHRBAR
a subsidiary, loan notes, convertible notes, which is applicable). Equity I EREBERTBRREZR(ER)) - #58
comprises share capital and reserves. FERA S & -
During 2017, the Group’s strategy was to maintain a debt-to-equity RE-Z—tF  AEBRDKEAEFEEY
ratio at not more than 45% (2016: 45%). In order to maintain or adjust ML RN IEA5% ( ZF— N 1 45% ) KYKF o
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to BRFUNFAEZLE - AEBE A #AR AR IR
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise MRESEE  BITHRG  MRREEER &
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts. SRR A EEERE
The Group The Company
rEH N
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF ZTREF —Z—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FBT FiET
Debts B 44,546 362,754 20,584 293,311
Equity K= 611,363 1,047,535 562,943 1,015,008
Debt-to-equity ratio BEHERLE 7% 35% 4% 29%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report
from the share registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing
the non-public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the
25% limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2017, approximately
71.63% (2016: 43.96%) of the shares were in public hands.

AN A R E A B RN RN B AR E
FTARER

WM EEHRTEANEREABE V2B AR
RS DA H B S FTGEMEY itz o K
SESEMBEERNBREREREERGER
FBHBERIEARFRENRE  RERFER—
HETHHB%RERTE - RZE—LF+=A
=+—HB - #971.63%(=Z—/XF : 43.96%) %D
HARALEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE

(A TTEIR)

39. ALAFMBRRRREEEE

@ ARBRIHBARREK

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B s FHxT FHET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KR 95 262
Investments in subsidiaries RHTE R RRIRE - -
95 262

Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and deposits A RIBRIZRS 584 8,049
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURBT I N RIFRIE 537,462 1,285,332
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTE - 959
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREZEEY 45,386 13,717
583,432 1,308,057
Current liabilities EBEaE

Accrued expenses and other payables 1~ B FB & H i (- 7k 18 2,051 7,080
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES BT ARIIR 18,533 4,442
Loan notes BERER - 208,000
Convertible notes BIES &7 - 71,789
20,584 291,311
Net current assets REEEFE 562,848 1,016,746
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERBRBERE 562,943 1,017,008

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loan notes BERER - 2,000
Convertible notes BIES 7 - -
- 2,000
NET ASSETS EEFE 562,943 1,015,008

Capital and reserves BB
Share capital &2 4,444 2,963
Reserves i 39(b) 558,499 1,012,045
TOTAL EQUITY RS 562,943 1,015,008

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Hung Yvonne
H i
Director

BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-T—tF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR)
39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39. AAFMBEMRRRRFEEE(E)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) ADEREEE

Share  Convertible

Share Share  Contributed option note equity  Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
TEREE
A RiVEE B4ES  ERERE BRfE RithE a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK8'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn T T Tin TEn TEn Fhn

At 1 January 2016 RZE-r5-A-H 12,346 420,124 978,836 2,839 25,565 (425,556) 1,014,144
Share consolidation and capitel A& G KRR

reduction (note 38(a)) (F13£38(a)) 0877) - 9,877 - - - -
Issuance of consideration BIRERR (1738(0)

shares (note 38(0) 408 19,992 - - - - 20,400
Issuance of subscription S RER R

shares (note 38(c) TR {7 (f3E38(c)) 86 4,206 - - - - 4,29
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AEEEEL

income for the year FAEREH - - - - - (23.828) (23828)

At 31 December 2016 and RZZ-AE

1 January 2017 TZA=1+-8k
“E-t5-F-H 2,963 444322 988,713 2,839 25,555 (449,384) 1,015,008
Rights issue of shares on RZF-tE-A+hA
15 February 2017 HIRETRE
(note 38(d) (FzE38) 1481 72,859 - - - - 74340
Forfeiture of share options R - - - (1419 - 1419 -
Redemption of convertible R ARER (H:35)
notes (note 35) - - - - (25,559) 25,555 -
Loss and total comprehensive  AEEEER
income for the year 2EMESE - - - - - (526,405) (526,405)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tE
+-B=+-A 4,444 517,181 988,713 1,420 - (948,815) 562,043

ESERERAT 2017F% 209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

U

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds
in the share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”) to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the public listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange set out
in the Company’s prospectus dated 18 December 2001,
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation over the nominal
value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange
thereof.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

40. f#%

(a)

(b)

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

REE

AREHERARDEENGA EERAUE
AR HRRGA RS

RENEERBEN
() RiEE

BEABRE-NN—FRFE AR
AR R ERAIAB R AR T XD
K °

i) — E#wEe

AEENEMRBIERBEARR R
ARZET—F+ A+ N\BHEKRE
RAE - RERBARBRRMD NI R
P b AR A LB BN EA B
(T=EEA D PR BHTE AR MR AR
EEBBARRR R EITHRN
E{EMZERE -

AARNEHBBIERBEESAMN
WK B ARN AT EERRA AR
RZBMEITORMNEENER

BREABRE-NN—FRFE BEH
BRI IR TR - A - 3
EUTER » AIRRAR TN SEIRRIK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(i)

()

(i)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options granted
to a consultant of the Group that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share
options granted to directors and consultants in note 4(u).

Convertible note equity reserve

The convertible note equity reserve represents the equity
component (conversion right) of the notes issued (note
35).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the end of the reporting period and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in
note 4(m).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 4(e).

e PR RR M

HE_T—+tHF+-_A=1+—HIEFE
(ABTTEIIR)

40. f##E (&)

(b) fREEHEEREE)

(i) FERIEF R

B A B R AR B AR
HEVRITEBAEN R BB ATE
EEPREMZAWFERAESR
R R R R B A SR A FHBOR
R -

() TRRFR L
AR RS G 1 2 BT R AR A
RERS ) CLI%0) (HI3E35) ©

() REEGEHE
BE B ERERRE BRET
Sl ESBARN i AT HES
B LRI AT SR AR
HIE -

() R
A SR 0T Lok s B S AT RSME
S RRELNFBINELTE -

ZREBEBEM MBS AR EE
H e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41.

212

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 41. RGP HBEBRNZ A
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme (“the Share Option Scheme”) BEARE T8I ([ RS ]) B ERAATIMASE
is to enable the Company to grant options to either directors or EE=YEERLERE URBREBESY
employees of the Group in order to recognise and motivate their AEBEELER @ A REE KB ASEERIEE
contribution, to provide incentives and to help the Group in retaining its EREREFBEIMEFES  ERZFEESEZ
existing employees and recruiting additional employees by providing MAEBRAEKEROLCERR - BIRETS
them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long term business ER-ZZTLF T AT ARTHRERER
objectives of the Group. The Share Option Scheme was approved by KGIERRE AL ©
shareholders in an extraordinary meeting on 24 December 2007.
The Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting may at any time AR A AT AR R ARG AT BIAR R R BER R L BT
terminate the operation of the Scheme and in such event no further FE MRZBEATETSRZBERE  HEER
Options will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of the HESTEIMIESURER — Y Ef A E S HEEE
Share Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent necessary BUFE AR BT T BT BB AR 1S LATTIE ©
to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior to such
termination.
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () BWHERRBEGOT
Contractual
Number of Vesting life of Exercise
Date of grant instruments conditions options Price
RitAH IA%A HERE BRESHE e
'000 HKS
T AT
Options granted to a director of the Company 2 July 2015 623 * 0 year 3years 2.721
WARE—REFRLERE “E-RECACH 623° 0F 3F 2.721
Options granted to the company secretary, 2 July 2015 623 ¢ 0 year 3years 2.721
financial controller and a director of subsidiaries
of the Company
AARATMBARLAGNE  MBBER-—482 —T-R¥tAZH 623 0F 3F 2.721
RinRE
# After the completion of Rights Issue on 15 February 2017, the # HER_T—+F-_A+HBTRE B

number of share option was increased to 1,246,000. Each option
entitled the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE

(ABTTEIIR)

41. URHBERZAN (&)

(b) Details of the movement of share options outstanding (b) REIRITEERESEBFEOT
are as follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF -%-
Weighted Weighted

average Number of average Number of

exercise price options EXercise price options

LI TEE BREZA METAHEE EfEZA

HK$ '000 HK$ '000

BT T BT S0
Qutstanding at the beginning FMHAITE

of the year 2.755 2,462 0.551 12,310
Adjustment for Rights Issue SRR (F3E38(d))

(note 38(d)) 2.721 30 - -
Forfeited during the year FREL 2.721 (1,246) - -
Share consolidation (note 38(a)() T3 & B (FEE38(a) () - - N/ATEA (9,848)
Qutstanding at the end of the year FREETE 2.721* 1,246 2.755 2,462
Exercisable at the end of the year ERAFE 2.721* 1,246 2.755 2,462

*

15 February 2017.

Adjustments for allotment and rights issue of shares completed on

* EREERBETOABR Tt F =
A+RAZK -

BEZERABRAT 201755k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTEIR)

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 41. URPABEBRNZ A (E)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREAFEERER
At 31 December 2017, the outstanding share options have a RZZE—+F+-A=+—8  WKRTEE
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1 year (2016: 2 RERIETF R TEHNBAIF(ZT—N
years). The estimated fair values of the options granted on 2 July F:2F)  RZZT—RFLAZAMKEE
2015 are approximately HK$1,420,000 (2016: HK$2,839,000) BRENEET A FEEAS £451,420,000
in aggregate. Except for 1,246,000 share options were forfeited, BT (ZT—73F 1 2,839,000/ 7T) © BRI8
no share option was granted or lapsed during the year ended 31 111,246,000 BERRESN - HE T —+4F
December 2017. TZA=T—HIEFER - BEEERE
BRI -

The fair value of share options granted on 2 July 2015 was RZE—AFEAZAMBREERENDTE
calculated on the Binomial Model. The input into this model is as BEDENRZHERNENGHE - 2B A
follow: HEOT :

After
Share consolidation
became effective

on 24 May 2016

RZZ—REF

RA=+MmA

WA & Bf s

Fair value at measurement date SEABNATEE HK$1.155

1.155/87C

Share price B fE HK$2.375

2.37587T

Exercise price 1158 HK$2.755

2.755/87C

Expected volatility TBHIR I8 97.52%

Option life FERRAE AR 3.03 years

3.03F

Expected dividends TEHARR 2 0%

Risk-free interest rate 3 B o 0.63%
The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility T8 HA R U DA ShOR 0 A E o IR B AR AE ANHE 15 64
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the TEHHE  WRFRMEERRERTERAZKE
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future g E BN EH AR o FEHINL B AR A R £ 8
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected BE  THB ABBRBIEEH QAT EEMGR

dividends are based on historical dividends of the Company. BREATE -
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41.

(c)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

The eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
employee of the Group including any executive and any non-
executive directors of the Group.

The grant of share options should be accepted within a period
of 7 days from the date upon which an offer of the grant of an
option is made to a participant, at a consideration of HK$1, being
payable by the grantee upon the acceptance of grant.

The options may be exercised in whole or in part at any time
during the period to be determined and identified by the Board,
but in any event such exercise period shall not exceed a period
of ten years commencing on the date of grant of the relevant
option, subject to the early termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options was determinable by the
Board at its absolute discretion, but was not able to be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; (iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the ten
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iv)
the nominal value of the share on the date of grant.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of
shares in the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all options may be granted under the Scheme when aggregated
with any other share option scheme of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme or the date on which such limit is refreshed by the
shareholders of the Company (“Refreshed 10% Limit”).

BHE—ZT

e PR RR M

= e e El

(ABTTEIIR)

4. DR BERNZNE)
) BREAFEERREZRGE)

B BN A BR2AEBHRAKE IR
BE @ BEAEEEMRITREMNIENTE
=

REOEREEN M2 EA TR BEES
BHEFT7RRES  RERUET  ARXE
UNISESEE S S AN

%%%T#%%ﬁﬁi&%ﬂ%ﬁ%%%%
KA ITIE - RN A BT RS EE
HR R A B EE A R - MERBAR
RERH IR SRR LE

BT B m%%@@%%%gm

HERFER NI SO L B
(ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%%ﬂ%ﬁ
B () NEERHASAhEEXAE
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REERH RS HEEXRAERMER

WERMAFFHRTE MO A
HIWEE -
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BREREETEM A TREITHAR RN &
BEE - ERARBMEM AR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 41. RO BERAMS (&)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

No option may be granted to any person if the total number
of shares of the Company already issued and issuable to him
under all the options granted to him in any 12 month period up
to and including the date of grant exceeding 1% of total number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a
circular by the Company and the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting. Any grant of option to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors or their respective
associates which would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to
be granted in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s issued share capital and having an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on its adoption date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the employees of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-sponsored retirement
benefit scheme organised by the relevant local government authority in
the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of the basic salary of its employees, to the retirement benefit
scheme and have no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme represents for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group does not have any other pension
schemes for its employees in respect of its subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and
2016 in respect of the retirement of its employees.

BHE—ZT

e PR RR M

= e e El

(ABTTEIIR)

42.

REMICENRGEE

ANEEREF B AP F485Z R FERBLAEE
WIJ C REBREFEGIEENES - RABGIE
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PBIT o shaxat EIPTIEHRENR 558 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries

0

Acquisition of Nobel Education

On 19 July 2017, Lucky Famous entered into a
subscription agreement with Nobel Education, an
independent third party, in relation to the subscription
of 9,000,000 ordinary shares of Nobel Education at a
subscription price of HK$3,000,000 (“Subscription”).
Pursuant to the subscription agreement, Lucky Famous
was granted two options in relation to the subscription of
further ordinary shares of Nobel Education at its discretion
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement. The management considered that
the fair value of the options are immaterial.

On 1 September 2017, the completion of the Subscription
took place whereby Lucky Famous subscribed for
9,000,000 ordinary shares of Nobel Education, which
represented 50% equity interest of Nobel Education
immediately after completion of the Subscription, for a
cash consideration of HK$3,000,000. The management
exercised judgement and determined that the Company
has control over Nobel Education as disclosed in note
5(m). Nobel Education is principally engaged in the
provision of children education services in Hong Kong.

The Subscription did not constitute a notifiable transaction
of the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE

(ABTTEIIR)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 43. FEHEREXRM T (E)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

0

Acaquisition of Nobel Education (continued)

(a

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Nobel Education acquired as at the date of acquisition

were as follows:

W EB KB = (4])

WEETZHE (B)

PR B R PR B By 580 52 305 7T 4%
REENBENATEERT

HK$'000
FET

Net assets acquired: FrU s & = A -
Property, plant and equipment (note 21) Y% - B RaE#E(MHEE21) 1,101
Other receivables E At EYGRIE 797
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 3,414
Other payables E At BT RIE (836)
Net assets BEFE 4,476
Non-controlling interests FEFER A& (2,238)
Goodwill (note 23) A (f15E23) 762
Total consideration wRE 3,000

Satisfied by: ATBIHAER
Cash Be 3,000

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEANBRESRAFE

Cash consideration paid BERERE (3,000)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 3,414
414

The fair value of the other receivables acquired was
approximately HK$797,000. None of these receivables
had been impaired and expected to be uncollectible.

EESHEMERTRN A HEERD
73797,000/8 7T - BE % F e MR
EACRE N BRI E AW o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

0

Acaquisition of Nobel Education (continued)

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$202,000
have been charged to selling and administrative expenses
in consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Nobel Education contributed the Group’s turnover from
continuing operations of approximately HK$1,460,000 and
recognised loss for the year from continuing operations
to the Group of HK$1,432,000 between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2017,
total Group turnover for the year ended 31 December
2017 from continuing operations would have been
approximately HK$190,846,000, and loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017 from continuing operations
would have been approximately HK$503,587,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of the turnover and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2017, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

FERERERMEE(E)

W EB M B =) (4])
() WEETZHE (E)

Ui B8 FR B AR 4K £9202,00058 ST E 5T A
HE-_Z—+F+-A=1+—RHIt%F
ERAEERMEERITHASA -

RS BB R RS BARHARE - 485 7
BERAEBERRAFHELCEEY
Ry & 3£ 56 491,460,0007% 7T M F A 5
NEBMERK QB ECEEBNGE
1,432,00078 7T °

W EEEEN =2 —+tF—A—A
T AAEEEE-Z—+F1+=
A=+ BLFERABELS:
T H) 48 & ZEFE A% £) 5 190,846,000
T mMBE-—E—t+FE+-_A=+—
HIEFERARFECE EBREERG
#) /508,587,000 7T © L A RHE
#HeE W ERBMKESES
R-ZZE—tF—A—A%K ' AIAE
EERGIESMNEEBRCEEE
TNIES ETRRIAR R ELE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Acquisition of AP Holdings

On 13 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“AP Group SP Agreement”) to
acquire 51% of the equity interest of AP Holdings from
Fragrant River, at a consideration of HK$20,400,000
(subject to downward adjustment), which was settled
by way of allotment and issue of 40,800,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Consideration
Shares”), credited as fully paid, at an issue price of
HK$0.50 per Consideration Share pursuant to the general
mandate granted in the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 23 May 2016.

Pursuant to the AP Group SP Agreement, in the event
that the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group
attributable to owners of AP Group for the period from
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017 (which will only
include income or gain generated by activities in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the AP Group)
is less than HK$16,000,000, Fragrant River shall, and
Universe shall procure Fragrant River to, pay to the Group
(or to its order) an adjustment amount in cash in the
manner prescribed under the AP Group SP Agreement
(note 32). Completion of the acquisition took place on
1 July 2016. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 13 June 2016, 23 June
2016 and 1 July 2016.

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

43. FRERERERMEE(E)

(@ WHEKEBARGE
(i) MIEEGIER

RZZE—XREXNA+T=8 - AE@:]
VEEhZ(EHEEEERZ])
LA 3% £ /820,400,000 7T (AT 4R T~ 3¢
FratiEeT T 38) M BT UK S B BHE AR
Z51%MHE - REFREARFTN =
E-RNFRA-+=ARTHRER
FREgLEEH—REE  BRERE
BB 0.50/8 L 2 1 TEECEE I
%17 40,800,000 f% 4~ A 7] & fX F B
0.01# T2 EimR (ARRIIESE) 2
FAEIN o

REEHEEEERE  WEZZ
—RNF—A—HE-_Z—+F+=A
=+ AR E B EEEA AT
EPEBERTREEREE R (E
PREREHEIEER—MREBEENHK
Ak i zs ) K7 16,000,0008 7T © &
IRBFBRESIREEHEE
BEWErile AR S RAEE
(RBBEEES) INAARSEME
32) c WIEEENR _T—AR"F+tA—
H5eRk o W SIE 2 FIBEHN A QA
BAE—Z—X~"FRA+=A - =F
—RNENAZFT=BR - —RF+
A—BZzR&E-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAATTHIR)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 43. FRERERERME(E)

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (@ WEBHBATE)
(i) Acquisition of AP Holdlings (continueq)) (i) KEEPER ()

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments
that the Group could receive under this arrangement was
between HK$Nil and HK$20,400,000.

7R SR BIR R % h % FT MR Y 2 R R 2K
NENAERFTREENFTATLE
20,400,000 7T °

HK$'000

FET

Consideration shares RERKMD 20,400
Contingent consideration arrangement SAREBELBE(MIFE32)

(note 32) (17,593)
Total consideration BRE 2,807
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of REBEXMKENEHEERBREERBE
AP Group acquired as at the date of acquisition was as BAEEENOT -
follows:

Net liabilities acquired: FriEE B (EFE -

Property, plant and equipment (note 21) Y% - B RaE#E(MHEE21) 2,135
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 2,886
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 1,360
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFKIE (9,269)
Current tax liabilities EHHIEAE (590)
Net liabilities BEFE (3,478)
Non-controlling interests FEFER S 1,704
Goodwill (note 23) A (f15E23) 4,581

Total consideration wRE 2,807
Satisfied by: ATBIHAER

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHREENESRAFE -

Cash and cash equivalents Re MASEEY 1,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Acquisition of AP Holdings (continueq)

The fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company issued
as the consideration paid was determined on the basis of
the market price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the
acquisition date.

The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired
was approximately HK$2,886,000. None of these
receivables had been impaired and expected to be
uncollectible.

AP Group contributed approximately HK$8,078,000 and
HK$201,000 to the Group’s revenue and the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 respectively
between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2016.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2016,
total Group turnover for the year ended 31 December
2016 would have been approximately HK$271,440,000,
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
have been approximately HK$32,540,000. The proforma
information was for illustrative purposes only and was
not necessarily an indication of the turnover and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2016, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

43. FREREREBERMEE(E)

(@ WEKEBARGE)

i)  KEEGER(E)
ARAREREXNRENCTHITER
R EETREA R B E BN

WEERWMEREE

FrU R B 5 K Ho b FEMGRIA M A T
B4 /2,886,000 T ° % L EUW
FRIBE IR R EY TE R A Y -

HRERPREE -2 —RF+ -1
=t+—HHRE EREEAREEDN
WREAEBRBE TR F+=
A=+—RALLFEHEND B EBL
8,078,000/ 7T %2201,000/& 7T

W EEER =T —"F—A—B%
K AEEEE=_Z—X<F+=A
=+ HALFEMNREEERAN
271,440,000 7T+ REE =T —X
F+-A=+—BLEFEEMNEFD
32,540,000 7T © & A RHME MR A
i WARRKESER =X
F-A—BRENERTAEEER
AERIMEEEREEEE TR
RIAARREEZEZBIEZ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTEIR

)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 43. FRERERERME(E)

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of (b)
subsidiaries

) Acquisition of Million Worldwide and its subsidiary (“Million
Worldwide Group’)

On 21 March 2016, Lucky Famous acquired the entire
equity interest in Million Worldwide from an independent
third party for a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000.
Million Worldwide Group is engaged in property holding
in Hong Kong and its principal asset was an investment
property. The consideration was determined based on the
fair value of the property of Million Worldwide Group as
of 21 March 2016. The acquisition was completed on 21
March 2016.

The purchase consideration was allocated to the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Million Worldwide Group

EBRWBHBARWREE

@) Y5 Milion Worldwide X £ §f & 2 &]
([ Mition WorldwideZ/ |)

R—ZE—XRE=ZF=-+—8 -
Lucky Famous [A]l — % B S & = 7
LA IR £ R 8 20,000,000 # JT 4z B
Million Worldwide 2 2 ZBA%#E ° Million
Worldwide 52 B £ 2 N E B FWE
ERREFELEERBIREME -
R (8 J5 4R % Million Worldwide 52 [E 2
MER_ZE—RNE=ZA-+—B2ZA
TEEETE WEEER-_T—X F
—AZ+—HEX -

U B KB o B = R U8 Million
Worldwide 52 B & KK 7] $# R & & &

acquired at its date of acquisition as follows: AalEmT
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets acquired: kB EEFE
Investment properties (note 22) wEMZE(MFE22) 19,948
Other receivables E At EYGRIE 4
Current tax assets ENHIEEE 434
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 7
Other payables E At R RIE (257)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAG (136)
20,000
Satisfied by: TR HER
Cash R 20,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEBELEMNR SR HFHE :
Cash consideration paid BfESRE (20,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrERRE RIS EEY 7
(19,993)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE

(ABTTEIIR)

43. FREREREBERMEE(E)

(b) ZEBUWBEHBARWBEE

subsidiaries
(i Acquisition of Dragon Oriental (i) YfEDragon Oriental
On 31 March 2016, Lucky Famous acquired additional MRZZF—XRE=A=+—8 " Lucky
51% equity interest in Dragon Oriental from an Famousm]l — BB E = FH AH &
independent third party for a cash consideration of £ 18 17,340,000 7 JT U & Dragon
HK$17,340,000. Dragon Oriental is engaged in property Oriental 2 8 91 51% B% # ° Dragon
holding in Hong Kong and its principal asset is an Oriental R BB M HIER R H *
investment property. The consideration was determined ZEAERRIFEEME - RETIRIE
based on the fair value of the property of Dragon Oriental as Dragon Oriental Z M ¥R =& — R F
of 31 March 2016. The acquisition of Dragon Oriental was ZA=T—BZAFEEETE - K
completed on 31 March 2016. f#Dragon Orientali® =Z — /N F = A
=t+—H%K -
The purchase consideration was allocated to the U B8 B % 9 B2 = 7 42 B8 Dragon
identifiable assets and liabilities of Dragon Oriental Oriental & XKW A IR E E R B E W0
acquired at its date of acquisition is as follows: D
HK$'000
FABT
Net assets acquired: kB EEFE
Investment properties (note 22) wEMZE(MFE22) 33,957
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 336
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFIE (181)
Current tax liabilities EHNIEEE (71)
34,041
Fair value of previously held interest of LRI RS AT ER (16,701)
Total consideration RERTE 17,340
Satisfied by: AT S UER
Cash R 17,340
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: ~WEBEENRSRHFE !
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (17,340)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrIER R RIReSED 336
(17,004)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 43. FRERERERME(E)

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries (c) HEMHEBEAT
() Disposal of 32% interest in GET Mdream () HERZE Z,232%R 12
On 21 March 2017, the Group disposed of its 32% RZE—+tF=A=+—8  &&
equity interest in GET Mdream, an indirect non-wholly REERNRMEBLE=FTHE
owned subsidiary of the Group before disposal, to ERAEERMZEIIEZENE R R
two independent third parties at an aggregate cash 2EH7R%KE - BRERE D
consideration of HK$3,000,000 as disclosed in note 3,000,000 7% 7t (3% 40 B 5 17 B 4%
17. After the completion of the disposal, GET Mdream B o HETNE  BMEEIKAE
became an investment without control and was classified THIERER D EAHILESHE
as available-for-sale financial assets (note 28). EE(FfI5E28) ©
Net assets of GET Mdream at the date of disposal were as BMEDSNHERRZEEFEN
follows: T
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRR E 593
Goodwill (note 23) 2 (fEE23) 865
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEYKIA 4,459
Tax recoverable EIEN e 186
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 12,274
Trade and other payables B REMEMNFIE (13,451)
Carrying amount of net assets disposed of & & EFEMNRAE 4,926
Non-controlling interests derecognised IR IR I (1,990)
Net assets disposed of FriEmEEFE 2,936
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — A E A Rk
Consideration KE 3,000
Net assets disposed of FriEmEEFE (2,936)
Fair value of 19% interest retained 19%IRBERN A TEE 1,781
Gain on disposal * Ek= 3l 1,845
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEMR SR FE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENE S RIBEEEY (12,274)
Cash consideration received BHHEERE 3,000
(9,274)

*

discontinued operation”.

GET Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

The gain on disposal is included in “Profit for the year from

. HEWRSET AT RBERIEEEE
TSR F PR | -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 43.

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c)

(i)

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

FERERERMEE(E)

Disposals of subsidiaries (continued) (c) HEMBRARGE
Disposal of 51% entire interest in GEO Finance ()  HEREZELHHEZ ZE51%KE#E
On 21 November 2016, the Group disposed of its 51% RZZE—RE+—A=+—8 ' &
entire equity interest in GEO Finance, an indirect non- E IR £ {B825,0008 T HEER
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group before disposal, for BHRFUB(LREMARNEEME
cash consideration of HK$825,000. F2EMBAR]) 22 EB51%IRIE
Net assets of GEO Finance at the date of disposal were as BHORFUBRLEAREEFE
follows: N
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 23
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 7,679
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 1,583
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFRIE (7,502)
Current tax liabilities EHTIEAE (230)
Carrying amount of net assets disposed of & & EFEMNRAE 1,553
Non-controlling interest derecognised BRI TER R FEIE IR R 2 (761)
Net assets disposed of Fri &R EEFE 792
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HERBA RS
Consideration RE 825
Net assets disposed of &M EEFE (792)
Gain on disposal * k=G 33
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNRESRLFHE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENRE MRSEEY (1,583)
Cash consideration received BHFHRERE 825
(758)

*

losses”.

The gain on disposal is included in “other gains and

- HE Wt Al E i g R ] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 43.

CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposals of subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Disposal of entire interest in JF3|45 1
2y a] (“Act Point SZ7)

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE

(A TTEIR)

FERERERMEE(E)

) HEMBARGE

KX EIZAER (i)

On 21 November 2016, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Act Point SZ, an indirect non-wholly

owned subsidiary of the Group before disposal, for cash

consideration of HK$342,000.

Net assets of Act Point SZ at the date of disposal were as

HERRY B F 1B B A H IR
REIRIEHZ )2 2 55 e

RZZBE—RF+—A=+—H &%
B LATR & (B 342,000/8 THEE K
FYEMR (REEMAAEENRE
BEIER BB AR R IBAIE -

RINBERE O E B & EFE

follows: Ik
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 423
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 666
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 41
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFRIE (1,010)
Carrying amount of net assets disposed of & & EFEMNRAE 120
Release of foreign currency translation reserve MNEFE 3 i & 5] (56)
Net assets disposed of FTEMEEFE 64
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HERB ARk
Consideration RE 342
Net assets disposed of &M EEFE (64)
Gain on disposal * o Y 278
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNRSRAFHE :
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENRE MRSEEY (41
Cash consideration received BYERERE 342
301

losses”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(d)

Major non-cash transactions

U

(i)

Acquisition of AP Group was completed on 1 July 2016 at
a consideration of HK$20,400,000, which was satisfied by
issue of 40,800,000 shares of the Company (note 38(b)).

On 27 September 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Finsoft Financial Investment
Holdings Limited (“Finsoft Financial”) (stock code: 8018),
as purchaser, in relation to the disposal of 16,538,000
ordinary shares of China Parenting Network Holdings
Limited at a consideration of HK$35,498,817. The
transaction completed on 16 December 2016 and Finsoft
Financial settled the consideration by the allotment and
issue of 186,492,340 ordinary shares of Finsoft Financial.

e PR RR M

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—RHIFE
(ABTTEIIR)

43. FREREREBERMEE(E)

d EFEIFREXS

() WEEHEER-Z—FtA—B
Ak 1B 420,400,000/ 7T © #55E
1B 1T KA A)40,800,000 % B& 17 45 4<F
(Ff3E38(b)) °

iy MNRZZFE-—AR"FLAZ++LAH £x&H
HEF ST EERAR AR (E
e l) (BRMHASE : 8018) HEAE
FIRINEEHE  RRABIERE
35,498,817 T EF EH B A4 IE
B A R A F1#916,538,0000% L @AY o
RERZFE—R"F+ZA+XAX
B o R FEBT & mhiE AL R BT
©80186,492,3400% L iBAR A& E -

(e) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () METBFIELABNEIR

activities

TRALAEERETIMELNEEE
3 BERSNFRSREY - MERPME
ENEBERRERETNIARELRER
ERAKESEARERERADEEZRER
PRELNBRSRENZFAE -

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

1 January Interest 31 December

2017 Cash flows expenses 2017

—E—+F —2—tF

—A—H ReRE RS +=ZA=t-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR

Loan notes BXEE 210,000 (220,301) 10,301 -
Convertible notes - liability ARBREE-aE&Hs

component (note 35) (FfF5E35) 71,789 (75,208) 3,419 -

281,789 (295,509) 13,720 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are as

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RHILFE
(A TTEIR)

44. FEIE

@  NBMEHRIBEARAENT

follows:

2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET

Contracted but not provided for: DETABERBHE -
— development costs for intangible assets —EEERNFRERA 25,757 30,424
— capital contribution to a joint venture —m—HEERELTE 645 7,000
26,402 37,424

(b)  The total future minimum lease payments of the Group under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

) RETAHEEEHEE  AEBRATEE
R BN AR R RE R BRI T ¢

2017 2016

—Z & —T—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within one year —FR 6,041 10,999
After one year but within five years —FREBEAFER 5,194 14,852
11,235 25,851

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for its office premises and office equipment. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of 3 years (2016: 3 years) and
rental is fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent
rentals.

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

A copyright licence agreement (“Copyright Licence Agreement”)
was entered into between Apperience as licensee and fX & B2 £
=B RITBRR A A], as licensor on 18 February 2013 pursuant to
which X #F B2 £ granted to Apperience an exclusive licence to
use the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” registered in the
name of A #PELER at nil consideration for a period from the date
of the Copyright Licence Agreement to (i) the date on which the
relevant copyright is transferred from #3822 and registered in
the name of Apperience in the PRC; and (ii) the date on which
the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” has been registered in
the name of Apperience in the United States (whichever is the
earlier). On 1 July 2014, the Copyright Licence Agreement was
terminated.

A new copyright licence agreement (“New Copyright Licence
Agreement”) was entered into among Both Talent as licensee, X
#BELE as licensor, and Apperience as of 1 July 2014 pursuant to
which pX &P £ granted to Both Talent an exclusive licence to use
the copyright of “Advanced SystemCare” registered in the name
of X #B B £ in the PRC for a period from the date of the New
Copyright Licence Agreement to the later of (i) the completion of
registration of the assignment of the copyright to Both Talent in
the PRC; and (ii) the completion of registration of the copyright of
“Advanced SystemCare” in the name of Both Talent in the United
States.

Mr. Xue Qiush (“Mr. Xue”), an executive Director of the Company
up to 13 December 2016, has 35% equity interest inf #BE 2.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has no
material related party transactions.

Transactions with key management personnel

All key management personnel are directors of the Company and
their remuneration are disclosed in note 16.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL INFORMATION

L EHBERE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2013, 2014,

2015, 2016 and 2017.

RESULTS

GEs

—=

EOETEEXEANBERABHE -

ES

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE

UTAASERE-T =% —F-MmF T35
—FAER-FLET- A=+ ALEES

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF ZZT—RF ZET-HF EWOF ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FExT FHET
(Re-presented)
(#& &%)
Continuing operations BEREER
Turnover L 187,780 193,534 324,729 234,293 92,105
(Loss)/profit from operations 484 (E518) i@ F (484,475) 91,532 123,049 109,155 (161,776)
Finance costs AR A (13,720) (22,562) (5,635) (1,200) (14,602)
Share of (loss)/profit of FE(REE & AR (E51R),
associates il (15,644) (5,550) (51) 33 -
Share of loss of a joint venture  fE(E—E4& S %EEE (2,932) (5) - - -
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(ESIR) m A (516,771) 63,415 117,363 107,979 (176,378)
Income tax credit/(expenses)  ATSHiE%E, () 14,438 (29,576) (23,940 (19,000) (6,798)
Profit/(loss) after taxation R B FELL EIERH
from continuing operations &% %, (E518) (502,333) 33,839 93,423 88,979 (183,176)
Profit after taxation from RECKRILEEERE
discontinued operation BrEL&EF 3,123 1,155 - - -
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FE), BT (499,210) 34,994 93,423 88,979 (183,176)
(Loss)/profit attributable to LA T A &L (5i8),~
s Kl
- Owners of the Company —ZAQFHEEA (512,327) 17,092 60,510 52,737 (207,410)
- Non-controlling interests  — JEIRRRAER 13,117 17,902 32,913 36,242 24,234
(499,210) 34,994 93,423 88,979 (183,176)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—t5F —E—RF —ET—RF —E—NF —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT FAT FAxT FHET
Total assets AERE 705,680 1,469,512 1,434,324 942,389 750,754
Total liabilities BfEeE (56,847) (387,062) (380,503) (174,513) (161,500)
Non-controlling interests IR i (37,470) (34,915) (37,868) (41,524) (35,498)
Total equity attributable to  Z&2Q AHEHE AEE
owners of the Company R 611,363 1,047,535 1,015,953 726,352 553,756
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